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Working toward ESG-Focused Management 
and Striving to Coexist Harmoniously  

with Local Communities



We are not bound to the present.
Rather, we will create values that 
go beyond the present in order to 
bring joy to all our stakeholders 

as we work to help build 
a sustainable world.

In the manufacture of its products, TS TECH pursues safety, environmental sustainability, 
and comfort. The pursuit of comfort in particular is multifaceted and deep, and over the 
course of time this pursuit is subject to an infinite process of evolution.
 Our corporate message is “Beyond Comfort.” “Beyond” connotes transcending, rising 
above, or going ahead of something, while “Comfort” denotes ease, contentment, and 
relaxation. Put together, they represent our will to deliver much more than just comfort. Our 
actions are underpinned by the belief that comfort leads to satisfaction, which in turn brings 
joy to the end users of our products. We are not bound to the present. Rather, we will 
create values that go beyond the present in order to bring joy to all our stakeholders.
 As we continue to grow as a global manufacturer of automobile interior components, 
we are determined to embody our beliefs to be a company dedicated to realizing people’s 
potential and a company sincerely welcomed by all. To accomplish this, we will incorporate 
ESG-focused management that considers environmental (E), social (S), and governance (G) 
issues, and we will strive to help build a sustainable world.

E n v i r o nm e n t a l

S o c i a l

Working to help build a sustainable world

Safety
Passenger protection
Sensing technology

Simulation, etc.

Attractiveness
Enhanced comfort

Seat arrangement technology
Higher performance, etc.

Environment
Weight reduction

Lower CO2 emissions
Eco-friendly development 

and production, etc.

Beliefs

A company dedicated to 
realizing people’s potential

A company sincerely 
welcomed by all

Social contribution activities

Manufacturing 
process

Environmental conservation efforts

A goal that goes beyond comfort

Gov e r n a n c e
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Beliefs

A company dedicated to realizing people’s potential

A company sincerely welcomed by all

Company Principle

We shall provide comfortable, 
high-quality products at a competitive price 

for our customers worldwide,
always pursuing the infinite 

possibilities of manufacturing.

Management Policies

•  Create a vibrant workplace, respecting consensus and 
communication among people.

•  Treat time and priorities with importance, doing work harmoniously.

•  Possess enthusiasm and knowledge, challenging ourselves to create 
new value.

•  Be devoted to realizing individual visions,  
with relentless perseverance.
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TS Philosophy

Editorial Policy
In 2012 the TS TECH Group began issu-
ing the TS TECH Report, which integrat-
ed its annual and environmental reports. 
The TS TECH Report was reorganized 
from the dual perspectives of financial 
information and non-financial informa-
tion (corporate social responsibility 
(CSR)).
 The Group conducts a variety of 
activities and initiatives related to the 
economy, the environment, and society 
in order to be “a company sincerely 
welcomed by all.” This report is issued 
with the purpose of fulfi l l ing the 
Group’s accountability in these regards.

About the Report’s Formats
Business activities pertaining to topics 
of importance to TS TECH have been 
included in the printed report in an 
easy-to-read format. In addition to this 
information, the online report offers 
more detailed information and data.

Scope of the Report
The TS TECH Report covers the entire 
TS TECH Group, which conducts busi-
ness in Japan and around the world. 
However, the scope of the report may 
differ depending on business activities 
and CSR initiatives.

Period Covered by the Report
In principle, this report covers the period 
from April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018 (fis-
cal 2018), but it may also include coverage 
of activities before or after that period.

Guidelines
The ISO 26000 international guidelines 
for corporate social responsibility and 
the International Integrated Reporting 
Framework issued by the International 
Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC) 
were consulted in editing this report.

Disclaimer
This report contains forward-looking 
statements from TS TECH Co., Ltd. per-
taining to plans, forecasts, strategies, 
and results. These forward-looking 
statements are based on currently avail-
able information, and actual results may 
vary significantly from the forward-look-
ing statements contained in this report 
due to a range of variable factors.
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Information Important to Stakeholders

http://www.tstech.co.jp/english/csr/
Online Report

Printed Report

For Comments and Inquiries Regarding 
the Report, Please Contact Us at the 
Address Below.
TS TECH Co., Ltd.
Public Relations Section,  
Administration Department
TEL: +81-48-462-1136
FAX: +81-48-465-0403
3-7-27 Sakae-cho, Asaka-shi, Saitama 
351-0012, Japan

Honda
Odyssey seat
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INPUT OUTPUT

Investments in sustainable management resources

Social issues

2020 VisionMedium-Term Vision

Long-Term Vision

2010 Vision

Beliefs A company dedicated to realizing people’s potential
A company sincerely welcomed by all

INNOVATIVE QUALITY COMPANYGOOD QUALITY COMPANY

MISSION

A system arranged into the four regions 
of Japan, the Americas, China, 

and Asia and Europe

Global business development

Operations in 14 countries

Number of sites: 68
Number of production sites: 50

Global promotion of TS Philosophy education

A philosophy for debt-free management 
since our establishment

Sustainable management base

A sound �nancial base

Consolidated equity: 259.9 billion yen

Revenue: 479.4 billion yen

Operating margin: 9.9%
(Transport equipment industry average: 6.67%)

To become a seat and 
interior system supplier 
that is trusted worldwide 

* QCDDM: Quality, Cost, Development, Delivery, and Management

External factors

Expertise related to “the philosophy 
and science of seating” cultivated since 

establishment 58 years ago

High degree of stability 
in all QCDDM* domains

Technological prowess

Competitive patents
Number of patents held in Japan: 787

Number of patents held outside Japan: 481
Research and development expenses

11.9 billion yen (2.5% of revenue)

Intellectual
capital

Manufactured
capital

Human
capital

Financial
capital

Intellectual
capital

Manufactured
capital

Human
capital

Financial
capital

Seats

Door trim

Resin-based products

Products for
automobiles

Chairs for medical use

Seats for multi-purpose
off-road vehicles

Seats for
personal watercraft

Other products

Seats

Resin-based products

Products for
motorcycles

Main products

FOR STAKEHOLDERS

Customers
 (customer companies and

end users)

Shareholders and
investors

Business partners

Employees

Society and
the local community

Social value
FOR TS TECH

Value provided

Sales

Research
and

development

Purchasing

Qu
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BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
Value chainStrengths

Changes in comfort sought
for automobile interiors Car safety

The creation of
employee-friendly workplaces Response to climate change

Exchange rate �uctuations Material price �uctuations Economic and business trends Competitive environment Technological innovation Changes in the structure 
of the industry

V A L U E

Creation of a foundation
for ESG management Contribution to the creation of a sustainable society

Manufacturing

The environment

Social responsibility

M O D E LB U S I N E S S

Attractiveness
Comfort and convenience born of our 
unique theory on ideal posture to prevent 
fatigue even over long periods, as well as 
a wide range of proprietary seat arrange-
ment technology that is versatile, func-
tional, and easy to use

Environment

Lower environmental impact over the 
entire process from development through 
production, thanks to research and devel-
opment of new materials that are both 
high quality and eco-friendly, lighter 
weight products that help improve the fuel 
ef�ciency of automobiles, and energy-sav-
ing equipment to reduce CO2 emissions 

Safety
A high level of safety achieved with data 
gathered from a variety of collision tests, 
highly accurate simulation analysis and 
expertise, and cutting-edge technology 
developed over many years

TS TECH’s business activities are based on the TS Philosophy 
and bring together a fusion of financial and non-financial capital 
sources. In conducting these activities, we employ the creation 
of appropriate strategies and resource allocation in line with fac-
tors such as the external environment, risks, and opportunities. 
This enables us to develop comfortable, high-quality products 
and create long-term value for our stakeholders as we look to 
continuous growth.

TS TECH’s Value Creation Model
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Top Message

I became president in June 2018, taking charge 
of TS TECH along with Chairman Inoue. With 
Chairman Inoue as chief executive and myself 
handling decisions and approvals regarding op-
erations, we will promote our global develop-
ment and business growth through speedy 
decision-making rooted in sound governance, 
dedicating ourselves heart and soul to further 
enhancing corporate value.
 Under the 13th Medium-Term Manage-
ment Plan, launched the fiscal year ended 
March 2018, our basic management policy  
is to continuously invent and implement the 
best measures possible while keeping a close 
eye on the rapidly changing environment in 
which we find ourselves. We are working to  
become “a company whose presence is appre-
ciated by stakeholders” by the year 2030. This 
endeavor is driven by our philosophy to be a 
company dedicated to realizing people’s poten-
tial and a company sincerely welcomed by all. 
We will strive to help build a sustainable world 
through management that incorporates an 
ESG-based perspective.

For a manufacturer like the TS TECH Group, 
quality is more important than anything else. 
Improving quality eventually leads to cost re-
ductions. Also, by providing high-quality prod-
ucts, you earn the confidence of your custom-
ers, and they in turn place additional orders.
 This is why the TS TECH Group is actively 
installing facilities and equipment that enhance 
quality. We work hard to stop sub-standard 
products from leaving the plant. Preventative 
measures include not only a visual inspection 
of welding accuracy and seat part assembly by 
specialists, but also checks using cameras and 
image recognition systems. Under our trace-
ability system, each seat is affixed with a con-
trol tag, and we use that tag to record data as-
sociated with each process. Everything about 
the work performed on the seat is recorded on  
its tag, including “when” (in hours/minutes/sec-
onds), “where” (on which production line), 
“who” (those who worked on it), and “what” 

Q Tell us about your aspirations 
and managerial policies as president.

Q What mindset do you think is 
important for the management  
of TS TECH?

(the work details and inspection results). We 
even measure the amount of torque that was 
used to fasten the bolts. In the unlikely event of 
a recall, this system can help us to pinpoint any 
issue and reduce the time needed to address it.
 In order to maintain a high level of quality, 
our approach to problem solving emphasizes 
the sangen shugi (the three actuals) principle, 
which focuses on confirmation of the actual 
product at the actual workplace and recognition 
of the actual reality of the situation. This may be 
a given in the manufacturing industry, but I find 
it very important, and I direct the head of each 
Group company to go to the plant floor several 
times a day. A company leader who looks 
around carefully and listens to the people sta-
tioned at the actual workplace will understand 
the actual reality and, through early detection, 
be able to nip quality issues in the bud. More-
over, closing the distance between manage-
ment and the plant floor leads to changes in 
employee awareness of quality improvement.  
I also often look in on production and develop-
ment workplaces, and I find that this results in 
observance of the 3S (seiri (tidiness), seiton 
(orderliness), and seiketsu (cleanliness)) meth-
odology. After all, good products don’t come 
from an untidy workplace.
 By always handling components, the basis 
of manufacturing, with the utmost care, we  
will continue to strengthen our corporate cul-
ture and increase the competitiveness of the  
TS TECH Group as a whole.

In the fiscal year ended March 2018, economic 
trends were favorable in each segment. We 
saw increased orders from major customers, 
and a higher ratio of high-end models improved 
the composition of the model lineup. In addi-
tion exchange rates driven by a weaker yen had 
a positive impact, and efforts to improve our 
profit structure, such as measures to boost pro-
duction efficiency, delivered results. Due to 
these factors, revenue was 479,490 million 
yen, up 53,696 million yen (12.6%) from the 
previous year. In terms of profitability, operat-
ing income was also up, reaching 47,346 million 
yen in a 12,788 million yen (37.0%) year-on-year 
increase to exceed original forecasts and set a 
record high. 

Q Please give us a review of the fiscal 
year ended March 2018 and an outlook 
for the fiscal year ending March 2019.

Masanari Yasuda
President and Representative Director

Masanari Yasuda joined Tokyo Seat (now 
TS TECH) in April 1982. He was appointed 
to the Board of Directors as Executive 
General Manager of the Development 
and Engineering Division in 2010, and as 
Senior Managing Director (Representative 
Director) in charge of Global Operations 
Supervision and Quality Assurance 
Supervision in 2016. He has served as 
president since June 2018. 

P R O F I L E

We are leveraging 
our new management structure 
to create a foundation for 
world-class ESG management and 
deliver further growth. 

President and 
Representative Director 

Masanari Yasuda
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Beliefs A company dedicated to realizing people’s potential           A company sincerely welcomed by all

Create a system for world-leading quality

Become a world leader in component competitiveness

Establish a base for new customer relations

Use �nancial strategies to support business growth

Develop human resources to be promoted to management

Create measures to promote diversity

Practice environmentally conscious business activities

Conduct CSR activities

2030 A company whose presence is appreciated by stakeholders

INNOVATIVE QUALITY COMPANY2020
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Sustainable business growth1

Diversity management2

Harmony with the
social environment3

 The TS TECH Group is currently in the mid-
dle of its 13th Medium-Term Management 
Plan. In the first year (the fiscal year ended 
March 2018) of the plan, we pursued three key 
initiatives for creating a foundation for ESG 
management*1: sustainable business growth, 
diversity management, and harmony with the 
social environment.
 With respect to “sustainable business 
growth,” we strove to reinforce our profit struc-
ture by working to “create a system for 
world-leading quality,” “become a world leader 
in component competitiveness,” and “establish 
a base for new customer relations*2.”
 Through our work to “create a system for 
world-leading quality,” the results of our regular 
initiatives have been recognized by a wide 
range of end users, and our seats achieved 
high marks in four segments of a quality and 
satisfaction survey by an authoritative U.S. re-
search company. Additionally, in an automobile 
product appeal survey by the same company, 
two of the highest-rated models use TS TECH 
products, and each of our seats earned the top 
rating in all attributes in the seat category.
 Through our efforts to “become a world 
leader in component competitiveness,” our 
global standard frame and much of our elec-
tronic technology were used in the seats for 
the Honda Accord, which we began producing 
in the fiscal year ended March 2018. We deliv-
ered class-leading comfort while keeping costs 
down, successfully bringing a highly competi-
tive product with high added value to market. 
 As we strive to “establish a base for new 

customer relations,” we have been able to se-
cure multiple new orders in each region*3, albe-
it on a modest scale, and we are gradually  
beginning to see the fruits of those efforts.  
We have also established new sales locations 
targeting the American “Big Three” and local  
Chinese automakers in order to gain new cus-
tomers and orders. 
 As part of our “diversity management” ini-
tiative, we implemented a flextime system 
without core time in Japan, and we are working 
to improve labor productivity at all companies 
by promoting work-style reforms that incorpo-
rate local characteristics and can be tailored to 
meet employees’ individual needs.
 In terms of “harmony with the social envi-
ronment,” as we rebuilt the Head Office build-
ing that had supported TS TECH’s growth for 
roughly half a century, we addressed deteriora-
tion, earthquake resistance, and current issues, 
such as environmental standards, and also in-
corporated measures designed to stimulate 
further rapid progress in the future. We sought 
high efficiency and superior hospitality not only 
by incorporating advanced energy-saving tech-
nologies but also by enhancing diversity 
through the creation of an employment oppor-
tunity for people with disabilities at an in-house 
cafe. We also worked hard to maintain our pos-
itive relationships with the communities where 

*1  ESG management: Management that thoroughly consid-
ers environmental, social, and governance issues 

*2  The base is a move to expand sales to finished vehicle 
manufacturers other than major customers.

*3  We cannot disclose specific manufacturer names due to 
non-disclosure agreements.

The global situation is changing at a dizzying 
speed, and we anticipate that our future busi-
ness environment will be a difficult one. Amid 
this backdrop, we will deliver further growth 
not only by pursuing profits but also by ad-
dressing social issues to thoroughly meet the 
expectations of our many stakeholders and 
help build a sustainable world. 
 We feel that the creation of a foundation 
for ESG management, a pillar of our Medium- 
Term Management Plan, is, in essence, what  
it means to practice our philosophy to be a 
company sincerely welcomed by all whose 
presence is appreciated by its stakeholders. 
We do not consider ESG to be something com-
pletely new; rather, efforts such as the develop-
ment of technology that addresses social  
issues are a natural extension of TS TECH’s 
business activities through the years. We be-
lieve these efforts will lead to value creation 
that befits our company.

Q What kinds of value does  
TS TECH look to create?

we do business through social contributions 
and participation in environmental conservation 
efforts rooted in each local community.
 In the fiscal year ending March 2019, we 
will continue to steadily advance each initiative 
in accordance with the 13th Medium-Term 
Management Plan and work hard to meet  
our objectives.
 Specifically, we will proceed with efforts in 
all regions to improve efficiency via automa-
tion and strengthen our global component sup-
ply system. We expect these efforts to make 
us better able to withstand changes in the  
external environment. In addition, we will ac-
celerate expansion of sales beyond existing 
customers by steadily launching production of 
new models scheduled for new customers to 
earn their trust.
 We also believe that having our ESG ef-
forts evaluated objectively from the outside will 
help cement our reputation as a global corpora-
tion. Under the assumption that we will be 
evaluated by third parties in the future, we im-
plemented a voluntary in-house assessment 
using the appropriate indicators in the fiscal 
year ended March 2018. Building on the find-
ings of this assessment, the Group as a whole 
is working to address specific key ESG issues.

 The Group conducts research and develop-
ment with a focus on safety, environmental, 
and attractive product technologies. 
 In the area of safety technology, our ap-
proach to traffic accidents, a serious social is-
sue in the automobile industry, has been to 
lead the way in installing cutting-edge, high- 
performance dynamic testing devices and use 
the data and know-how gained from testing to 
design seats that deliver world-class safety. 
This safety technology is one of our strengths.
 Regarding environmental technology, our 
efforts to reduce seat weight have resulted in 
improved fuel efficiency and conservation of 
resources. The constant evolution of this tech-
nology is evident through our pursuit of lighter 
seat frames and the development of new light-
weight, high-performance seat cover materials.
 Our attractive product technology starts 
with comfort. We are always in pursuit of the 
value required by each era as we develop seat 
arrangements and sensing technology.
 Driving our success all these years has 
been the TS Philosophy, which energizes our 
manufacturing process. At the root of this is 
our beliefs to be a company dedicated to realiz-
ing people’s potential and a company sincerely 
welcomed by all. When each employee dili-
gently gives their all, they can create new value 
that is not bound to the present but rather tran-
scends it and provide products that are wel-
comed with joy throughout the world. In con-
junction with this, we can then return a portion 
of profits to society through social contribution 
activities. Through this kind of ESG-focused 
management, we are taking up the challenge 
to create value that is required by our custom-
ers, our users, and local communities.
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Helping build a sustainable society

A company sincerely 
welcomed by all

A company sincerely 
welcomed by all

A company dedicated to realizing 
people’s potential

A company dedicated to realizing 
people’s potential

Sustainable growth

• E (Environmental)

• S (Social)

• G (Governance)

Importance to TS TECH
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Creation of a foundation for ESG management

Designation of key ESG issues

28 priority issues

• Global deployment of standards of conduct/
Dissemination to contractors

• Pledge to make standards of conduct effective

• Identi�cation of material issues
• Disclosure of materiality analysis
• Establishment of standards of conduct based on ESG

• Establishment of ESG-based standards of conduct 
for suppliers

• Strategies to address con�ict mineral regulations 

• Identi�cation of important suppliers
• Response to high-risk suppliers
• Supply chain risk management measures 
• Supply chain management strategy
• Supply chain management promotion and disclosure

• Examination of ESG-based management structure
• Attainment of EMS certi�cation
• Assessment of the effects of efforts to reduce 

CO2 emissions
• Identi�cation of �nancial risks due to climate change
• Identi�cation of �nancial opportunities due to climate 

change
• Assessment of gender equity in pay
• Identi�cation of and response to human rights risks
• Implementation of quantitative assessments of skills 

development programs
• Employee turnover assessment
• Study and enhancement of employee satisfaction

• Identi�cation and disclosure of future risks
• Reinforcement of the risk management system
• Formulation and announcement of a tax 

strategy/policy
• Clari�cation of Board of Directors’ responsibility 

regarding medium- to long-term taxation risks
• Assessment and release of diversity-related indicators
• Corporate citizen activities based on SDGs/ 

Formulation of social contribution activity strategies

*4  Open collaboration course: A course taught in a graduate 
program that utilizes funding from the private sector to 
teach a subject that is in the public interest

We believe that governance is an extremely im-
portant factor for sustainable growth. I said at 
the beginning of the interview that quality is 
the most important thing in management; this, 
of course, holds true for products and manufac-
turing, but it is also true for oversight and oper-
ations. The recent dishonesty on the part of 
large corporations, such as the falsification of 
fuel efficiency and quality data, very easily 
damages the trust and brands that these com-
panies have worked to build over the years.
 The TS TECH Group regularly convenes a 
global risk committee that identifies risks in var-
ious areas of corporate management and 
works to eliminate them one by one.
 As evidenced by the steady expansion of 
the scope of our business and a record-high 
profit in the fiscal year ended March 2018, we 
have a structure that consistently produces 
profits in place. However, a wave of technolog-
ical innovation is sweeping through today’s au-
tomobile industry that includes a shift toward 
electric vehicles (EVs), automation (freedom 
from driving), and connectivity (coordination 
with various services). These developments 
will bring about an era of great structural reform 
that includes changes in the value demanded 
of seats, fierce competition in development, 
and the rise of new competitors. It has always 
been said that as long as people ride in cars, 
the need for seats and other interior compo-
nents will remain. However, once automated 
vehicles that eliminate accidents are a reality, 
safety, one of our strengths, will no longer be a 

Q Please share your views 
on achieving sustainable growth.

Q Do you have any final thoughts you 
want to share with stakeholders?

necessary requirement for a seat, so we may 
find ourselves having to compete, for example, 
with furniture companies.
 The TS TECH Group is not content with the 
status quo. We are actively working to develop 
technologies for the future. With the age of au-
tomated driving in mind, we have created seats 
that provide comfort and peace of mind as well 
as seats that help people manage and promote 
their health by letting passengers exercise. We 
exhibited these and other innovative products 
at the Tokyo Motor Show. At TS TECH, we are 
investing in new forms of value creation that 
will help us survive in this era of great change.
 We believe that the crucial driving force be-
hind new value creation is human resources. 
Human resources are not “developed”; they 
develop themselves. The quickest and most re-
liable path to a person’s growth is the use of his 
or her given, “autonomous” abilities. In order 
to encourage our employees’ self-driven 
growth, we are devising measures that allow 
each person to work in a way that spurs their 
own growth. We are confident that all employ-
ees will work to improve themselves by dili-
gently approaching all tasks and issues they 
face as their own. This, in turn, will create new 
value and pave the way for our company to 
keep on growing.
 One example of this is the Manned Space-
craft Seat Concept we exhibited at the 45th  

Tokyo Motor Show 2017 in November 2017. This 
was an idea born from the TS Camp, a unique 
training system we run with the goal of produc-
ing next-generation leaders (candidates for man-
agerial positions). The concept originated with 
an idea proposed by one of our employees un-
der the theme of creating new value through 
ideas that break the mold in order to further 
grow TS TECH. It ended up being part of an open 
collaboration course*4 conducted by the Univer-
sity of Tokyo and the Japan Aerospace Explora-
tion Agency (JAXA). Today, TS TECH is using the 
safety evaluation technology it has amassed 
through years of car seat development to work 
on the development of passenger safety evalua-
tion methods and research and development of 
seat safety design for manned spacecraft. The 
employee who proposed the idea has an active 
role in this work as project leader.
 This is, of course, just one example, but  
we want to provide an environment in all re-
gions that will allow for the development of hu-
man resources that will help our business grow. 
As president of the company, I also believe  
that a key mission of mine is to foster human  

resources who can take responsibility for cor-
porate management going forward and lead 
the next generation of the TS TECH Group.

The TS TECH Group, which marks its 58th anni-
versary in December 2018, has entered a stage 
where we should take a long, hard look at our-
selves as a company. To reach 100 years, we 
must first strengthen our foundation for ESG 
management and make sustainability a bed-
rock for the Group as a whole. We will reinforce 
our tireless efforts in order to further increase 
TS TECH’s corporate value and ensure it contin-
ues to exist in the future.

 We aim to be a company sincerely wel-
comed by all, whose presence is appreciated 
by all stakeholders. We will do this by providing 
an environment for every employee to diligent-
ly give their all and by ensuring that our busi-
ness activities help build a sustainable world. 
The entire Group will push ahead as one to 
achieve this goal. On behalf of everyone at the 
TS TECH Group, I thank all of our stakeholders 
and hope you will continue to support us for 
many years to come. 
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1960 1970 1980 1990 2000 2010 2020
Expanded operations to North America
1977

Expanded operations to Asia
1994

Expanded operations to China
2001

Stock listed on the First Section 
of the Tokyo Stock Exchange

2007
TS TECH’s 50th anniversary
2010

Expanded operations to 
South America

1996

Changed company name to 
TS TECH Co., Ltd.

1997

Expanded operations to Europe
1999

Established Tokyo Seat Co., Ltd. 
1960

Took over the motorcycle seat business from 
predecessor Teito Fuhaku Kogyo Corporation

Began producing automobile seats
1963

Sales Trends

From Producing Work Uniforms 
to Manufacturing Seats for 
Motorcycles and Automobiles
TS TECH’s predecessor, 
Teito Fuhaku Kogyo, manufactured 
work uniforms for Honda, who 
recognized the quality of our sewing 
technology and asked us to begin 
manufacturing motorcycle seats. 
Honda’s Super Cub scooter became a 
runaway hit and our production system 
expanded. We then began to 
manufacture lightweight seats for racing 
motorcycles, developing technologies 
early on to make seats lighter. 
 We later made seats for the Honda 
T360 pickup truck, which marked the 
start of TS TECH’s full-�edged 
manufacture of seats for automobiles. 
From then on, the scale of our 
operations grew steadily.

Overseas Expansion: Early 
Establishment of a Manufacturing 
Base in North America
TS TECH �rst expanded its 
business outside of Japan in 1977, 
setting up a production subsidiary 
in Nebraska, U.S.A. to manufacture 
motorcycle seats locally 
for Kawasaki.
 We later began production 
for Honda. A series of orders for 
automobile seats and leisure 
vehicle seats came in from 
American automakers, and the 
scale of local production was 
expanded. Today, the Group has 
production centers in Japan, the 
Americas, Europe, China, and other 
parts of Asia.

Aiming for Incomparable Quality 
and Achieving World-Class Quality
In order to compete alongside the 
world’s mega-suppliers, in the 
early 2000s, TS TECH �rst set 
its goal of achieving world-class 
quality. Under the slogan at the 
time, “Incomparable Quality,” 
we set out to not only improve 
production ef�ciency and quality 
through the installation of facilities 
such as jig lines, but also to 
change people’s way of thinking 
about manufacturing. More 
recently, TS TECH has been rated 
as the No. 1 supplier by vehicle 
size class in a seat quality and 
satisfaction survey conducted by 
an American research �rm.

Overcoming Adversity to Build 
a Structure for High Revenue
As the scale of TS TECH’s business 
has expanded, the impact of 
external factors has also grown. We 
were impacted by the �nancial crisis 
of 2008, as well as the Great East 
Japan Earthquake in early 2011 and 
severe �ooding in Thailand in late 
2011— both of which caused a 
suspension of plant operations.
 In response to such adverse 
conditions, we signi�cantly boosted 
development and production 
ef�ciency through measures such 
as the introduction of automated 
technology into production lines. 
This forms the basis for our current 
high revenue structure.

Za Lab: A Research Group That 
Studies the Philosophy and 
Science of Seating to Generate 
New Value
Za Lab was launched in 2012 with 
young employees selected from 
various departments to come 
together and research seating. 
The interaction between different 
occupations generated many new, 
outside-the-box ideas. Za Lab 
continues to routinely conduct 
research in collaboration with 
the New Product Development 
Department to commercialize 
their ideas, a few of which have 
been shown at events such as the 
Tokyo Motor Show as prototypes. 
We can continue to expect ideas 
to emerge from Za Lab that will 
lead to future technologies.

More Electronic Devices for 
More Comfortable, Safer Seats
Seats used to be simple, consisting 
mainly of a frame and cushion with 
leather covering. They have since 
evolved, and today many electronic 
devices are built into seats to add 
greater safety, comfort, and appeal.
 TS TECH has a department 
dedicated to electronics-related 
research and development. The 
department is a self-contained 
entity, handling everything from 
proposals of new features to control 
settings and system veri�cation.

High-Performance Dynamic 
Sled Testing Facilities Produce 
Assessment Technologies to 
Be Used in Space

Seat Arrangements Created Using 
Mechanical Design Technology
The 1990s saw a minivan boom. 
The interior was seen as a space 
to enjoy spending one’s time, 
generating demand for more 
comfortable seats. We then began 
a multi-pronged pursuit of comfort. 
One result of this pursuit was 
seat arrangement technology. 
We employed structural design 
technologies and a wealth of 
expertise to develop arrangements 
with various kinds of usability. 
TS TECH’s designs have earned a 
solid reputation among European 

automakers, who 
have long been 
leaders in 
the industry.

The Relentless Quest for Weight 
Reduction: The Honda (Acura) 
NSX Aluminum Seat Frame
Honda’s top-of-the-line sports car, 
the (Acura) NSX, debuted in 1990. 
Making the car lighter was essential 
to achieving its phenomenal 
performance. We worked to 
develop a seat frame that only used 
aluminum instead of steel, the 
conventional material used for 
seats. We experimented with 
processing methods, rustproo�ng 
technologies, and more. Our wealth 
of technical expertise resulted in 
seats that greatly reduced the 
weight of the vehicle. The same 
technology was utilized for the 
newest NSX seats to develop a 
frame that blends aluminum with 
cutting-edge materials.

Seat for the original Honda Super Cub

Honda T360 seat

Electronic devices
(Shown in blue)

Automated facilities 

1996 Honda Step WGN
Swivel seats in face-to-face mode

Honda 
(Acura) NSX seat 

Original model

New model

In 2004, TS TECH introduced a new 
cutting-edge dynamic sled testing 
facility to reliably reproduce car crash 
impacts. The facility was the �rst in 
Japan and just the fourth worldwide. 
Over 1,000 tests are conducted 
annually, and the safety assessment 
technologies have led to TS TECH’s 
seats receiving top-class 
safety assessments from 
vehicle safety assessment 
organizations around 
the world. 
 These assessment 
technologies are also being 
integrated into manned 
spacecraft technologies 
and used in cooperative 
research among industry, 
government, and academia.

A History of the TS TECH Group
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Main Products for 
Automobiles

Main Products 
for Motorcycles 

Main Types of 
Other Products

Front fender

Rear fender

Meter panel
Seat

Luggage box

Floor step

Radiator cover

TS TECH regularly conducts research and devel-
opment with a focus on safety, environmental, 
and attractive product technologies. For example, 
we pursued a comfortable, fatigue-resistant seat 
design, and the results of that research are reflect-
ed in our products through the TS TECH theory of 
a comfortable seated posture. We will leverage 
the unique technologies, such as those related to 
weight reduction and seat arrangement, we have 
refined through years of research to give us an 
edge as we compete with global mega-suppliers 
and continue to strive for further growth.

We pursue monozukuri (the art and science of manufacturing) as we strive to make world-
class products that continually exceed customer expectations. We are moving forward with 
efforts to achieve production that is both highly precise and highly efficient through automa-
tion. We understand that users see and touch our products, so instead of using a machine, 
each and every product goes through a strict final inspection by eye, ear, and hand.
 Through these efforts, we regularly receive high marks in multiple vehicle type categories 
in a survey of seat quality and satisfaction levels conducted by a U.S. market research firm.

In order to create a business structure able to withstand changes to 
the external environment, we have implemented rigorous develop-
ment and production measures including automated production 
lines to achieve high levels of efficiency. This gives us the basis of our 
current structure for high revenue.
 TS TECH has constructed a solid financial base, with operating 
income margins higher than the industry standard and a stable ratio 
of equity attributable to owners of parent to total assets. We use 
these resources to invest in technological developments to give us 
the competitive edge to compete worldwide.

In addition to selections as a constituent in ESG indices and a stock 
price index comprised of companies that are highly appealing to in-
vestors, our company has received high marks in the ESG Ranking 
conducted by Toyo Keizai Inc.

The TS TECH Group Today Fiscal year ended March 2018

For nearly 60 years, the TS TECH Group has been involved with the development and manufacture of 
seats and interior components for automobiles, seats and resin-based parts for motorcycles, and more. 
We offer a wide range of products related to seating that makes the most of our strengths, which include 
a wealth of techniques and specialized knowledge acquired over the years, a global network that spans 
14 countries around the world, and a highly efficient manufacturing process that takes advantage of  
regional characteristics.

Working toward Further Growth 
with Techniques and Knowledge 
Cultivated Over the Years

Note: Based on company research

Fiscal year ended March 2018

Automobile  
Seat Segment:
Number of Patents
2018

Automotive Interior  
Component Manufacturers: 
Consolidated Sales Scope
As of March 2018

Ranked in Four out of Seven Categories in a 2017 U.S. Seat Quality and Satisfaction Survey

Honda
Civic

Honda
Ridgeline

Honda
CR-V

Acura
RDX

2No. 3No. 9No.

Mass-Market 
Compact Car 
Segment: 2nd Mass-Market 

Compact SUV/
MPV Segment:

Luxury SUV 
Segment:

Mass-Market 
Truck/Van 
Segment:

%9.9 %13.4

World-Class Quality 

The Structure for High Revenue That Supports Our Growth Contributing to the Creation of a Sustainable Future

Front seat

Honda Step WGN seat

Mid seat

Rear seat

Honda NSX seat Honda Elysion seat
Note: Model for the Chinese market

Honda Civic 
Type R seat

Chairs for 
medical use

Seats for personal watercraft

Multipurpose 
off-road vehicle 
seats

Door trim

Ratio of Operating Income 
to Revenue

External Evaluations

Return on Equity

Toyo Keizai 
ESG Ranking92nd

 out of 1,413 

Overseas Locations
As of August 2018

46
Number of Companies

68
Number of Facilities

14
Number of Countries TS TECH set its sights on overseas manufacturing from an early 

date, expanding first to North America in 1977. Since then it has 
steadily expanded overseas to China, which boasts one of the larg-
est markets in the world, and other Asian countries, where further 
growth is projected. Taking advantage of the network we have built, 
we provide high-quality, appealing products to customers through-
out the world.

Our 14-Country Global Network

in Japan in Japan worldwide

2nd 3rd 3rd

companies
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April
2017 2018

May June July August September October November December January February March

Training that aims to enhance our pool of 
managerial candidates in Japan and overseas

71st Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

4th TS Camp

“Team SuP* Dream Honda,” comprised of 
18 parts suppliers for Honda motorcycles, 
competed in the race. The then-President 
and Representative Director, Michio Inoue, 
oversaw management of the team.
* SuP: A combination of the words “Supplier” and “Purchase”

Suzuka 8 Hours Endurance Race
40th anniversary race:
SuP Dream Honda’s �rst entry in the race We exhibited at this IR fair, which is a 

networking event for individual investors and 
listed companies held at Tokyo Big Sight. We 
also held a company information session.

Exhibition at the Nikkei IR/
Investment Fair 2017 We exhibited at the Tokyo Motor Show, held 

at Tokyo Big Sight. Seats exhibited included 
one proposed by young employees as a means 
to help resolve issues faced by society and one 
produced through cooperation between 
industry and academia.

Exhibition at the 45th Tokyo Motor Show 2017
We exhibited for the 6th time at this major 
employment event held in Boston, U.S.A. 
We focused on discovering individuals capable 
of playing an active role in global society.

Booth at the Boston Career Forum

Attended by the President, Senior Managing 
Directors, and Executive General Managers of 
each division in Japan, as well as persons 
responsible for ESG promotion. Future ESG 
management strategies were discussed.

ESG Management Kickoff Meeting

The 18 out of 1,069 circles that won regional 
preliminary matches around the world gave 
presentations on methods to improve production 
site issues. A team representing Thailand was 
awarded 1st prize at the convention.
* TC Circles: Quality improvement initiatives undertaken 

by small groups. See p.47 for more on TC Circles.

14th TC Circle* World Convention 2017

The concept for the new building is “highly 
ef�cient operations” and “superior 
hospitality,” ideal for a global head of�ce 
that serves as the nucleus of a group with 
operations in 14 countries. The building’s 
design also takes into account the environment 
and coexistence with the local community, 
earning it the top rank in Saitama Prefecture’s 
Comprehensive Assessment System for Built 
Environment Ef�ciency (CASBEE).

New Head Of�ce (Asaka) building completed

An Overview of Key Models 
Entering Mass Production

June 23

Financial results announcement and 
results brie�ng for the �scal year ended 
March 2017

April 28

Financial results announcement 
for the cumulative third quarter of the 
�scal year ended March 2018

January 31

On the heels of the establishment of a sales 
of�ce in Chongqing, China, we established 
a sales of�ce in Detroit, U.S.A. with the aim 
of doing business with the “Big Three” 
automakers. We will work together with 
existing sales branches to obtain new orders.

Newly established global sales branches

November

Financial results announcement for the �rst 
quarter of the �scal year ended March 2018

July 27

July 27–30 August 25–26 October 27–November 5

Commemorative ceremony and tree planting 
to celebrate the 40th anniversary of TRIC, 
established in 1977 as the Group’s �rst 
overseas location

TRI-CON INDUSTRIES, LTD. 
(TRIC) 40th anniversary ceremony

July 18

November 17–19

July 5

August 1

September 26

Financial results announcement and 
brie�ng for the cumulative second quarter 
of the �scal year ended March 2018

November 1 March 26

H
on

da

Suzuki

Kawasaki

Yamaha

Harley-Davidson

Japan

Americas

China

Europe/Asia

CBR400R
400X

X-ADV

N-WGN

Fit

Acura RDX (U.S.) Fit (Brazil)
Acura ILX (The Americas)

Ridgeline (U.S.)CR-V (U.S.)

Accord (North America)

CR-V

CR-V (Indonesia)

Civic Type R (U.K.)

Civic SI (North America)

City (The Philippines)

Mobilio (Thailand)

Jazz (Thailand)

Civic Hatchback (U.K.) Grazia (India)

Star Venture (Yamaha, U.S.)

Burgman 400 ABS (Suzuki)

Softail Slim (Harley-Davidson)

Street Bob (Harley-Davidson)

Fat Boy (Harley-Davidson)

Breakout (Harley-Davidson)

RM-Z450 (Suzuki)

Ninja H2 SX (Kawasaki)

Z900RS CAFE (Kawasaki)

Jazz (India)

Step WGN
Shuttle Odyssey

N-BOX SLASH

Legend

Grace

N-BOX

Odyssey (North America)

Civic

Super Cub 50

New model/Full model changeAutomobiles Minor model changeAutomobiles Automobiles: New models/Full model changes...7 models; Minor model changes...20 models
Motorcycles: New models/Full model changes/Minor model changes...25 models

New model/Full model changeMotorcycles Minor model changeMotorcycles

Received an outstanding supplier award at 
a purchasing conference organized by Honda China

December 19 China

Received an award for delivery performance 
at Honda Motorcycle and Scooter India’s 
19th motorcycle supplier conference

February 22 India

Received both a 20th anniversary golden contribution 
award and an outstanding supplier award at a 
purchasing conference organized by Honda China

January 24 China

Received awards for quality and delivery at 
Isuzu Philippines’ 14th Q.C.D. Awards Night 

March 2 The Philippines

Fat Bob (Harley-Davidson)

The Year in Review

The TS TECH Group stands on its own as a global supplier of interior components for automobiles, and, 
in line with its philosophy to be a company dedicated to realizing people’s potential, it is driven by a man-
agement structure that values people. We consider it our mission while conducting business activities to 
grow together with society and be a company sincerely welcomed by all stakeholders.
 Here, we will briefly introduce the main events and topics from the fiscal year ended March 2018.
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Revenue (Million yen)

Revenue (Million yen)

Revenue (Million yen)

Revenue (Million yen)

Operating Income
(Million yen)

Operating Income
(Million yen)

Operating Income
(Million yen)

Operating Income
(Million yen)

Summary of Consolidated Results for the Fiscal Year Ended March 2018

External Recognition

Results by Segment for the Fiscal Year Ended March 2018

93,552

FY2018

91,830

FY2017

224,867

FY2018

213,008

FY2017

121,266

FY2018

94,990

FY2017

76,041

FY2018

59,825

FY2017

9,653

FY2018

7,343

FY2017

1.4

Revenue
by Business

(%)

Motorcycles

Other businesses 1.2 Automobiles (seats) 85.4

Automobiles (other) 3.3
Automobiles (doors) 8.7

FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 FY2019
(Forecast)

392.7
345.5

410.0

257.0

196.2

473.4

301.1

235.2

Operating income

8.1
8.6

Income attributable to owners of parent

9.9

Operating income margin

9.8600

400

200

10

8

6

4

2

(100 million yen) (%)

0 0

23.5 Revenue 
by Region

(%)

China

Asia and Europe 14.7 Japan 18.2

Americas 43.6

10,189

FY2018

12,365

FY2017

24,644

FY2018

16,425

FY2017

8,083

FY2018

3,313

FY2017

Director, Executive General Manager, 
Corporate Business Administration Division

The TS TECH Group’s Business Operations

https://www.msci.com/msci-japan-
esg-select-leaders-index

WEB
https://www.jpx.co.jp/english/
markets/indices/jpx-nikkei400/
index.html

WEB

In the fiscal year ended March 2018, we recorded our 
highest ever revenue and profits due to the effectiveness 
of earnings recovery measures, as well as higher order 
volume from customers.
In addition to enhancing the financial standing of the global  
TS TECH Group, the Corporate Business Administration Division 
clarifies guidelines for the use of managerial resources (capital, 
funds) and provides support for continual business growth.

Atsushi Igaki

TS TECH has received high marks from various external institutions, such as those that operate ESG indices, by actively pursuing 
ESG-focused activities for sustainable social development. 

In this term, the 1st year of our 13th Medium-Term Management Plan, the Group pursued “sus-
tainable business growth,” “diversity management,” and “harmony with the social environment,” 
the three priority measures that support the plan’s management policy of the creation of a founda-
tion for ESG management. We addressed “sustainable business growth” by working to strength-
en our earnings structure and achieve sustainable growth through means such as new product  
development and greater expansion of sales beyond existing customers. In terms of “diversity 
management,” we are working to improve labor productivity by implementing work style reforms 
that incorporate local characteristics at all companies. With regard to “harmony with the social  
environment,” in addition to participating in environmental conservation activities and social con-
tribution activities, we also promoted measures to allow us to grow together with the surrounding 
social environment through means such as lower CO2 emissions and lighter products.
 In the consolidated results for the fiscal year under review, we saw higher revenue and in-
come due to compensation received in conjunction with the completion of our Guangzhou plant re-
location, higher order volume from major customers, and an improved model lineup composition.
 A decrease in revenue and income is anticipated for the consolidated results for the fiscal year 
ending March 2019 due to the impact of higher materials costs; higher labor costs stemming from 
production increases and wage increases; and the application of IFRS 15.

TS TECH is a constituent of the 
JPX-Nikkei Index 400, which com-
prises listed issues of companies 
with high appeal for investors. This 
marks our 6th consecutive selection, 
starting with the initial announce-
ment of the index and including the 
five subsequent annual reshuffles.

TS TECH was selected for the 2nd 
year in a row as a constituent of this 
index, which is comprised of compa-
nies in every industry with superior 
ESG-related initiatives. Constituents 
are chosen based on information  
disclosed by the companies them-
selves as well as independent re-
search conducted by MSCI.

TS TECH was selected as a 2018 
constituent of the SNAM Sustain-
ability Index, which is made up of 
300 companies selected by Sompo 
Japan Nipponkoa Asset Manage-
ment Co., Ltd. for their superior 
ESG-related initiatives.

TS TECH was selected as a 2018 con-
stituent for the Morningstar Socially 
Responsible Investment Index (MS-
SRI), marking its 5th consecutive year 
to be included. Morningstar selects 
150 companies with superior social re-
sponsibility from among companies 
listed in Japan and indexes their stock 
prices to compile the MS-SRI.

In the China segment, the Group launched production of seats for Honda’s 
new CR-V.  We implemented automation in each stage of production and more 
efficient in-plant logistics to create a high-efficiency production structure that 
can handle substantial production increases by major customers. Additionally, 
we established a sales office in the city of Chongqing in order to actively ex-
pand sales beyond existing customers to local Chinese automakers.

In the Japan segment, the Group launched production of seats for Honda’s 
new N-BOX as well as Honda’s new Civic. The Group’s newest integrated 
welding facilities were installed in conjunction with these new model launch-
es. We also worked to implement a highly efficient production system by  
undertaking production line reforms that make it possible to accommodate 
anticipated minicar seat production increases and future new model launches.

In the Americas segment, the Group launched production of seats for vehicles 
such as Honda’s new Odyssey and Honda’s new Accord in North America.  
We worked to make in-plant logistics more efficient and improve production 
efficiency by carrying out comprehensive production line reforms. We are also 
actively working to expand sales beyond existing customers and have  
received orders from a major European automaker and a major American mo-
torcycle maker. We established a sales office in Detroit,  U.S.A. to further ex-
pand sales to new customers.

In the Asia and Europe segment, the Group launched production of seats for 
Honda’s new Civic Type R in the U.K. and seats for Honda’s new CR-V in Indo-
nesia. Comprehensive reforms helped to eliminate temporary expenses  
incurred during the previous fiscal year. In-house production of seat compo-
nents and thorough cost-cutting measures at all locations helped to further 
improve profitability. Additionally, the supply of trim cover from a cutting and 
sewing subsidiary to other locations contributed to the cost competitive-
ness of the Group’s automobile seats.

China

Asia and Europe

Japan

Americas

Honda 
Accord seat

Honda N-BOX 
rear seat

Honda 
CR-V seat

Honda Civic 
Type R seat

JPX-Nikkei Index 400MSCI Japan  
ESG Select Leaders Index

SNAM  
Sustainability Index

Morningstar Socially  
Responsible Investment 
Index (MS-SRI)
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Financial and Non-Financial Highlights

billion¥479.4
We saw a 53.6 billion yen increase in revenue year-on-year 
due to increased orders from major customers, an improved 
model lineup composition, and the impact of exchange rates 
driven by a weaker yen.

Year-on-year %12.6+ Year-on-year %37.0+

Revenue

%13.4

We saw a 12.7 billion yen increase in operating income year-
on-year due to the impact of higher revenue, the elimination 
of temporary expenses incurred in the previous fiscal year, 
and receipt of compensation accompanying the completion 
of the Guangzhou plant relocation in China.

We saw an increase year-on-year due to 
factors such as a 10.4 billion yen increase 
in income attributable to owners of par-
ent, the numerator of the figure.

Year-on-year pt3.8+

Operating Income

Consolidated ROE

With a total dividend amount of 80.00 yen per 
share for the consolidated fiscal year under review, 
we have seen dividend increases for 6 straight 
years. We are working hard in order to continue to 
deliver stable shareholder returns in the future.

Annual Dividend

billion¥73.5
There was a 3.0 billion yen decrease 
year-on-year in tangible fixed assets.

Tangible Fixed Assets

in Japan

Overseas

787
481

The number of patents held increased by 
17 in Japan and by 40 overseas year-on-
year. We will continue to strive to develop 
technology with a competitive edge.

*  Results from a survey conducted by a 
U.S. market research firm

Number of Patents Held

t-CO2/unit0.0089
The CO2 emission intensity decreased 
0.0009 t-CO2 per unit year-on-year due to 
factors such as effective efforts to reduce 
CO2 emissions.

Year-on-year %9.1-

CO2 Emission Intensity

The number of employees for the fiscal 
year under review increased by 679 
(4.2%) from the previous fiscal year due to 
factors such as the need to handle higher 
order volume from major customers.

Percentage of Employees by Region

A U.S. Seat Quality and Satisfaction Study*

An Appeal Study*
m3605,893

Total water usage increased 28,824 m3 

year-on-year due to factors such as the 
need to handle higher order volume from 
major customers.

Year-on-year %5.0+

Total Water Usage

Total

Asia and Europe

17.5%

Japan

12.8%

Americas

48.8%

17,014
20.8%

China

straight years 
of higher dividends

6 Recognized in 
four categories

Our products were used 
in two top-ranked 

models

Financial Highlights Non-Financial Highlights

%2.5
While revenue increased by 12.6%, re-
search and development costs fell by 390 
million yen due to factors such as a change 
in the number of new model launches, re-
sulting in a decrease in points.

Ratio of Research and Development 
Costs to Sales

Year-on-year pt0.4-

%4-Year-on-year

billion¥47.3
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Managing Director, Development and Engineering Division
Executive General Manager

Yutaka Arai

TS TECH’s Value Chain

The Foundation of Our Corporate Values

n v i r o n m e n t a lE o c i a lS o v e r n a n c eG

Research
and

Development
P.23

Sales
P.24

Purchasing
P.25

Manufacturing
P.26

Quality Control

P.27

Beliefs A company dedicated to realizing people’s potential
A company sincerely welcomed by all

Create a system for world-leading quality

Become a world leader in 
component competitiveness

Establish a base for new customer relations

Use �nancial strategies to 
support business growth

Develop human resources to be 
promoted to management

Create measures to promote diversity

Practice environmentally conscious 
business activities

Conduct CSR activities

2030 A company whose presence is appreciated by stakeholders

INNOVATIVE QUALITY COMPANY2020
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Sustainable 
business growth1

Diversity 
management2

Harmony with the 
social environment3

TS TECH’s  
Value Chain  
and ESG
Management

Research and Development

Basic Policies on 
Value Creation

In our bid to become a world leader in 
component competitiveness, we take 
two main approaches to creating new 
value and technology: the pursuit of ap-
pealing products and the development 
of the fundamental technology required 
to produce them.
 When it comes to the pursuit of  
appealing products, we do not search 
for values that directly respond to the 
conventional needs of customers; rath-
er, we analyze and more deeply assess 
the connections between society and 
people. Through these efforts, we are 
working toward the creation of the soci-
ety of the future and pursuing the val-
ues that contribute to it. With respect to 
the development of fundamental tech-
nology, we have laid out an essential 
technology roadmap and are proceed-
ing strategically with the development 
of said technology.

We brought together forward-looking 
people from within the company with 
the aim of “formulating ideas that can 
help us compete globally and turning 
those ideas into distinctive, appealing 
products,” and the result was the Proj-
ect to Create Exciting, Attractive Prod-
ucts. Through collaborations with out-
side experts, we completed an inquiry 
into the creation of the society of the  
future, as well as what values and forms 
of appeal would be required for it, and we 
have reached the phase of considering 
actual products. In a separate project, 
young employees conduct research on 
seating and are involved in the proposal 
of seats of the future through the Za Lab 
project. We have showcased results 
from these projects at events like the  
Tokyo Motor Show.

Overview of Our Value Creation
Our Approach to Value Creation and 
Its Results

Measures to Create Appeal

Cultivating One-of-a-Kind  
Technological Capabilities

The Creation of One-of-a-Kind  
Technology

At the TS TECH Group, we 
are committed to reinforcing 
our environmental, social, 
and governance (ESG) initia-
tives based on the growing 
social expectations in areas 
such as resources, the envi-
ronment, and labor. 
 We proactively pursue 
ESG management through 
our sources of value crea-
tion: research and develop-
ment, sales, purchasing, all 
stages of manufacturing, 
and quality control.

• Develop appealing products that exceed customer expectations
• Create original technologies that contribute to a sustainable society
•  Greater application of technology and knowledge obtained through 

prior development
•  Further enhancement of strengths and steady reinforcement of  

weak areas 

Internal Environment

External Environment

S
O
W
T

Strengths

Opportunities

Weaknesses

Threats

•  Technologies to evaluate products’ market feasibility, 
safety performance, etc., and the development capacity to 
create appealing products utilizing the knowledge 
acquired through those evaluations

•  Development of projects dedicated to the 
creation of new appeal and value

•  Diversification of automobile interiors 
along with developments in automated 
driving technology

•  Evolution of electrical components and 
devices with the spread of EVs

•  Delays in self-manufacture of technology 
for functional components currently 
purchased

•  Intensification of the technological 
development race accompanying increased 
competition with mega-suppliers

•  Increasing complexity in the sphere of 
product assurance on an accelerated shift 
toward multi-purpose products

Our Group is moving forward with tech-
nological developments in line with a 
technological roadmap made based on 
surveys of global trends in laws and reg-
ulations, new technology, and more. In 

One result of our efforts to create ap-
peal was displayed at the 45th Tokyo Mo-
tor Show 2017 in the form of a reference 
exhibit for the Exer-Ride Seat. The con-
cept of “getting healthy just by sitting” 
attracted a great deal of interest from 
the media and general public alike. We 
use attendee surveys and on-site feed-
back to gauge user needs and affirm our 
courses of action.
 We also received attention for re-
search related to our Manned Space-
craft Seat Concept, a collaboration with 
JAXA that centered around safety tech-
nology, the Group’s area of specialty. 
Through this research we learned about 
many safety assurance technologies, 
such as new, lightweight materials, pro-
cessing technology, construction for 
shock absorption, and computer-aided 
engineering (CAE) technology. We will 
apply the results of our efforts to future 
product development.

recent years, we have incorporated the 
fundamental technology required for 
the aforementioned appeal into our  
research topics as we strive to create 
original, one-of-a-kind technology.
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Senior Managing Director (Representative Director), 
Sales Division Executive General Manager

Yoshiaki Yui

Sales Purchasing

If we take one reason for a company’s 
existence to be increasing its economic 
value, then the aim of business is to in-
crease sales. Gaining customers’ trust 
is the key to this goal, and there is no 
way to achieve that other than through 
striving to meet customers’ needs. For 
this reason, the most important role of 
all for sales, which stands on the front-
lines, is to convey to the entire Group 
not just overt needs but needs deduced 
at a deeper level by analyzing a wide 
range of information. Our Group can 
then provide customers with specific 
products that meet those needs as  
new forms of value.

Since our Group procures many compo-
nents needed for our products external-
ly, we must evolve toward—and main-
tain—a sustainable procurement frame- 
work based on favorable relationships 
with our business partners. Toward this 
end, we are developing activities such as 
close exchanges of information with our 
partners; joint development of appealing 
and competitive products; and CSR ac-
tivities including the reduction of envi-
ronmental impact throughout the supply 
chain and legal compliance. By imple-
menting ESG-focused purchasing that 
balances environmental, social, and gov-
ernance factors, we create value the 
world can appreciate.

In order to accurately ascertain the di-
verse needs of our customers around 
the world, our sales staff, primarily at 
overseas locations, sometimes use tar-
geting data collected from existing cus-
tomers to research their needs. When 
approaching new customers, they rely 
on unique targeting data that starts with 
analyses of the automobile market.
 Based on the results of those anal-
yses, we design products suited to cus-
tomers’ needs in a process of close co-
operation among various departments 
within our Group, including develop-
ment, quality control, and production. 
Furthermore, our sales people strive  
to offer a combination of original, one-
of-a-kind TS TECH Group ideas founded 
on a thorough understanding of the 
QCDDM capabilities at all locations and 
departments and values that match the 
needs of customers worldwide to win 
their confidence.

In order to strengthen partnerships with 
our business partners, we regularly hold 
briefings on purchasing policy at our lo-
cations around the world. Our purchas-
ing departments in 14 countries share 
our goals and how we aim to achieve 
them with key business partners in order 
to improve the supply chain. 

Overview of Our Value Creation Overview of Our Value Creation
Our Approach to Value Creation and 
Its Results

Our Approach to Value Creation and 
Its Results

Global Sales Proposal Efforts Stronger Partnerships with Our  
Business Partners 

Contributions to a Global Society

Creating a World-Class Sales Structure

Leveraging Industry Reform to Bolster 
Our Procurement Structure

Implementing ESG-Focused Purchasing

Utilizing a Global Purchasing System

•  Offer appealing products that exceed customer expectations at 
competitive prices

•  Permanently secure customers’ unwavering trust
•  Provide added value to customers in line with the changing times 

through the integration of regional and functional departments

•  Mutual trust built on fair, equitable transactions and best practices
•  Work together with business partners to strengthen their procure-
ment structures and create a sustainable supply chain

•  Joint CSR activities with business partners

Internal Environment Internal Environment

External Environment External Environment

S S
O O
W W
T T

Strengths Strengths

Opportunities Opportunities

Weaknesses Weaknesses

Threats Threats

•  Maintain production bases throughout the world and offer 
high-quality products

•  An evaluation system covering all areas of  
QCDDM, which supports stable 
management

•  An integrated system to promote planning of procurement 
spanning product development to mass production

•  A purchasing system that comprehensively manages price 
information from around the world

•  Close cooperative relationship with 
suppliers based on ESG-focused 
purchasing*1

•  Accelerating expansion of demand in 
emerging nations

•  Business field expansion through entry 
into mobility-related business, an industry outside  
our own

•  Increased usage of Japanese parts 
manufacturers by OEMs in Europe, the 
Americas, and China

•  Trends toward high functionality and high 
added value in interior components for 
automobiles

•  A high degree of dependence on a specific 
business model and insufficient 
independent growth

•  Lack of approach to the “smart mobility 
society” of the future

•  Overseas locations that have self-reliant 
purchasing capabilities 

•  Slowdown with restructuring of 
procurement framework

•  Low rate of growth for automobile 
demand in advanced nations

•  Changes to the profit-sharing structure 
due to the rise of smart mobility

•  Impact of trade friction on imports/
exports and the procurement environment

•  Various increased risks such as natural 
disasters, terrorism, and data breaches

Director, Corporate Purchasing Division 
Executive General Manager

Yoshikazu Ariga

Throughout the year, we offer stratified 
basic education through lecture cours-
es as well as on-the-job training, helping 
employees make the most of the 
knowledge they acquire. The goal is to 
take our human resources to the next 
level. We aim to maintain a robust global 
development system by fostering hu-
man resources who are able to respond 
immediately to customers’ wants in  
order to gain the trust of customers 
around the world.
 Additionally, Sales Division execu-
tives travel to the Group’s various loca-
tions to further mutual understanding 
by engaging in direct dialogue. These 
fresh exchanges contribute to greater 
results at a regional level.

The kind of automotive technological in-
novation said to occur once in 100 years 
is producing rapid advances in electrifi-
cation and automation, and this in turn is 
changing the framework of necessary 
components. As we continue to work 
with existing business partners to 
strengthen their structures, we are also 
scouring not only Japan but the globe 
for new technologically capable part-
ners. We will continue to bolster our 
procurement structure to translate 
changes into opportunities and increase 
value through new relationships.

The TS TECH Group designs CSR initia-
tives to realize continued growth as  
“a company sincerely welcomed by all” 
whose presence is appreciated by soci-
ety. With the help of our business part-
ners, we have established supply chain-
wide policies for environmental impact 
reduction and management of regulat-
ed chemicals, and have achieved solid 
results. Since the start of our 13th  
Medium-Term Management Plan, we 
have been working toward ESG-focused  
purchasing with an even greater bal-
ance of environmental, social, and gov-
ernance factors. To achieve this, we are 
incorporating initiatives such as reviews 
of our standards of conduct, promotion 
of best practices, and standardization of 
risk management. 

We have finished implementing a pur-
chasing system that comprehensively 
manages price information from around 
the world in Japan, the U.S., and China 
and our other locations in Asia. By using 
comparison and analysis of cost details 
at each of our locations, we can identify 
problems from the planning stage and 
rapidly develop policies to optimize cost 
and process sequences.

High-quality business activities result in 
contributions not just to customers but 
to society as a whole. Since customers’ 
product-related needs vary by region, 
unnecessary functions and compo-
nents will get rejected without even be-
ing used, which is a big loss for the envi-
ronment and for society. This is why we 
work so hard to offer products that sat-
isfy regional needs around the world.

*1 ESG-focused purchasing: Purchasing activities that take ESG factors into account

Basic Policies on 
Value Creation

Basic Policies on 
Value Creation
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Manufacturing Quality Control

It is necessary to enhance the composi-
tion of our manufacturing plants if we 
want to provide competitive, high-quali-
ty products. We are working to make 
the QCD framework more visible as a 
means to conduct quantitative analyses 
of each composition.
 Additionally, we promote “R” (un-
derlying technology) development top-
ics linked to product strategies from the 
Development and Engineering Division 
at our Engineering Center in our ad-
vancement of fundamental technology 
to gain a competitive edge with new 
models and prevail against the competi-
tion. We aim to secure the technology to 
prevail through our advances.
 We host global manufacturing 
technology meetings to provide a forum 
for networking and promote horizontal 
development among production bases 
worldwide. Since 2017, we have held 
these meetings at overseas locations 
as well as Japan.

In order to provide high-quality products 
around the world, we are developing 
policies to bolster our capacity for prod-
uct assurance, strengthen quality and 
reliability at production bases, and im-
prove the quality structure of business 
partners. These efforts all aim to earn 
additional trust from our customers.
 We strive to achieve stability in the 
manufacture of our products by devel-
oping quality standards that are consis-
tent from the development stage 
through production, and by employing 
feedback from the results of analyses of 
complaints from the worldwide market 
to specifications. We also use TC Circles 
to coordinate production site reform  
activities, leading to greater awareness 
of quality.
 We are working to raise the level of 
our quality structure at locations world-
wide based on the global quality stan-
dards ISO 9001 and IATF 16949*2.

We aim to earn greater access to global 
customers by creating a system for 
world-leading quality. In addition to 
helping locations acquire ISO 9001 and 
IATF 16949 certification, we are work-
ing hard to maintain and improve quality 
at all locations by verifying the status of 
rule implementations and promoting  
improvements through periodic QAV-1*3  
inspections.

“Delivering products that can be used 
safely and securely”—that is the role of 
the Corporate Quality Assurance Divi-
sion. We are working to raise the quality 
of our product manufacturing by shar-
ing analysis results based on worldwide 
market quality data with development 
departments and providing feedback 
for upcoming models. We also plan to 
work toward uniform quality control 
from development through production 
through means such as reflecting  
manufacturing requirements identified 
through fault tree analysis (FTA) and fail-
ure mode and effects analysis (FMEA)*4 
in our quality standards.

Overview of Our Value Creation Overview of Value Creation
Our Approach to Value Creation and 
Its Results

Our Approach to Value Creation and 
Its Results

Building a Stronger Global Quality 
Structure Providing Safety and Security  

to Customers

Achieving a Sustainable  
Manufacturing Environment

Raising the Entire Manufacturing QCD 
Framework to a Uniform Level

Deploying Advanced Technology

Offering Products with the Same High 
Level of Quality Worldwide

•  Offer competitive, highly reliable products by employing  
process-by-process quality assurance 

•  A “global mother plant” as a base for disseminating fundamental 
technology

•  Cultivation of global players able to compete worldwide

•  Earn additional trust from our customers by creating a system for 
world-leading quality

•  Stable provision of products with the same high level of quality 
worldwide

•  Provision of safety and security to customers

Internal Environment Internal Environment

External Environment External Environment

S S
O O
W W
T T

Strengths Strengths

Opportunities Opportunities

Weaknesses Weaknesses

Threats Threats

•  A QCD*1 structure that ensures a minimum of above-aver-
age QCD at all locations worldwide

•  Development of advanced production technology linked to 
fundamental technologies for future new products

•  A quality control and assurance system based on 
international standards

• Development of “TC Circles” worldwide

•  High ratings for several years in a U.S. initial  
quality survey

•  Greater market expansion in emerging 
countries

•  Increased orders from new domestic 
customers for seat frames

•  Increasingly sophisticated demands for 
quality assurance accompanying a trend 
toward multi-functionality in products

•  Diversifying customer demands for quality 
on expanding relations with new customers

•  Quality control for changes in manufacturing systems  
as typified by Industry 4.0*1

•  Still in the process of building a globally 
competitive structure by strengthening 
resilience measures*2 and advancing core 
manufacturing technologies 

•  Defective output from manufacturing 
processes due to weak points in global 
quality and structure

•  Defective output due to delayed 
responses to new model launches

•  Shortage of human resources with 
expertise in global quality assurance

•  Response to manufacturing fluctuations 
due to shrinkage and diversification of 
Japan’s market

•  Increased competition in markets in the 
Americas and China

•  Increased market problems and delivery 
defects accompanying globalization

•  Shrinkage of the workforce due to a 
declining birthrate and aging population

Managing Director, Manufacturing Division 
Executive General Manager

Akihiko Hayashi 
Operating Officer, Corporate Quality Assurance Division
Executive General Manager

Masashi Takezawa

We began development of a QCD 
framework assessment in 2004 primar-
ily in Japan and the Americas, and are 
currently working on its deployment in 
our China and Asia and Europe seg-
ments. Through efforts to foster trainers 
from the “mother country” Japan as 
well as strengthen follow-ups, we are 
seeing improvements in the framework 
at our locations.
 We also evaluate the composition 
of our locations using a uniform world-
wide standard by applying a “production 
structure index.” We are in the process 
of developing ways to make further day-
to-day improvements, including assess-
ing areas of weakness.

In terms of our seats, we are working on 
the evolution of fundamental technology 
to facilitate fully automated production 
of seat frames. After evaluating its use in 
mass production at our global mother 
plant, we will consider deploying the 
technology worldwide. 

It is the duty of global corporations to 
“provide high-quality products to cus-
tomers around the world.” A range of 
defects can occur with the advance-
ment of globalized production and local 
development. Striving to provide the 
same high level of quality worldwide, 
the Corporate Quality Assurance Divi-
sion issued a unified set of rules. This 
quality standards manual includes re-
quirements regarding standards, facili-
ties, work operations, and techniques. 

The Manufacturing Division is commit-
ted to environmental improvements 
and is making efforts to reduce CO2 
emissions at manufacturing facilities. 
We are striving to implement karakuri*3 
improvements so we can perform oper-
ations without using electricity. We also 
hold karakuri presentation conferences 
to foster new ideas and development 
driven by interaction among technicians 
from various locations.
 In addition to delivering higher profits 
and enhanced efficiency, we aim to create 
a sustainable manufacturing environment 
built on the principle of environmentally 
responsible manufacturing plants.

*1 QCD: Quality, Cost, and Delivery

*2  Resilience measures: Measures to create a financial structure that generates a certain amount of 
profit even when earnings drop

*1  Industry 4.0: A term referring to a technological strategy that the German government came up with 
in 2012. In Japan it is also called “The 4th Industrial Revolution.”

*3  Karakuri: Facilities that eliminate overburden, 
unevenness, and waste at production sites 
and make work more efficient without spend-
ing money by utilizing mechanisms such as 
the lever principle and linking equipment

 With respect to doors, we are 
working to implement rapid-cooling die 
casting to shorten the injection molding 
cycle and to modularize small compo-
nents in internal processes. We will also 
roll out an assembly line with fewer 
workers globally to reduce assembly 
man-hours.

Thanks to our stable provision of 
high-quality products, we have received 
high marks from our customers.

*4  FTA and FMEA are both analysis tools used to 
prevent product defects. 

*3 QAV-1 refers to a Quality Assurance Visit.

*2  International quality management system 
standards of the automobile industry

Basic Policies on 
Value Creation

Basic Policies on 
Value Creation
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The ISO 26000 Seven Core Subjects Summary Main 
Stakeholders

Period Covered by the Report (April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018)
Listed by Stakeholders Associated with the Seven Attitudes  

in the TS Guidelines for Conduct

Specific 
Initiatives

Effective from January 2019
Listed by the Relevant Requirements of the New TS Guidelines for Conduct’s Eight Requirements

Based on the management plan “Creation of a foundation of ESG management,” we revised the TS Guidelines for 
Conduct to fulfill our social responsibilities with the aim of further improving organizational strength and corporate value.

Organizational 
Governance

In order for organizations to fulfill their social responsibility, it is vital that they have 
a mechanism for effective decision-making to achieve their objectives and roles. 
Organizational governance is the foundation for an organization to fulfill its social 
responsibility. It requires communication with outside stakeholders as well as 
employees to reliably implement accountability and transparent decision-making, 
and to demonstrate leadership through action.

Shareholders,
employees,

administration

Our attitude 
toward 
shareholders

In order for the company to 
maintain a high degree of 
transparency, I actively disclose 
information in order to ensure a 
high degree of transparency in 
corporate management.

• Establishment of a 
corporate governance 
system

• Risk management
• Compliance

P.30

Compliance
TS TECH endeavors to foster “high ethical standards” and “a spirit of compliance,” both of 
which we hold as fundamental to corporate sustainability. As a member of the international 
community, we also conduct our corporate activities in compliance with international laws 
and regulations as well as socially accepted norms and rules.
Preservation of company assets and information
TS TECH will properly maintain and manage tangible and intangible company assets, which 
are valuable management resources, and use them actively and effectively. We will also not 
allow any activities in the interests of individuals or third parties which are contrary to the 
interests of TS TECH.
Proper information disclosure
TS TECH will deal with customers, business partners, shareholders, local communities, and 
other stakeholders fairly and sincerely, based on the spirit of fair disclosure, and will also 
properly disclose information in a timely manner and strive for a high degree of transparency 
in its corporate activities. We will also endeavor to enhance our corporate value by reflecting 
our stakeholders’ expectations and requests in our corporate activities, and by resolving any 
issues through constructive dialogue.

Our attitude  
while 
working for 
the company

In order for the company to be 
an entity of high ethical 
standards, I observe the compa-
ny rules and regulations faithful-
ly.

Our attitude 
toward 
administra-
tion

In order for the company to be 
strictly law-abiding, I abide by 
the law faithfully as a member of 
society.

Human Rights

In order to create a society in which all people are free from discrimination based 
on gender, age, ethnicity, and so forth, it is important that individuals be aware of 
human rights; respect the human rights of people inside and outside the 
organization; and take care not to infringe upon human rights either directly or 
indirectly. The organization must check to make sure its activities do not infringe 
upon human rights and that it has not created environments that might be 
conducive to human rights infringement. It is also important to have a mechanism 
for making improvements in the event that actions or environments that infringe 
upon human rights have been discovered.

Employees

Our attitude  
while 
working for 
the company

In order for the company to be 
non-discriminatory and fair to 
all, I act under the notion that all 
people are equal, while actively 
promoting mutual acceptance of 
individual personalities and 
differences among the people of 
the world.

• Reducing reputation 
risk by managing 
human rights risk

P.36
Respect for human rights and development of working environments
TS TECH will respect human rights, strive for equal employment opportunities free from 
discrimination, and not tolerate any kind of forced labor or child labor. We will also endeavor 
to create pleasant, rewarding, comfortable workplaces.

Labor Practices

Labor practices have a big impact on society and the economy in the sense that an 
organization creates jobs and maintains and improves the living standard of workers 
by paying wages. Based on the fundamental principle that “labour is not a 
commodity” (International Labour Organization (ILO)), organizations are asked to 
ensure equal employment opportunities for all workers, provide working conditions 
and an environment that are fair and ensure the health and safety of workers, and 
engage in public dialogues such as negotiations, discussions, and exchanges of 
information with representatives of government, employees, and workers.

Employees

Our attitude  
while 
working for 
the company

In order for the company to 
respond to the challenge of 
searching for new values, I 
take pride in my company and 
work and keep an open mind to 
everything.
In order for all people to be 
safe and comfortable at all 
times, I try to create a safe, 
healthy work environment.

• Building diverse 
workplaces, promoting 
work-life balance

The Environment

Modern society is faced with a number of environmental problems, and all 
organizations can be said to have some impact on the environment. In addition to 
complying with laws and regulations, organizations must take responsibility for the 
environmental impact caused by their actions. When the environmental impact 
exceeds an acceptable level, the organization is asked to bear the costs. It is also 
important for organizations to take preventive measures to minimize the impact on 
the environment as much as possible, even if that impact is uncertain.

General public

Our attitude 
toward the 
general 
public

In order for the company to 
actively promote environmen-
tal preservation, I actively work 
to protect the environment.

• Addressing climate 
change

• Promoting energy 
conservation

•Recycling

P.40

Contribution to the protection of the global environment
As a responsible member of society, TS TECH will not only comply with environmental laws 
and regulations but also strive for continuous improvement and enhancement of environmen-
tal protection activities through appropriate environmental management in order to contrib-
ute to the creation of a sustainable society. We will also focus on reducing environmental 
impacts throughout the entire product lifecycle through collaboration across the supply chain.

Fair Operating  
Practices

Issues related to fair operating practices necessary for an organization to fulfill its 
social responsibility include the prevention of corruption, responsible political 
involvement, fair competition, and respect for property rights. The foundation of 
fair operating practices for an organization is carrying out operations based on an 
ethical code of conduct. For this reason, organizations also ask their suppliers and 
other related organizations to practice ethical operations. It is important for 
organizations to strive to promote ethical behavior by society as a whole.

Suppliers
Our attitude 
toward 
suppliers

In order for the company to 
maintain a fair, sound relation-
ship with its suppliers, I deal 
with suppliers in a fair, sound 
manner.

• Supply chain manage-
ment P.44

Practice of fair, sound transactions
As an impartial, fair enterprise, TS TECH will respect free, fair competition, and will conduct 
sound transactions based on a relationships of trust with customers and business partners. 
We will also maintain sound relationships with politicians and government officials and have 
no dealings whatsoever with antisocial forces.

Consumer Issues

Organizations must take responsibility for the products and services they provide 
to avoid putting consumers in danger through the provision of products that have a 
safety defect. It is important that when consumers use those products and 
services they do not have an adverse effect on society, such as by causing 
environmental damage. It is also important to practice consumption in such a way 
that neither the organization nor consumers have an adverse effect on society.

Customers and  
end users

Our attitude 
toward 
customers 
and  
end users

In order for the company to 
provide customers and end 
users with a high degree of 
satisfaction, I always create 
projects from the customer’s 
viewpoint and then approach 
tasks from the customer’s 
position.

• Proposing products that 
fulfill needs

• Maintaining and 
improving quality 
control

• Developing products 
with advanced designs

• Developing health-con-
scious products

P.46
Provision of safe, comfortable, high-quality products and services
TS TECH will continue to create new value by always looking beyond the here and now, 
and will strive to provide safe, comfortable, high-quality products that are environmentally 
friendly and appealing in order to be “a company sincerely welcomed by all” whose presence 
is appreciated by its stakeholders.

Community Involve-
ment and Community 
Development

It is vital for organizations to communicate with the communities that they belong 
to, to be actively involved in community growth and revitalization, and to grow 
together with their communities. Organizations are required to participate and 
contribute in diverse ways, including the enhancement of dialogues with 
community residents or education and culture in the community, through their 
involvement in the community.

Local  
community

Our attitude 
toward the 
local 
community

In order for the company to 
take root in the local commu-
nity, I actively contribute to the 
local community as a member of 
the community.

• Improving brand value 
with cultural and 
nature-preservation 
activities

P.50
Harmony with society
TS TECH will endeavor to contribute to local communities and the international community 
through the provision of products and services and other corporate activities. We will also 
strive to maintain a harmonious relationship with local communities and fulfill the role 
society expects of us as a good corporate citizen.

ISO 26000 Core Subjects and the Seven Attitudes in the TS Guidelines for Conduct

The TS TECH Group carries out principles-based business operations in order to maintain good relation-
ships and grow together with all of its stakeholders. Below is an explanation of the association between 
the core subjects of social responsibility defined by ISO 26000 and the Seven Attitudes of TS TECH in the 
TS Guidelines for Conduct, as well as an overview of specific initiatives the Group is taking in relation to 
the core subjects.
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Name Reason for Appointment

Shizuo Kitamura
Mr. Kitamura’s abundant experience as a corporate manager qualifies him to provide valuable insight and advice related to our management practic-
es. We have determined that Mr. Kitamura has not at any time shared any business or fiduciary interests with the Group and that his appointment 
poses no risk of conflict of interest with shareholders.

Teruyasu Mutaguchi
Mr. Mutaguchi’s abundant experience as a corporate manager of a manufacturing company qualifies him to provide valuable insight and advice 
related to our management practices. We have determined that Mr. Mutaguchi has not at any time shared any business or fiduciary interests with 
the Group and that his appointment poses no risk of conflict of interest with shareholders.

Name Reason for Appointment

Tatsuya Motoda
Mr. Motoda’s abundant experience and broad knowledge as a tax accountant will enable him to contribute significantly to the maintenance of the 
Group’s health and strengthening of its auditing system. We have determined that Mr. Motoda has not at any time shared any business or fiduciary 
interests with the Group and that his appointment poses no risk of conflict of interest with shareholders.

Akira Kawashita
Mr. Kawashita’s broad knowledge and insight achieved through his experience with financial institutions and his work as a corporate manager will 
enable him to provide valuable support to our auditing system. We have determined that Mr. Kawashita has not at any time shared any business or 
fiduciary interests with the Group and that his appointment poses no risk of conflict of interest with shareholders.

Appointments of Outside Directors

Appointments of Outside Auditors

Governance System Diagram

The TS TECH Group works to enhance corporate governance in its pursuit of continuous 
business growth and improved corporate value. Our Board of Directors strives to practice 
highly diverse, transparent management through multifaceted viewpoints based on the 
respective expertise of each Board member, as well as the acquisition of knowledge from 
outside directors who are objective yet mindful of the characteristics of our business. Since 
2018, we have incorporated a third-party evaluation of the effectiveness of the Board, and 
we are progressively bolstering what we feel is a truly effective governance system appro-
priate for our Group. Our Group has named the creation of a foundation for ESG manage-
ment as a medium-term goal, and, based on reinforcements in this area of governance (G), 
we are developing new efforts related to environmental (E) and social (S) factors as we work 
to further improve corporate value and aim to be “a company sincerely welcomed by all.”

Statement on Organizational Governance

Organizational Governance

The TS TECH Group’s corporate philoso-

phy calls for a company sincerely wel-

comed by all, from its customers and 

shareholders to its suppliers, employ-

ees, and the community. The company 

recognizes that establishing corporate 

governance is an important step in fulfill-

ing its social responsibility and achieving 

sustainable growth and an increase in 

mid- to long-term corporate value.

 TS TECH endorses the Tokyo Stock 

Exchange’s Corporate Governance 

Code and has set the above basic poli-

cies accordingly.

introduced a system for electronic vot-

ing for the annual General Meeting of 

Shareholders held in June 2017. Efforts 

were also made to further improve the 

voting environment for all shareholders.

 With regard to Supplementary 

Principle 4.11.3 (Evaluating the Effec-

tiveness of the Board of Directors as a 

Whole), for which an “explain” approach 

was also adopted in 2016, we conduct-

ed a self-evaluation of effectiveness 

with a third-party in April 2018. With the 

results of this evaluation as well as 

changes to the role and function expect-

ed of the Board of Directors in mind, we 

are continually working to create a 

stronger governance system appropri-

ate for TS TECH from a mid- to long-term 

perspective.

 Basic Policies 
(1) Securing the Rights and Equal Treatment of Shareholders 

We respect the rights of all stockholders, who are important shareholders, and shall maintain an environment that ensures that 
all shareholders, including non-controlling interests, are treated equally and can fully exercise their rights.

(2) Appropriate Cooperation with Shareholders
We shall cooperate appropriately with all shareholders while working to achieve sustainable growth and an increase in mid- to 
long-term corporate value.

(3) Ensuring Appropriate Information Disclosure and Transparency
We shall actively disclose information in order to be a company sincerely welcomed by all of our shareholders, and we shall 
manage our business with transparency and good faith.

(4) Responsibilities of the Board
The Board shall take appropriate responsibility for the establishment of mid- to long-term management policies and oversight 
of directors, and it shall work to build systems to enable transparent, fair, and resolute decision-making.

(5) Dialogue with Shareholders
The company shall engage in constructive dialogue with shareholders and investors through the annual General Meeting of 
Shareholders and other avenues with respect to management principles and other issues as it works to achieve sustainable 
growth and an increase in mid- to long-term corporate value.

TS TECH’s financial and commercial  

activities are based on Japan’s Corpo-

rate Governance Code. TS TECH has 

carefully considered the content and 

spirit of each of the published principles 

of the Code in relation to the company’s 

goals of achieving sustainable growth 

and increasing mid- to long-term corpo-

rate value. TS TECH mandates a “com-

ply” approach with respect to each of 

these principles.

 With regard to Supplementary 

Principle 1.2.4 (The Creation of an Infra-

structure for Electronic Voting), for 

which an “explain” approach was adopt-

ed in 2016, TS TECH is now in compli-

ance with this pr inciple,  having  

A Board of Directors
The Board of Directors comprises 14 
directors, including two outside directors. 
It convenes at least once per month in 
principle. The Board of Directors makes 
decisions regarding management policies, 
important management issues, and matters 
mandated by laws and regulations. It also 
supervises the execution of the company’s 
operations.
 The outside directors are elected based 
on their wealth of professional experience 
because they will be consulted regarding 
management policies and important 
company decisions.

B Executive Committee
It comprises the company’s three 
representative directors. It conducts 
preliminary deliberations on such matters 
as resolutions to be put to the Board of 
Directors, and, within the scope of the 
authority assigned to it by the Board of 
Directors, discusses important matters 
relating to the execution of the duties of  
the directors.

C Executive General Managers Committee
It comprises directors and other members. 
It discusses matters relating to the policies, 
planning, and control of each business 
division’s overall operations to enhance 
efficiency of management.

D Regional Management Committees
They comprise directors and other 
managers in the Americas, China, and Asia 
and Europe, and deliberate on important 
matters affecting management in their 
respective regions.

E Board of Auditors
It comprises four members, including two 
outside corporate auditors. Each corporate 
auditor audits the directors’ execution of 
duties in accordance with the audit policy 
determined by the Board of Auditors 
through attendance at important meetings 
such as meetings of the Board of Directors, 
various examinations, and the regular 
exchange of opinions with the directors.
 Outside corporate auditors are elected 
to utilize their professional experience 
outside of TS TECH and to make audit 
functions even more objective and 
independent.

Basic Policy on 
Corporate Governance

Compliance with the Corporate 
Governance Code

Chairman & CEO, 
Representative Director

Michio Inoue
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Organizational 
Governance

Risk Map

The TS TECH Group has established a 

sound corporate governance system. It 

includes sharing the TS Philosophy, a 

policy on corporate governance, and a 

three-year medium-term management 

plan throughout the Group. Affiliated 

companies also have their own effective, 

efficient corporate governance systems 

that are based on the laws of their  

respective countries and their respec-

tive businesses.

 Important management issues at 

affiliated companies must be reported 

to and approved by TS TECH in advance 

based on the standards stipulated by TS 

TECH. Affiliated companies must also 

report business plans, sales results, 

and financial status as well.

 Furthermore, affiliated companies 

participate in routine compliance and 

risk verification measures known as the 

TSCG self-verification system. This en-

sures that the entire TS TECH Group 

acts as one in promoting compliance 

and reducing risk.

 TS TECH’s internal audit depart-

ment conducts audits of affiliated com-

panies and works with internal audit  

departments set up at the head offices in 

each region to enhance the internal audit 

structure of the entire TS TECH Group.

Emergency response training A regular meeting on compliance with 
revisions to various nations’ import/
export laws and regulations (Above)

On-site inspection of 
security conditions for 
the management of 
import/export cargo, 
etc. (Below)

In accordance with provisions in the 

Companies Act, TS TECH passed a reso-

lution on the basic policies of its internal 

control system at a Board of Directors’ 

meeting held in May 2006. 

 Since then, the Board of Directors 

has reviewed the implementation of 

this system each fiscal year and passed 

resolutions on changes to this policy as 

necessary.

 Additionally, in accordance with 

the Financial Instruments and Exchange 

Act, the TS TECH Group has established 

an internal control system to ensure the 

reliability of its financial reporting. The 

effectiveness of this system is main-

tained by regularly evaluating improve-

ments and operations and taking cor-

rective actions when necessary.

The TS TECH Group has formulated the 

TS Guidelines for Conduct, which lay out 

the rules that executive officers and 

employees must follow during their du-

ties. Efforts are being made to instill in all 

employees a thorough understanding of 

these guidelines and the TS Philosophy.

 A director is appointed as a Com- 

pliance Officer in order to promote  

compliance initiatives, and steps  

are continually taken to prevent legal  

violations before they occur through 

regular TSCG self-verifications and  

deliberations of important ethics and 

compliance issues by the Ethics and 

Compliance Committee.

 We have established a whis-

tleblower hotline called the TS Corpo-

rate Ethics Compliance Consultation 

Office, which enables employees to 

bring issues before compliance officers, 

who respond with rapid, effective inves-

tigations and corrective guidance in the 

event of a problem. The Office handles 

approximately 15 complaints per year, 

and its continuous availability has been 

effective in resolving internal issues and 

maintaining compliance.

The TS TECH Group’s tax policy aims to 

fulfill the appropriate tax obligations and 

social responsibilities, minimize tax 

risks while maintaining transparency, 

and contribute to the development of 

the communities in which the Group 

operates. In order to achieve these ob-

jectives, the Group has established the 

TS TECH Group Tax Policy based on the 

TS Philosophy.

Important management issues are 

carefully deliberated upon by TS TECH’s 

Executive Committee as well as various 

advisory committees. Through these 

discussions, TS TECH makes every ef-

fort to avoid and mitigate business risks.

 In addition, a Risk Management 

Officer is appointed from among the 

Representative Directors and placed in 

charge of risk management. The Global 

Risk Management Committee, com-

prising directors and other officers, has 

been set up to deliberate regularly on 

the results of TSCG self-verifications 

and discuss responses to serious risks 

affecting management, ensuring that 

efforts are continually made to mitigate 

potential risks.

 Throughout the fiscal year ended 

March 2018, TS TECH continued to work 

on mitigating the possibility of an inter-

ruption in the supply of parts, a latent 

risk within the Group’s supply chain. 

Additionally, in Japan, we have worked 

to provide emergency response training 

based on crisis management regula-

tions, manuals, etc., to ensure that 

damage can be minimized and opera-

tions normalized as early as possible in 

the event of a crisis.

 Findings obtained through TSCG 

self-verifications are shared with inter-

nal auditors so that they can be applied 

in risk approach auditing.

Operation of an Internal 
Control System

Compliance Framework

Tax Policy

Risk ManagementGroup Governance System

 TS TECH Group Tax Policy 
(1) Tax Governance

The Group positions the reinforcement of tax governance as one of the most important management issues. This policy was approved by TS 
TECH’s Board of Directors, and the Board of Directors bears final responsibility for tax governance.

(2) Compliance
The Group works to promote and instill awareness of compliance among its employees. This enables the Group to comply with and always en-
sure the correct understanding of tax laws and regulations, etc., in each country and region in which it operates, and to meet the appropriate tax 
declaration and tax payment obligations.

(3) Tax Planning and Tax Havens
The Group will determine investment and business activities according to its business objectives and economic rationality. The Group will avoid 
tax planning that is not in line with business purposes or operations, as well as tax activities that use tax havens.

(4) Transfer Pricing
The Group will abide by international tax frameworks such as the OECD Transfer Pricing Guidelines and the Base Erosion and Profit Shifting (BEPS) 
Action Plan, and it will strive to ensure tax transparency. International transactions between Group companies will comply with the OECD Transfer 
Pricing Guidelines, and transaction prices will be determined based on the arm’s length principle.

(5) Minimal Tax Risk
The Group will conduct the appropriate accounting and tax measures in accordance with the tax systems and tax administrations of each specific 
country and region. In the event of complicated, unclear tax matters, the Group will consult in advance with external experts and tax authorities 
to minimize tax risks.

(6) Relationship with Tax Authorities
The Group will provide timely, accurate information to tax authorities in each country and region in order to reduce tax risks, and it will respond in 
good faith to maintain trust and good relations.
This policy was approved by TS TECH’s Board of Directors on July 31, 2018.
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Anticipating improved corporate value based on business opportunities and risksV O I C E

SENIOR MANAGING 
DIRECTOR

Hitoshi Yoshida
Joined TS TECH Co., Ltd. in 1981
Senior Managing Director, TS TECH Co., Ltd.
Asia and Europe Executive General Manager,
Chairman of TS TECH ASIAN CO., LTD.,
TS TECH BANGLADESH LIMITED, and 
TS TECH UK LTD

DIRECTOR

Atsushi Igaki*1

Joined TS TECH Co., Ltd. in 2016
Director, TS TECH Co., Ltd.
Corporate Business Administration
Division Executive General Manager *1  Former General Manager of Regional 

Operations Planning Office (Japan) at 
Honda Motor Co., Ltd.

*2 Outside Auditor

AUDITOR (Full-Time)

Akihiro Miyota
Joined TS TECH Co., Ltd. in 1976
Auditor, TS TECH Co., Ltd.

CHAIRMAN & CEO
(Representative Director)

Michio Inoue
Joined TS TECH Co., Ltd. in 1977
Chairman & CEO (Representative Director),
TS TECH Co., Ltd.

MANAGING DIRECTOR

Koichi Mase
Joined TS TECH Co., Ltd. in 1979
Managing Director, TS TECH Co., Ltd.
China Executive General Manager,
Chairman and President of
TS TECH (HONG KONG) CO., LTD.

DIRECTOR

Yoshikazu Ariga
Joined TS TECH Co., Ltd. in 1990
Director, TS TECH Co., Ltd.
Corporate Purchasing Division Executive
General Manager

AUDITOR (Full-Time)

Senzo Yamazaki
Joined TS TECH Co., Ltd. in 1979
Auditor, TS TECH Co., Ltd.

SENIOR MANAGING
DIRECTOR
(Representative Director)

Yoshiaki Yui
Joined TS TECH Co., Ltd. in 1980
Senior Managing Director (Representative 
Director), TS TECH Co., Ltd.
Management Supervision, TS TECH Co., Ltd.
Sales Division Executive General Manager,
Risk Management Officer

MANAGING DIRECTOR

Akihiko Hayashi
Joined TS TECH Co., Ltd. in 1978
Managing Director, TS TECH Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing Division Executive General
Manager

DIRECTOR (Outside Director)

Shizuo Kitamura
Senior Advisor at Resona Business Service
Co., Ltd.
Director, TS TECH Co., Ltd. (2015–present)

AUDITOR (Part-Time)*2

Tatsuya Motoda
President of Motoda Tax & Accounting Office
Auditor, TS TECH Co., Ltd. (2014–present)

PRESIDENT
(Representative Director)

Masanari Yasuda
Joined TS TECH Co., Ltd. in 1982
President (Representative Director),  
TS TECH Co., Ltd.
Quality Assurance Supervision, TS TECH Co., Ltd.

MANAGING DIRECTOR

Yutaka Arai
Joined TS TECH Co., Ltd. in 1982
Managing Director, TS TECH Co., Ltd.
Development and Engineering Division
Executive General Manager

DIRECTOR (Outside Director)

Teruyasu Mutaguchi
Technical Advisor at Biko, Inc.
Director, TS TECH Co., Ltd. (2016–present)

AUDITOR (Part-Time)*2

Akira Kawashita
Joined TS TECH Co., Ltd.
Auditor, TS TECH Co., Ltd. (2016–present)

SENIOR MANAGING
DIRECTOR

Minoru Maeda
Joined TS TECH Co., Ltd. in 1979
Senior Managing Director, TS TECH Co., Ltd.
Americas Executive General Manager,
Chairman and President of
TS TECH AMERICAS, INC.

MANAGING DIRECTOR

Kenichi Hasegawa
Joined TS TECH Co., Ltd. in 1982
Managing Director, TS TECH Co., Ltd.
Officer in Charge of New Business Development,
Chairman of TS TECH Deutschland GmbH

SENIOR MANAGING 
DIRECTOR

Yoshitaka Nakajima
Joined TS TECH Co., Ltd. in 1982
Senior Managing Director, TS TECH Co., Ltd.
Corporate Administration Division
Executive General Manager,
Compliance Officer,
Officer in Charge of Public Relations

Directors

Auditors

Institutional investors are increasingly relying not only on financial data but also ESG-related 
matters and other non-financial data when making investment-related decisions. This is be-
cause their thought is that, with the possibility of social issues influencing a company’s busi-
ness model or competitive edge, investment in companies making appropriate ESG-based 
efforts will lead to increased mid- to long-term operating revenue and reduced risk. In the 
automobile industry, specifically in the seating field that is TS TECH’s business domain, it is 
imperative to address social issues such as the environment and safety.
 TS TECH is working to create a foundation for ESG management, which I anticipate will 
lead to an approach to business opportunities and risks that will improve corporate value.

The TS TECH Group has long worked to create products through a focus on safety, the environment, and appeal. We aim to im-
prove our corporate value by delivering products that will always be welcomed with joy by our customers and addressing social 
issues. In addition, we feel that in today’s automobile industry, which is said to be in a period of transformation, offering not merely 
profitability but also new value that contributes to the creation of a sustainable society will lead to further business opportunities.
 We are working to further grow corporate value through the incorporation of an ESG perspective into our medium-term 
management plan and policies that show awareness of ESG in all areas from management to manufacturing.

Response

Asset Management Division,  
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation

Akiko Daimon

TS TECH actively promotes communi-

cation with shareholders and individual 

investors. We issue numerous publica-

tions, including the “Notice of the Annu-

al General Meeting of Shareholders” 

(issued before each shareholder meet-

ing) and the “Movement” report (pub-

lished after our mid-term earnings an-

nouncement; in Japanese only). We also 

facilitate interaction through events 

such as the General Meeting of Share-

holders, information sessions for indi-

vidual investors, and exhibitions at  

investor relations (IR) events, as we 

work to further understanding about the  

TS TECH Group.

TS TECH creates opportunities to com-

municate with institutional investors in 

and outside Japan. In the middle and at 

the end of every fiscal year, we hold fi-

nancial results briefings for institutional 

investors and analysts where TS TECH 

executives talk about business plans, 

performance, and corporate news. Our 

department in charge of IR conducts 

one-on-one interviews and holds small 

meetings every quarter and partici-

pates in conferences and conference 

calls as well. We also hold inspection 

tours at our production and develop-

ment facilities to educate people about 

the TS TECH Group.

FY2018 
Number of attendees at events 
for individual investors: 533

FY2018 
Total number of meetings with 
companies: 262

Organizational 
Governance

Company information session for individual investors Development facility tour for institutional investors

Men: 18  Women: 0  (Percentage of women among Board members: 0.0%)

The TS TECH Group promptly and fairly 

discloses accurate corporate informa-

tion to its stakeholders, including our 

shareholders and other investors. To this 

end, TS TECH has established a disclo-

sure policy that is observed by all TS 

TECH officers and employees.

 When disclosing information, we 

observe laws and rules concerning time-

ly disclosure. Even when these provi-

sions do not apply, we adopt a proactive 

approach to the disclosure of informa-

tion deemed useful and appropriate to 

our stakeholders.

 Our primary means of disclosing 

information include press releases and 

TDnet (Timely Disclosure Network)*, 

managed by the Tokyo Stock Exchange. 

This information is also posted on TS 

TECH’s website.

Disclosure Policy Communication with Shareholders 
and Individual Investors

Communication with 
Institutional Investors Directors and Auditors (As of June 22, 2018)

*  A service that gathers timely disclosure re-
leases of all listed companies, etc., throughout  
Japan and disseminates that information to in-
vestors and other users in real-time

Administration Department
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FY2016 9

FY2017 8

FY2018 9

FY2016 FY2017 FY2018

Number of employees
by gender

Male 1,529 1,529 1,543

Female 180 181 180

Total 1,709 1,710 1,723

Average years
of service

Male 15.8 15.9 16.0

Female 14.1 14.4 15.1

Total 15.6 15.7 15.9

2015
Hires

2016
Hires

2017
Hires

Number who entered  49 56  52

Number who left 3 0 0

Turnover rate 6.1% 0.0% 0.0%

Note:  Figures are totals of the number of graduates of high 
schools, technical colleges, and institutions of higher 
learning.

Human Rights and Labor Practices

One of the TS TECH Group’s beliefs is “a company dedicated to realizing people’s poten-
tial.” We maintain respect for people, the decisive factor in our company’s continuous 
growth, by promoting a high level of awareness of human rights through our TS Philosophy 
education, and we strive to provide environments that are safe, secure, and comfortable 
for all employees. Furthermore, people are the source of new value creation, so we believe 
that it is essential to have an open mind when cultivating and protecting outstanding hu-
man resources to maintain and improve our global competitiveness. To practice diversity 
management, the 13th Medium-Term Management Plan promotes the further creation of 
frameworks tailored to each region’s perspectives to leverage diversity and enable each 
employee to fully demonstrate his or her individual characteristics and capabilities.

The TS Guidelines for Conduct (see page 

29) prohibit discrimination against em-

ployees based on factors such as place 

of birth, nationality, beliefs, religion, 

gender, race, ethnicity, age, health, med-

ical history, personal tastes, educational 

background, and social standing. The 

guidelines also discourage the use of 

expressions or words that are discrimi-

natory in nature or could be construed as 

such.

 A “concept manual,” an instruction 

manual explaining the concepts underly-

ing the Guidelines, is distributed to all 

employees, and training is conducted to 

ensure that everyone clearly under-

stands the importance of respecting hu-

man rights. Overseas Group companies 

use this manual as a basis for developing 

their own educational approaches that 

reflect local culture, customs, and laws, 

and for deepening each employee’s un-

derstanding of human rights awareness.

 In accordance with our TS Philoso-

phy, we conduct fair hiring practices.

Studying abroad as a student introduced me to a wide range of values, which broadened my hori-
zons and led to my interest in diversity. I want to promote diversity while also working to create an 
environment where women can feel even more comfortable doing their work. This is why I have 
served as a member of TWC since my second year with the company.
 Through TWC, I have had more opportunities to speak with people from other workplaces 
both in Japan and overseas. I have also been able to enjoy a wide range of experiences such as 
planning and devising policies and proposing them directly to management. In the future, I want 
to use my experience with TWC to proactively engage in work from a broader perspective in my 
normal tasks as well.
 Also, as a member of TWC I am able to be directly involved with the company’s important 
policies, which gives me a real sense there are equal opportunities for everyone.
 Comprised of members of different ages and departments, TWC is actively working on a vari-
ety of different policies, making the most of its members’ individual characteristics. We have been 
actively exchanging information with overseas locations since 2017 and aim to propose policies 
that will contribute to the promotion of diversity throughout the TS TECH Group.

Statement on Human Rights and Labor Practices 

I aim to promote diversity to create environments where women can feel even more 
comfortable doing their job.

V O I C E

Number of Human Rights Training 
Sessions (Non-consolidated)

Major Personnel Data (As of March 31; Full-time employees only) (Non-consolidated)

TWC is an entity that plans and formu-

lates policies to ensure that the voices  

of a diverse group of female employees 

FY2016 FY2017 FY2018

2.051.73
2.15

3.00

2.00

1.00

(%)

0

FY2016 FY2017 FY2018

0.660.66
0.55

1.00

0.75

0.50

0.25

(%)

0

Percentage of Managers Who Are Women (%)
(Non-consolidated)

FY2016 FY2017 FY2018

3.00

2.00

1.00

(%)

0

Designated employment rate (2.0%)

2.272.38 2.30

Percentage of Employees with a Disability (%)
(Non-consolidated)

Percentage of Employees Who Are Non-Japanese (%)
(Non-consolidated)

Tekuteku Kids Day Care, an on-site day care center 

Hiring pamphlet about women in  
the TS TECH workplace

TWC Report,  
a regular feature  
in the company 
newsletter 

through an annual employee satisfaction 

survey and facilitating dialogue between 

the Human Resources Department and 

young employees. One example of our 

efforts is diversity management training 

for managers and general managers. We 

are working to develop an environment in 

which our diverse group of employees 

can make the most of their respective  

individual knowledge, experience, and 

abilities in order to thrive.

Conduct at the TS TECH Group is based on 

a principle from the TS Guidelines for Con-

duct that states that employees “act under 

the notion that all people are equal, while 

actively promoting mutual acceptance of 

individual personalities and differences 

among people of the world.” Respect for 

diversity is a key component of our busi-

ness strategy and an idea that we vigor-

ously promote. We strive to build work-

places where everyone—in particular, 

female, disabled, and foreign employ-

ees—can thrive, so we implement mid-  

to long-term policies to support non- 

discriminatory employment and working 

conditions. We also undertake long-term 

efforts to develop our overseas workplac-

es so that they integrate well within the 

countries in which they are located.

 In addition, we are working to pro-

mote an understanding and awareness of 

diversity, gathering a wide range of opin-

ions through a variety of methods such as 

gauging diversity-related awareness 

The TS TECH Group believes that people 

are the decisive factor in a company. It is 

part of the company’s management policy 

to “create a vibrant workplace, respecting 

consensus and communication among 

people.” TS TECH is, thus, striving to cre-

ate safe, comfortable workplaces.

Turnover Rate: Employees Who Leave 
Within 3 Years of Hiring

are heard in order to further improve 

their motivation and satisfaction. TWC 

members, employees chosen from each 

domestic location, then propose these 

policies to management. They make 

proposals that are tied to the develop-

ment of personnel systems and work-

place environments that leverage diver-

sity so that everyone can actively 

participate, and these proposals may 

then be adopted.

 Specific initiatives aimed at creating 

“a company where everyone can thrive” 

have included the creation of maternity 

uniforms, the establishment of an on-

site day care center, and the creation and 

distribution of child-rearing support 

handbooks.

We feel that a diverse group of personnel is what will provide the drive to support the further growth of the TS TECH Group, 
so we have adopted diversity management as a priority measure under our 13th Medium-Term Management Plan. To have a 
diverse group of personnel actively participating will help accomplish the Group’s goals as well as promote future growth for 
individuals. We will continue to work with TWC to develop environments in which each individual employee has even more 
opportunities to put his or her respective skills to use.

Fostering a Greater Awareness of 
Human Rights Diversity Initiatives

The TS Women’s Committee (TWC)

A Company Dedicated to Realizing 
People’s Potential—Part of the  
TS PhilosophySenior Managing Director, 

Corporate Administration Division
Executive General Manager

Yoshitaka Nakajima

Purchasing Department 2,  
Corporate Purchasing Division, 
TWC Secretariat Member

Yuki Endo

Response Human Resources Department

36 TS TECH Report 2018 TS TECH Report 2018 37



FY2016 FY2017 FY2018

Practical training 
sessions for risk 
assessment *

23 36 22

Mental health 
seminars 57 52 78

*  Other companies: Manufacturing industry average (from the Min-
istry of Health, Labour and Welfare’s industrial accident statistics)

Frequency rate:  Expresses the frequency of accident oc-
currences as the number of deaths and in-
juries due to industrial accidents per million 
hours worked

Severity rate:  Expresses the degree of severity of an ac-
cident as the number of working days lost 
per thousand hours worked. However, this 
is limited to industrial accidents causing 
one or more days of lost working days.

FY2016 FY2017 FY2018

1.151.06 1.02
1.25
1.00
0.75
0.50
0.25

TS TECH’s frequency rate Other companies’ average
frequency rate

0 0.000.00

0.51

FY2016 FY2017 FY2018

0.07
0.06

0.08

0.125
0.100
0.075
0.050
0.025

TS TECH’s severity rate Other companies’ average
severity rate

0 0.00 0.000.00
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Rank Company Name 3-Year Average 
Usage Rate (%)

FY2017 Usage 
Rate (%)

3-Year Average 
No. of Days 

Granted (Days)

1 Honda 99.6 98.4 19.3

2 TS TECH 99.5 99.4 18.5
3 Keihin 99.1 100.0 19.2
4 Aisin Seiki 98.2 98.9 19.4
5 Toyota 97.4 102.3 19.9

In addition to our general efforts to cre-

ate workplaces offering favorable labor 

conditions and supportive working envi-

ronments, TS TECH is also focused on 

raising employee awareness about the 

importance of maintaining an appropri-

ate work–life balance. Toward this end, 

we have implemented various mea-

sures—such as offering childcare leave, 

caregiving leave, and shortened working 

hours, as well as opening an on-site day 

care facility—to allow for a work–life bal-

ance and to accommodate the various 

work styles that accompany the differ-

ent needs at different stages of life. 

 To help support paid-vacation use 

and accommodate a range of lifestyles, 

we began allowing a limited number of 

half-day vacations in 2011 and raised 

this limit from 4 to 12 half-days per year 

in April 2016. The system enables us to 

Conducting Employee Satisfaction Surveys

We conduct an employee satisfaction 

survey annually at TS TECH. The survey 

assesses job satisfaction, workplace 

atmosphere, the depth of education 

provided, inter-organizational commu-

nication, and more. Through these sur-

veys, we gauge levels of satisfaction 

with the company from a broad, diverse 

range of perspectives.

 By regularly conducting the survey 

to identify and improve issues, we aim 

not only to increase employees’ motiva-

tion but also to improve organizational 

strength.

Talking with the Union

The company regularly communicates 

and consults with the TS TECH Workers’ 

Union in a mutual effort to improve labor 

conditions and the workplace environ-

ment, and to promote a better work–life 

balance. 

TS TECH conducts work safety and 

health activities based on an occupa-

tional safety and health management 

system (OSHMS), and its basic safety 

and health policy is based on the con-

cept that “Our Group makes ‘safety’ the 

highest priority in our business activi-

ties based on the belief of being ‘a  

TS TECH has created its own unique 

training system to cultivate human re-

sources based on two types of training: 

rank-specific training that is tailored to 

years of service or position, including 

Mid-Level Training (Fifth-Year Training for 

Employees) and New Manager Training; 

and selective training, where employ-

ees are placed into courses, such as the 

TS Camp or TS Trainee programs, based 

on their current level of expertise.

 As a company that conducts busi-

ness  i n  va r i ous  count r i es  and  

regions, TS TECH considers the TS Phi-

losophy an important shared founda-

tion, and we are currently working to 

disseminate it not only at TS TECH but 

also at our overseas subsidiaries.

At TS TECH, labor and management have worked together to successfully prevent any cuts to 
carried-over paid vacation since fiscal 1998. We also work to simultaneously promote appro-
priate approaches to work and to reduce overtime. Since we have made constant efforts to 
consult with the labor union beforehand when overtime looks to exceed designated limits and 
mutually determine its necessity, there is a keen awareness about overtime at the company.
 In 2018, we adopted a flextime system to improve labor productivity. In order for employ-
ees to make the most effective use of work time, we decided not to establish any core time; 
one hour or more of work in a day is considered attendance for the day. Since adopting the 
system, we have held hearings with managers at each workplace to examine how it is being 
used, the amount of overtime, etc., and we are involved in ongoing efforts to ensure that em-
ployees will be able to utilize the system even more effectively. We aim to further improve labor 
productivity using the flextime system by once again publicizing how to use it and expanding 
the scope of eligible employees. We will continue to work to practice diversity management 
by constructing policies and systems that enable employees to work to their fullest.

Comparison with Other Companies of Industrial 
Accident Circumstances (Non-consolidated)

In-House Training Sessions: Number of 
Attendees (Non-consolidated)

Aiming to further improve labor productivity by adopting a flextime systemV O I C E

Education and Training Programs

company dedicated to realizing peo-

ple’s potential.’” A top-down internal 

structure continually performs a plan–

do–check–act (PDCA) cycle aimed at 

achieving three goals: injury prevention, 

better employee health, and a more 

comfortable workplace environment.

 Specific initiatives include risk as-

sessment, kiken yochi training (KYT; 

hazard prediction training) and hiyari- 
hatto (near-miss reporting) activities*, 

which we conduct at all business sites. 

Taking countermeasures like these in 

anticipation of potential workplace risks 

helps prevent work accidents. We have 

also held training sessions led by lectur-

ers from the Japan Industrial Safety and 

Health Association annually since 2007, 

helping to enhance the skills of risk 

management advocates (safety offi-

cers, production site managers, etc.)

 Also, with respect to health, we 

have affiliations with mental health spe-

cialists and offer stress checks pre-

scribed by Japan’s Industrial Safety and 

Health Act. We have a system in place in 

which any employees experiencing 

mental health issues can work with 

company staff to promptly receive care 

Human Rights and  
Labor Practices

Toyo Keizai: “Most Flexible Paid Leave”*1—The Top 300 Companies*2

*1  Usage rate: Percentage taken = (Total number of days taken / Total number of days available) x 100 (%)
*2  300 Companies: The 300 companies were selected from the 1,174 companies that published their paid leave usage 

rates in the 2018 edition of the “Directory of CSR Corporations (Employment/Human resources application version).”
Excerpts from “The Latest! Ranking of the 300 Companies with the Highest ‘Percentage of Paid Leave Utilization’” (Toyo 
Keizai Online, Feb. 20, 2018) 
(Data attribution) “Directory of CSR Corporations (Employment/Human resources application version)” 2018 edition 
(published by Toyo Keizai Inc.)

Training session for risk assessment

further address the diverse needs of 

employees in a range of different life 

stages. As a result of this action, TS 

TECH has placed second since 2017 in a 

ranking by Toyo Keizai Inc. of the 300 

companies with the most flexible paid 

leave (please refer to the lower left chart 

notes for ranking methodology).

Flextime System

In January 2018, TS TECH adopted a 

flextime system with no core time. We 

aim to improve labor productivity by di-

versifying work styles and encouraging 

employees to create balance in their 

work schedule.

 Improved labor productivity driven 

by efficient time allocation and diversi-

fied work styles that make it easier, for 

instance, to balance work with childcare 

or caregiving, are among the anticipated 

outcomes of the adoption of this sys-

tem. This will contribute to an improved 

work–life balance. Six months after its 

implementation, 57% of employees 

were utilizing the system and overtime 

in departments that have adopted the 

system was down roughly 5% from the 

previous year.

 We are also moving forward over-

seas with work-style reforms tailored to 

regional characteristics to facilitate work 

styles and conditions that take advan-

tage of diversity. This is one way the en-

tire Group will work together to raise la-

bor productivity. Spearheading this 

effort is TS TECH AMERICAS, INC., 

which also adopted a flextime system in 

June 2018.

from outside specialists. We also con-

duct internal seminars to promote prop-

er understanding of mental health.

*  Hiyari-hatto (near-miss reporting) activities: Safety- 
minded activities regarding incidents in which no  
accident actually occurred, but involved parties report 
the near-misses; from the Japanese hiyari (feeling a  
sudden chill) and hatto (having one’s breath taken away)

*  Seminars held for company employees. We have held 
“Risk Assessment Training Regarding Specified Chemi-
cal Substances” since fiscal 2017 as well.

Human Resources Development Communication with Employees

Promoting Occupational  
Safety & Health

Work–Life Balance

General Manager, 
Human Resources 
Department

Ryo Sakakibara

FY2016 FY2017 FY2018

54.9

35.7

64.2
80

40

(%)

0

Percentage of Employees Using Half-
Day Vacations (%) (Non-consolidated)

Kurumin mark Eruboshi mark
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The Environment

Every year, each TS TECH site creates 

an audit program based on factors such 

as the extent of its environmental im-

pact and past ISO 14001 audit results. In 

addition, TS TECH conducts an internal 

environmental audit once a year to re-

duce environmental impact, comply 

with environmental laws and regula-

tions, and confirm that ISO 14001 stan-

dards are being applied. We promote 

swift, proper correction of deficiencies 

and non-compliance items detected in 

audits, aiming to improve our environ-

mental management.

TS TECH launched an Environmental Ex-

perts Committee in 2015 to promote CO2 

*  Per unit: Signifies levels of CO2, waste emitted, 
and water used, based on company standards, 
in conjunction with production in the course of 
our business activities

Our Group is promoting environmental 

management system ISO 14001 certifi-

cation not just in Japan but at all of our 

facilities around the world. We are unit-

ed in our efforts to continuously reduce 

the burden on the environment. Effec-

tive from fiscal 2019, our Group will 

adopt the energy management system 

ISO 50001 with the aim of further cur-

tailing the amount of greenhouse gas 

emissions such as CO2. Going forward, 

we will continue with efforts to bolster 

our environmental management not 

only to reduce the burden on the envi-

ronment but also to decrease costs by 

improving resource efficiency.

We are working toward the TS TECH 

Group goal of cutting CO2 emissions by 

1% per unit* of production by gathering 

information in each field on the impact on 

the global environment in connection with 

our business activities.

 Basic Environmental Policy 

In the interest of protecting 
the global environment, the TS 
TECH Group will work to reduce 
the environmental impact of all 
aspects of its corporate activities, 
especially the production of interior 
components for automobiles,  
and help create a sustainable 
society, aiming to be “a company 
sincerely welcomed by all,” which 
is one of the beliefs enshrined in 
the Group’s philosophy.

 Environmental Action Plan 
(1) Compliance with Legal and Other Requirements

Strive to prevent environmental pollution and protect biodiversity and ecosystems primar-
ily through compliance with requirements, such as environmental laws and regulations 
and environmental standards, and proper chemical management. 

(2) Reduction of Environmental Impact
Aim to mitigate the impacts of climate change and realize a sustainable recycling-based 
society by striving to save energy and resources through collaboration across the supply 
chain, based on life cycle assessments that cover all stages in the product lifecycle, from 
development through sourcing, production, logistics, marketing, disposal, and reuse.

(3) Continuous Improvement of Environmental Management
Endeavor to continuously improve environmental and energy performance by setting 
environmental targets based on environmental and energy management systems, and 
regularly reviewing them. Provide the information and management resources needed 
for such improvement and also work toward the utilization of products and equipment 
that will improve energy efficiency.

Environmental Impact Domain

Product
Development
Technology

• Design products with a lighter weight and improved recyclability
• Do not use materials containing regulated chemicals
• Employ energy-saving and resource-saving equipment and 
 process design

• Employ energy-saving and resource-saving manufacturing
• Control and reduce the amount of volatile organic 
 compound (VOC) emissions into the atmosphere
• Continue to maintain zero emissions
• Promote proper disposal and recycling of industrial waste

• Improve distribution ef�ciency
• Promote green purchasing

Manufacturing
Management

Purchasing
Distribution

Environmental Protection Efforts
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Waste materials

Environmental Impact of Business Activities and Environmental Initiatives

emission reduction measures at its de-

velopment and production sites. Since 

2015, we have also been developing our 

own “energy-saving professionals” by 

attending seminars organized by the En-

ergy Conservation Center of Japan and 

strengthening our development of per-

sonnel who specialize in energy conser-

vation at production sites. Learning not 

only the basic concepts of energy con-

servation but also detailed facility man-

agement methods leads to opportunities 

to create more efficient measures. We 

will continue with these types of environ-

mental education initiatives moving for-

ward, using highly knowledgeable, expe-

rienced personnel to convey initiatives 

throughout the entire Group.

With its global operations, the TS TECH Group is aware that initiatives to address environ-
mental issues, including the reduction of CO2 emissions, are a corporate obligation.  
Under the 13th Medium-Term Management Plan, we are working toward the creation of  
a foundation for ESG management and moving to further strengthen environmental 
management by promoting Group-wide ISO 14001 certification, as well as adoption of 
other standards such as ISO 50001 in fiscal 2019. Additionally, amid the shift toward EVs, 
weight reduction is said to hold the key to increasing energy efficiency and driving dis-
tance. Our Group is helping to improve the environmental performance of vehicles  
by balancing the contrasting performances of safety, which protects people, and weight 
reduction, which protects the environment. With continuous growth as a company  
sincerely welcomed by all, whose presence is appreciated by everyone, we are helping 
achieve a sustainable society. 

Statement on the Environment

TS TECH has established and continues to work toward targets to reduce environmental impact with respect to CO2, waste, and 

water. We have also been working to develop emissions-reduction initiatives throughout the TS TECH Group*1 since 2017 under our 

13th Medium-Term Management Plan. Our focus is on reducing the level of CO2 emissions and waste output per unit of production.

Environmental Targets and Achievements (Figures for CO2 and waste are consolidated while those for water are non-consolidated)

Item
FY2018 FY2019

Targets Measures Results Degree 
Achieved*2 Targets Measures

CO2

Basic unit per vehicle
1% lower than FY2017
FY2017 performance:
0.0098 t-CO2/vehicle

•  Shift to energy-saving production 
equipment

•  Promote a shift to LEDs
•  Shift to energy-saving air-conditioning
•  Shift to energy-saving power generation
•  Shift to hybrid company vehicles

Basic unit per vehicle
9.1% lower than FY2017
FY2018 performance:
0.0089 t-CO2/vehicle

○
Basic unit per vehicle
1% lower than 
FY2018

•  Shift to energy-saving production 
equipment

•  Promote a shift to LEDs
•  Shift to energy-saving air- 

conditioning
•  Shift to energy-saving substation 

facilities
•  Shift to hybrid company vehicles

Waste

Basic unit per vehicle
3% lower than FY2017
FY2017 performance:
0.0023 t/vehicle

•  Promote recycling
•  Reduce product defect rate

Basic unit per vehicle
11.8% lower than 
FY2017
FY2018 performance:
0.0020 t/vehicle

○
Basic unit per vehicle
3% lower than 
FY2018

•  Promote recycling
•  Reduce product defect rate
•  Reduce packaging materials

Water

Basic unit per vehicle
Lower than FY2017 
performance
FY2017 performance:
0.117 m3/vehicle

•  Conserve water at all worksites
•  Inspect water supply equipment for 

leakage

Basic unit per vehicle
3% lower than FY2017
FY2018 performance:
0.113 m3/vehicle

○
Basic unit per vehicle
Lower than FY2018 
performance

•  Conserve water at all worksites
•  Inspect water supply equip-

ment for leakage

*1 We are working to deploy reduction efforts at 37 locations (including some unconsolidated companies) selected using internal standards.
*2 With regard to the degree achieved, ○indicates achieved; △ indicates 90% achieved; and × indicates less than 90% achieved.

Environmental Conservation Cost (Non-consolidated) (Unit: Million yen)

Fiscal 2018 Environmental Accounting

Category Main Efforts
FY2016 FY2017 FY2018

Investment Cost Investment Cost Investment Cost

Business area cost

Pollution prevention 
cost Prevention of air, water, and soil pollution, etc. 30 5 12 11 34 14

Global environmental
conservation cost

Prevention of global warming and ozone depletion and other environ-
mental preservation efforts 153 36 187 38 748 116

Resource circulation 
cost Recycling, waste treatment and disposal, and water-saving efforts 3 36 31 53 28 97

Upstream/downstream cost Costs generated from purchasing low environmental impact products 
and raw materials 19 – 26 – 26 9

Administration cost EMS development & operation costs, environmental measurement 
costs, office interior “greening” and development costs 56 42 49 54 29 38

R&D cost
Research and development of new technology with a high positive 
environmental impact, such as reducing the weight of products, re-
ducing VOCs (not using paints), and developing recyclable materials

– 3,935 – 3,859 – 2,952

Social activity cost Environmental measures such as nature protection, “greening,” and 
scenery preservation – 9 – 4 – 4

Environmental remediation cost Remediation of soil pollution, etc. – – – – – –
Total 261 4,063 305 4,019 865 3,230

1) Period covered: April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018
2) The above figures include portions ascertained by estimation, such as apportionment.
3) Materials related to environmental accounting, such as guidelines and guidebooks published by the Ministry of the Environment of Japan, were referenced when preparing the spreadsheet.
4) Costs do not include depreciation costs.

Environmental Impact of Business 
Activities and Environmental Initiatives

Main Environmental Targets and Results in Fiscal 2018 and Targets for Fiscal 2019

Internal Environmental Audits Initiatives to Strengthen  
Environmental Management

Environmental Education

Senior Managing Director, 
Corporate Administration Division
Executive General Manager

Yoshitaka Nakajima
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Development-Focused Measures

Efforts to Reduce Product Weight

The TS TECH Group understands that re-

ducing the weight of our products is one of 

the most effective ways in which we can 

reduce our impact on the environment. 

For our seat frames, which account for a 

great deal of the weight of the products 

that we handle, we introduced a “mini-

mum design,” which reduces the number 

of parts while considerably improving 

safety and comfort. With each model 

change we reduce frame weight by at 

least 10% over the previous model.

 We are also keeping an eye on the 

future, anticipating a wider availability of 

carbon-based, aluminum, and other ma-

terials that currently have high price 

points and even considering technology 

that fuses different materials. We are 

working to develop frames that will be the 

lightest in the world but do not compro-

mise safety or utility. The TS TECH Group 

will not simply use lighter materials; it will 

use the optimal designs for those materi-

als and conduct research and develop-

ment at state-of-the-art facilities to cut out 

even a single extra gram.

Production-Focused Measures

With a policy to “build production plants 

that are sincerely welcomed by the local 

community,” the environment is a matter 

domestic Japanese production sites in 

fiscal 2017.

Installing Environmentally Friendly Equipment

In line with international efforts to  

reduce the impact on the global environ-

ment, such as the regulations of the  

Minamata Convention on Mercury and 

the CFC emission controls set forth in 

the Montreal Protocol, we are moving 

forward with efforts to remove mercury 

lamps, switch from fluorescent bulbs to 

LEDs, and replace equipment that uses 

R-22 CFCs. These efforts began Group-

wide in fiscal 2018, and we aim to com-

plete them by March 2020 in conjunction 

with the end of our 13th Medium-Term 

Management Plan.

Green Ecosystem Conservation Activities

The TS TECH Group conducts forest and 

biodiversity preservation activities in re-

gions around its business facilities in  

Japan and overseas. These efforts are 

driven by the concept of creating new 

green spaces from company grounds 

borrowed from the earth for the TS TECH 

Material Effects (Non-consolidated)

The Environment

We have been conducting “TS TECH Forest of Relaxation”*1 activities together with TS TECH’s 
Suzuka Plant since 2012 as a part of its forest conservation efforts. This particular forest was once 
used as a “village forest,” but it became overgrown due to lack of maintenance.
 In order to return it to its previous state, we have worked with volunteers from TS TECH each 
autumn to thin the forest, plant trees, and maintain walking trails. Local residents are delighted 
that what had been a dense overgrowth of trees now looks well-maintained and inviting. Small 
birds such as white-eyes and great tits visit the forest, and the mountain cherry trees we planted 
have grown big enough to blossom, so it looks like we will be able to follow through on the affor-
estation declaration*2 we made at the beginning of our efforts.
 Village forests are named so precisely because of the relationship they have with people. If 
they are untended, they will quickly become overgrown and unmanageable, so ongoing mainte-
nance is necessary. Starting this year, we will expand our efforts to include matsutake mushroom 
hill reclamation projects and conduct new types of maintenance, so we look forward to being able 
to continue to work with TS TECH on forest conservation projects.

This year will be our seventh working with NPO Morinokaze on these activities. Through our annual work maintaining this 
village forest in Kuwana City, it has been cleaned to the point that it is perfect for walks.
 The “TS TECH Forest of Relaxation” activities we hold once a year receive positive feedback annually and enjoy partici-
pation from roughly 100 volunteers, including employees and their family members. We feel that these activities have con-
tributed, even if just a little, to a concern for and interest in forest conservation. We hope to continue to maintain this village 
forest and raise awareness of forest conservation in partnership with it.

I hope to continue working with TS TECH to protect village forests.V O I C E

FY2016 FY2017 FY2018

Energy consumption GJ 199,561 195,543 204,698

Water consumption 1,000 m³ 71 78 87

CO2 emissions t-CO2 9,999 9,945 10,340

CO2 emissions due to 
transportation t-CO2 1,946 1,611 1,868

Total waste output t 1,009 1,004 1,068

VOC emissions t 33 31 34

PRTR emissions t 54 49 4

Economic Effects (Non-consolidated)
(Unit: Thousand yen)

FY2016 FY2017 FY2018

Gain on sale  
of valuables 5,163 6,587 9,232

Cost saved  
by energy
conservation

12,689 8,950 13,093

Total 17,852 15,537 22,325

its environmental aspects. A solar power 

generation system and other energy- 

saving fixtures have helped cut the 

amount of electric power purchased by 

approximately 40% compared to the old 

office building, and efforts have been 

made to reuse rainwater for general  

service water, increase the amount of 

greenery on the premises, etc. In terms 

of environmentally conscious architec-

ture indexes, the building has received a 

5-star rating in the BELS*1 energy-saving 

performance certification as well as the 

top “S” rank in the CASBEE*2 environ-

mental performance rating.

 Also, an on-site digital signboard 

displays the building’s target values for 

electric power, gas, and water use along 

with details of actual use in real-time, en-

couraging employees to be mindful of 

saving energy.

Disclosure of Science Based Targets (SBT)*1 

Information

The TS TECH Group is working to achieve 

global ESG management as part of its 

efforts to contribute to the creation of a 

sustainable society, sought by people 

around the world. One priority measure 

to help achieve this is “harmony with the 

social environment.” We are working to 

promote business activities that will cre-

ate even more environmentally friendly 

products. However, manufacturing 

products that contain a great number of 

components means that we procure 

components from a wide range of sup-

pliers. We, therefore, believe that the 

entire supply chain must work together 

as one, and we make relevant calcula-

tions based on the Scope 3 standard.*2

 Also, with respect to SBT that con-

tribute to the long-term, universal goal set 

forth in the Paris Agreement of “keeping  

the increase in global average temperature  

to well below 2 °C above pre-industrial lev-

els,” we participate in projects sponsored 

by the Ministry of the Environment and 

are working to meet long-term targets to 

reduce CO2 emissions. Although we rec-

ognize that it is no easy task to achieve the 

goals of both continually expanding our 

business and making considerable reduc-

tions in CO2 emission levels, we are work-

ing hard to contribute to the sustainability 

of the whole planet.

Verification of Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

TS TECH has received third-party verifi-

cation* from SGS Japan Inc. in order to 

reliably disclose environmental data.

 The scope of verification covers 

Scope 1 and 2 (CO2 emissions from  

energy) as well as Scope 3 (Category 1: 

procurement of raw materials and com-

ponents) standards and uses data for 

GHG emissions at TS TECH’s seven  

*1 TS TECH Forest of Relaxation: A private forest on the outskirts of Kuwana City
*2  Suzuka Plant’s afforestation declaration: We endeavor to work with local communities to help coexist with nature and to develop forests that pave the way for the future 

in order to protect the environment and restore biodiversity and natural habitats.

of great importance to our Manufacturing 

Division, which oversees our production 

plants. Accordingly, our Manufacturing 

Division aims to contribute to a recycling- 

oriented society and promotes efforts  

to build “people-friendly, environment- 

friendly production plants.” A specific ex-

ample of this is our improvement of the 

production environment through the use 

of Japan’s traditional karakuri mecha-

nisms. These mechanisms enable us to 

simultaneously save energy, reduce work-

loads, and improve production efficiency 

through the promotion of a plant-wide 

framework that aims to automate work 

without consuming energy.

 In 2017, we held the 1st Karakuri  
Presentation Conference at our Saitama 

Plant with the aim of encouraging addi-

tional reforms and improvements. We 

also host “karakuri networking events” 

where production plants and suppliers 

from both Japan and overseas can share 

and provide information. This has helped 

increase environmental awareness 

among our employees.

Management-Focused Measures

TS TECH’s new Head Office building, 

completed in March 2018, features a  

design that is both environment- and 

people-friendly through its concept of 

“highly efficient operations” and “supe-

rior hospitality.” This is most apparent in 

Group to conduct its business activities 

around the world and giving greenery 

back to the earth through environmental 

preservation activities.

 One of the fruits of these efforts was 

the receipt of an Excellence Award at the 

17th Saitama Environmental Excellence 

Awards*1 in February 2016. This award 

was the result of high marks for the “TS 

TECH Afforestation Program,” a joint ef-

fort by the TS TECH Head Office and the 

Saitama Plant. We actively conduct tree 

planting, tree thinning, and leveling at 

each of our other sites as well. We have 

also participated in the Green Wave 

Movement*2 since 2012. Moving for-

ward, we will continue to conduct addi-

tional activities on an ongoing basis.
Efforts to Reduce Our  
Environmental Footprint

1st Karakuri Presentation Conference

*1  BELS: A third-party evaluation of the energy- 
saving performance of newly constructed 
and existing buildings based on the Ministry 
of Land, Infrastructure, Transport and Tour-
ism’s guidelines for indicating the energy 
consumption performance of buildings

*2  CASBEE: A method to comprehensively eval-
uate a building’s level of quality with regard to 
its environmental friendliness, such as mate-
rials that save energy or reduce environmen-
tal footprint, as well as factors such as inter-
nal comfort and external aesthetics

*1  Science based targets (SBT): Long-term targets for 
the reduction of CO2 emissions that are based on 
scientific grounds

*2  Scope 3: The amount of CO2 emissions produced 
indirectly by a business, such as in the supply chain

*  Please consult our website for a statement con-
cerning verification.

NPO Morinokaze
Tatsuhiko Sakurai

Response Administration Department, Suzuka Plant

*1  Awards are bestowed upon individuals, orga-
nizations in the prefecture, and businesses 
that set an example through environmental 
initiatives to promote public environmental 
awareness and eco-friendly behavior.

*2  Actions by groups and organizations that 
lead to an understanding or increased pub-
lic awareness of biodiversity through contact 
with forests, trees, etc.
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We continue to forge a path ahead as a global supplier for TS TECH.V O I C E

The TS TECH Group’s products are made 

from a wide variety of materials and com-

ponents provided by its suppliers. In order 

to reliably offer quality products at com-

petitive prices to our customers, solid 

partnerships with our suppliers are indis-

pensable.

 The Group has established the Four 

Principles of TS Procurement, explained  

below, to ensure fair, just transactions as 

well as to construct and maintain win–win 

relationships with suppliers globally. By 

following these principles, we aim to con-

struct a procurement and purchasing sys-

tem that can be relied upon by all stake-

holders.

The TS TECH Group continually strives to 

facilitate communication with its suppli-

ers to share relevant information about its 

procurement strategies and policies. The 

Group also holds regular conferences 

with major suppliers—in principle, once 

per year—to exchange information and 

explain the strategies and policies pur-

sued by the Corporate Purchasing, Devel-

opment and Engineering, and Corporate 

Quality Assurance divisions.

 The Group also holds discussions on 

ways to anticipate and manage a wide 

range of risks—such as those related to 

market conditions, exchange rates, pro-

duction fluctuations, and natural disas-

ters—as we work to design methods to 

ensure flexible, reliable procurement. The 

Group treats all suppliers fairly and impar-

tially, and it also provides systematic  

support for technology, quality, and cost to 

help leverage each supplier’s specific 

strengths. The Group is reviewing its sup-

ply chain in a concerted effort to mitigate 

and prevent potential supply risks. The 

Group has devised and distributed a 

self-evaluation check sheet to suppliers to 

help reduce the risk of fires and accidents.

 Moreover, supply chain manage-

ment is a vital element in the creation of a 

foundation for ESG management, a key 

goal for the management policy during our 

13th Medium-Term Management Plan. In 

fiscal 2019, we will establish guidelines for 

supplier conduct and keep working with 

our suppliers to raise corporate value.

In addition to procurement of existing 

items such as presses, urethane, plastics, 

and sewn products, the TS TECH Group is 

working to address growing demands 

from manufacturers of finished vehicles 

for electrical components and wiring. 

Since mineral resources are necessary for 

manufacturing electrical components and 

wiring, the Group is currently focused on 

strengthening its mineral management 

system.

Supplier conference

into the legality of individual events.

 TS TECH has created mechanisms 

that allow relevant departments to liaise 

with the department responsible for  

legal affairs and consult as needed with 

attorneys on events that cannot be  

definitively decided based solely on the 

manual. Moreover, TS TECH provides 

proper, appropriate training on the Anti-

monopoly Act and the Subcontract Act  

in accordance with its stratified training 

programs to foster awareness of compli-

ance among employees.

 In March 2016, the Group issued new 

anti-corruption guidelines and anti-cartel 

guidelines as part of its continuing effort to 

build a solid framework for ensuring fair, 

honest business operations across all 

Group operations.

The TS TECH Group’s basic policy for inter-

nal control requires individual officers and 

employees to diligently avoid any type of 

relationship with antisocial groups that 

can threaten a safe, orderly civil society, 

 Four Principles of TS Procurement 
(1) Fair Trade

When selecting a supplier, we offer our business to several candidates irrespective of their nationality, size, 
or past transactions and finalize our choice in a fair manner by comprehensively evaluating their ability to 
offer superior quality, expertise, price, delivery, and other elements, as well as competitiveness, rationality, 
efforts for business security and other relevant matters.

(2) Mutually Beneficial Transactions
We share with our trade partners business challenges such as development and competitive pricing, set 
goals from a common perspective, and conduct joint efforts to achieve targets. We afford the highest pri-
ority to mutually beneficial transactions in terms of results thus obtained and make continuous efforts to 
strengthen trust as the basis of mutually beneficial relationships.

(3) Environmental Responsibility
In our corporate activities, we attach the greatest importance to global environmental preservation under 
all circumstances. Accordingly, we practice “green purchasing,” granting preference to environmentally 
responsible products, services, companies, etc.

(4) Legal Compliance and Confidentiality
We respect the principle of legal compliance and thoroughly observe relevant laws and regulations and 
generally accepted norms. We handle with the greatest care all kinds of information obtained from our cus-
tomers and trade partners and make the utmost effort to prevent the loss or misuse of such information.

Fair Operating Practices

The automotive industry, to which the TS TECH Group belongs, has connections to a wide 
range of industries, and its value chain has an immeasurable impact on society. Precise-
ly for that reason, as a manufacturer of automotive interior components, not only do we 
feel that it is important to fulfill our obligation to reliably and continuously provide pleas-
ant, attractive products that are safe, we also believe that it is crucial to remain a company 
trusted by society for its fair operating practices. In order to be a group whose directors 
and employees observe laws and company rules and ensure the entire supply chain ful-
fills the obligations required of us as a company, we are further enhancing our system for 
the conduct of lawful and fair/impartial business activities together with our suppliers.  

Statement on Fair Operating Practices

We have had the pleasure of not only working with TS TECH for over half a century, but also mov-
ing forward together as its global supplier, first supplying it with PVC*1 leather for motorcycle sad-
dles and later expanding to plastic coverings for automobile seats, medical chairs, and interiors. 
Since last year, we have also had the opportunity to utilize the knowledge TS TECH has accumulat-
ed as an automobile seat maker to develop PVC leather with a new design that focuses on improv-
ing the marketability of car seats through added value such as a quality finish and a light weight.
 I would like to take this opportunity to extend our gratitude for having the honor to receive 
awards in the cost division for two years in a row now. Given the demand for high quality in  
the automobile industry, we understand that, once selected, production methods and raw materi-
als cannot be altered. With this in mind, we have worked to emulate the bold global development  
TS TECH has exhibited and steadily reduce costs through secure production volume and  
loss reduction.
 We hope in the future to have additional opportunities to learn about TS TECH’s basic strate-
gies so that we can continue to forge a path ahead as a global supplier for TS TECH.
*1 PVC: Polyvinyl chloride

We have had the pleasure of doing business with Okamoto Industries, Inc. since the early days of our establishment and have 
benefited from their cooperation in a wide variety of ways, foremost among them the development and production of covering 
materials that are vital to the appearance of our products. Our seats for automobiles are made up of a wide range of components, 
and in conjunction with the increasingly sophisticated functions and types of performance demanded of them, the details regard-
ing required components have also become increasingly complicated. To gain an edge in the market in this kind of environment 
and take our business to the next level, the cooperation of suppliers with strengths in a range of specialty fields is imperative.
 Moving forward, we hope to further strengthen our partnership, working to increase the corporate value of both firms based 
on the foundation of trust we have built together over the years.

and to work together as an entire group to 

demonstrate uncompromising attitudes 

against such forces. Specific measures 

include making assessments in advance 

of the start of new transactions and incor-

porating provisions for excluding the influ-

ence of antisocial forces in preparing 

agreements.

The TS TECH Group respects intellectual 

property rights. In developing products 

and technologies, we take the utmost 

care to ensure that the Group does not in-

fringe on the intellectual property rights of 

others. At the same time, the Group asks 

others to respect its intellectual property 

rights. In cases where an infringement is 

identified, the Group takes all necessary 

measures, including demanding that in-

fringing parties immediately discontinue 

any offending activities and offering such 

parties an opportunity to negotiate in the 

signing of license agreements. In general, 

the Group works to maximize intellectual 

property value and minimize loss.

 To fulfill our social obligations 

through procurement, the Group must  

be particularly careful with respect to con-

flict minerals—minerals mined in conflict 

zones, the sale of which funds further 

fighting. Every year the Group investi-

gates the sourcing of these mineral re-

sources and works with suppliers to find 

methods for avoiding the use of minerals 

from these conflict zones.

TS TECH has prepared and put into use 

its own Antimonopoly Act and Subcon-

tract Act Compliance Manual, which sets 

forth the approach and considerations 

related to Japan’s Act on Prohibition of 

Private Monopolization and Mainte-

nance of Fair Trade (“Antimonopoly Act”) 

and the Act against Delay in Payment of 

Subcontract Proceeds, etc., to Subcon-

tractors (“Subcontract Act”). The rele-

vant departments utilize the manual in 

day-to-day operations in conjunction with 

an accurate understanding of the two 

laws and a thorough, close examination 

TS TECH Partners Handling the Supply Chain

Handling of Conflict Minerals

Compliance with the Antimonopoly 
Act and Prohibition of Corruption

Policy and Action against  
Antisocial Forces

Intellectual Property  
Management

Director,
Corporate Purchasing Division 
Executive General Manager

Yoshikazu Ariga

President,  
Okamoto Industries, Inc.

Toshio Tamura

Response Corporate Purchasing Division
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The TS TECH Group is committed to a 

style of monozukuri that has not only fin-

ished vehicle manufacturers, our direct 

customers, in mind but also feedback 

from end users, our indirect customers.

 The New Product Development  

Department communicates with end- 

users through a range of approaches and 

conducts marketing research using sur-

vey techniques tailored to specific mar-

kets and research targets. In product de-

velopment, the perception of general 

consumers who use automobiles is of 

the utmost importance, and marketing 

In Pursuit of Superior Product Quality that 

Exceeds Customer Expectations

Precisely because the TS TECH Group 

provides products that end users see 

with their own eyes and are in contact 

with for long periods, we pursue top- 

level quality products that always ex-

ceed customers’ expectations through 

our commitment to monozukuri.
 Our Group conducts comprehen-

sive quality control, from product plan-

ning and development, to the produc-

tion process at the plant. In particular, 

when developing a new model, we ana-

lyze the quality of existing models and  

User survey

• Direct marketing to general users

• Questionnaires created by TS TECH

• Interviews of customers by dealers

• Surveys to verify product usability

• Web surveys and focus group interviews

• Overseas market surveys and use of big data via research companies

• Other survey techniquesM
ai

n 
Su

rv
ey

 T
ec

hn
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s

Person responsible
for area quality
assurance

Suzuka Plant
Hamamatsu

Plant Saitama Plant

Corporate Quality
Assurance Division

Company-wide Quality Assurance General Manager

Corporate Quality
Control Department

Quality
Assurance Section

Technical
Assurance Section

Quality Control
Section

Quality Assurance
General Manager

Domestic and Overseas
Companies

Cooperation

• Information sharing
• Uniform management
• Company-wide
    implementation

Quality Assurance System

Consumer Issues

In conjunction with the ever-changing social environment, the environment surrounding 
the automotive industry has changed significantly over the past few years, and the pace 
of that change seems to be accelerating even faster of late. Amid this changing environ-
ment, the values sought by people who use automobiles is diversifying, and the develop-
ment of new products and advances in technology have become vital to fulfilling those 
needs. Naturally, the TS TECH Group listens to user feedback for current products and 
incorporates them into future products. We are also involved with open innovation that 
goes beyond industry borders so that we can offer new value unfettered by conventional 
concepts. We will continue striving to create high-quality products and attractive value 
that pleases all customers who use our products.

Statement on Consumer Issues

research plays a significant role as a 

means to assess their needs and match 

them with TS TECH’s technologies. 

 Survey results are used for purpos-

es such as customer proposals, model 

planning, and development of new  

technology. Although we are a  

business-to-business company, we do 

not limit ourselves strictly to “compo-

nents,” instead striving to create new  

innovations by conducting forward- 

looking research and constantly working 

to become “a company sincerely  

welcomed by all.”

incorporate any issues into the design 

from the planning and development 

stages as part of our commitment to  

improving the specification quality of 

our products.

 As a result of these efforts, we have 

received numerous quality-related 

awards from finished vehicle manufac-

turers. In addition, we continue to earn 

high praise in seat quality and satisfaction 

surveys by a U.S. market research firm.

Global Quality Control and Assurance System

In accordance with the TS TECH Group’s 

company principle, we attach great im-

portance to quality in our manufacturing 

at all locations around the globe.

 Our quality assurance system, 

which has acquired certification in inter-

national standards related to quality 

(e.g., ISO 9001 and ISO/TS 16949) at all 

sites in and outside Japan, ensures the 

delivery of products with the same high 

level of quality around the globe.

 Meanwhile, quality control on the 

manufacturing floor is tightly integrated 

with manufacturing processes under 

the supervision of each plant’s quality 

departments, enabling us to conduct 

production and quality initiatives that en-

sure and maintain a stable level of manu-

facturing quality.

through a number of efforts aimed at 

ensuring product quality and safety.

 We monitor revisions to laws and 

regulations concerning toxic substances 

in products. In addition to providing regu-

lar oversight, we check the conformance 

of new materials in the supply chains.

 For key mass-produced products, 

we establish priority areas and conduct 

regular audits that include our suppliers. 

When developing new products, we 

perform third-party evaluations of the 

results of the FTA*1 for key parts with 

new mechanisms and conduct a poten-

tial problem analysis (PPA)*2 for safety.

Handling and Making Use of Comments 

and Complaints

We view comments and complaints 

from customers as information to help 

further improve TS TECH Group quality, 

and we use this information to quickly 

solve and prevent the recurrence of 

problems. We also have written internal 

regulations for addressing problems 

when they occur and faithfully endeav-

or to resolve any issues according to 

these regulations.

 Using a network we have built, we 

manage complaint information based 

on feedback from our customers every 

month and check this information 

worldwide through an online system. 

Much effort also goes into preventing 

problems as we repeatedly conduct 

tests and evaluations that simulate how 

our products will actually be used in the 

market, regularly making improve-

ments in pursuit of product durability 

that can withstand greater-than-normal 

utilization. We will continue to give our 

all to provide products that make our 

customers feel safe and satisfied.

Quality Assurance System (Traceability Control)

As the TS TECH Group actively promotes 

the use of common parts across the 

globe, we are working to enable full 

traceability of each part through our 

manufacturing quality control system, 

and we have a framework in place to as-

sess the spread of quality issues at our 

domestic and overseas facilities.

 In the event of a customer com-

plaint, we can rapidly trace the produc-

tion history to identify the root cause us-

ing our manufacturing quality control 

system, enabling swift corrective action.

TC Circles

Our own version of quality control (QC) 

circles, the Group’s TC Circles support 

Group-wide quality improvements. TC 

Circle activities are instrumental in the 

effort to educate employees and 

strengthen their abilities to manage and 

resolve quality issues. TC Circles work 

to promote the global sharing of con-

cepts and case examples, with the aim 

of personnel education and the devel-

opment of new leaders. 

 To help maintain motivation, TC Cir-

cle members (Total number of participat-

ing circles in 2017: 466) gather at annual 

regional competitions in four regions (Ja-

pan, the Americas, China, and Asia and 

Europe) and a world competition that is 

held every two years. These conventions 

ultimately help raise quality awareness 

in all of our employees.

Providing Safe Products

To provide our customers with safe, re-

liable products, the TS TECH Group not 

only observes laws and regulations but 

also prevents problems from arising 

An Approach that Considers the 
End-User’s Point of View

Managing Director, 
Development and Engineering 
Division Executive General 
Manager

Yutaka Arai

*1  Fault Tree Analysis: A method of logically an-
alyzing fault occurrence routes and factors to 
address reliability or safety problems

*2  Potential Problem Analysis (PPA): Involves 
solving problems through the process of iden-
tifying and analyzing a problem, devising and 
executing a solution, and evaluating results

Winning TC Circle team

Inspection for certification

Saitama Plant Suzuka Plant
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Main Achievements
•  Application as parameters for automobile safety design
•  Lightweight technology (CFRP*1/aluminum)
•  Occupant safety design using dampers (constructed to attenuate  

impacts from approximately 80G to 10G)
•  Seat construction that mitigates the impact from landing following reentry  

from space
•  Improved FEM*2 analysis techniques

Main Features
•  Versatility: A seat that offers both seating comfort and support for safe wheelchair use 
•  Safety features: Designed to prevent injury to users’ hands when arranging seats
•  Convenience: Simple seating arrangement and easier preparation for loading wheelchairs

Consumer Issues

TS TECH’s Original Value Creation Story

From Cars to Outer Space: TS TECH’s Safety Assessment Method Utilized 
in New Realms

Pursuing Comfort and Convenience for All Stakeholders

Exercise While Driving
Making Products That Are People- and Environmentally Friendly

At the TS TECH Group, we work together as one to engage in product development that focuses on 
safety, the environment, and attractiveness, as well as quality control. Here, we not only present 
our value creation story, which has its roots in the three focal points of product development, but 
also touch on the issues we are addressing today and where we are going tomorrow.

Hiroyuki Numajiri
Project Leader, New Product Development Section

Ai Furuta
Assistant Chief Engineer, Materials Development Section

Our seats for manned spacecraft are one result of joint research with JAXA that began in January 2014 through an open collaboration 
project. We participated in research on space technology to protect astronauts by applying TS TECH’s technology for analyzing and  
evaluating the injury index for the human body in car collisions. Through this research, TS TECH acquired new design expertise.
 We exhibited the manned space mission crew safety assessment method developed through this research as well as a seat  
concept based on the physics models that serve as the basis for that method in November 2017 at the 45th Tokyo Motor Show 2017. 
Additionally, the results of this open collaboration project between the University of Tokyo, JAXA, and private companies including  
TS TECH, which sought to resolve national issues and improve international cooperation, were presented in January 2018 at the  
University of Tokyo/JAXA Open Collaboration Project Symposium. The TS TECH development team took the podium at the symposium 
to deliver a report on its research.

The Honda N-BOX with a ramp, which went on sale in April 2018, combines the vehicle’s regular specifications with a rear seat devel-
oped by TS TECH. We proceeded with development with the aim of supplying a product that meets the finished-vehicle manufacturer’s 
request that “the N-BOX should be comfortable and convenient in all situations, including when serving as a wheelchair-accessible vehi-
cle.” We were able to deliver both comfort for passengers sitting on the rear seat and a safety function that firmly secures a wheelchair in 
place when the rear seat is collapsed. This model marked a first for TS TECH as we provided a seat design that was compatible with the 
use of an electric winch, something not previously seen in our designs.
 There is a call for further enhancement and innovation of automobile functionality in conjunction with the diversification of end us-
ers and the usage environment for automobiles. This is why we are striving to create products that not only offer the functionality of a seat 
but also meet these various demands. TS TECH has long been involved in the development of special seats such as those for wheelchair 
accessible vehicles. We routinely conduct research with the aim of producing products that any and all users can use comfortably and 
conveniently, with one example being technical cooperation with Paramount Bed Co., Ltd. in 1999 on chairs for medical use.

The Exer-Ride Seat is a seat produced from design through development by a team of young employees known as Za Lab. With a con-
cept of new value creation for seating, it discerns the body type and posture patterns of a passenger and accordingly adjusts its seat 
position automatically to the most comfortable one. It alerts the seat occupant to issues with current posture and recommends an 
ideal posture. Furthermore, this new seat allows for exercise suited to driving conditions just by sitting on it, making it a tool to help 
remedy a lack of exercise. This is made possible by an exercise function, which does not affect driving, that takes passenger 
data into account.
 A device in the seat cushion manipulates the pelvis to condition the passenger’s core using “Twist Mode” (when 
the car is stopped) and “Swing Mode” (when the car is moving at a constant speed). This exercise is equivalent to 
exercise intensity level 3, and in a TS TECH test of anticipated driving conditions, a 65 kg (143 lb) adult male burned 
100 kcal during 30 minutes of driving. We are actively working to pioneer solutions to match the new needs that 
will be sought for automobiles interiors with the advent of a fully automated driving society. 

FLEST®, a material jointly developed by TS TECH and trim cover manufacturer Okamoto Industries, Inc., has attracted attention in the 
industry by offering both the light weight of PVC and a customizable design. The knowledge TS TECH cultivated over many years of  
product development was put to use in making FLEST®, which was created with both ease of finishing for the producer as well as 
the quality of the finished product in mind.
 The automobile industry has become increasingly environmental conscious in recent years, so TS TECH, as a parts manufacturer, 
has been conducting sustainable product development focused on the environment through efforts that include lighter seat frames 
and the development of coverings such as FLEST®. With plans to use FLEST® not just for seat covers 
but in a wide range of interior components such as doors and consoles in the future, the material is  
expected to see increased usage.

Main Features
•  A function to adjust to a com-

fortable position
•  A function to recommend 

the ideal posture
•  Exercise function

Main Achievements
•  Lighter weight: Environmentally friendly and improved fuel 

efficiency
•  Durability: Sturdy and stain resistant
•  Design: Customizable in a variety of colors and finishes, from 

a leather-like texture to punching* 
•  Ease of finishing: Achieves usability in the production stage

*1 CFRP: Carbon fiber reinforced plastic
*2 Finite element method: A type of numerical analysis

*  Punching: Making holes in leather, employing embossing, etc., to create patterns 
or designs

Seat: Six patent applications 
(In cooperation with JAXA’s research 
and development unit)

Collapse the rear seat

“Exer-Ride” is a combination of the 
words “exercise” and “ride.”

Za Lab researchers involved 
in the development of the 
Exer-Ride seat

Remove the panel from the floor 
to anchor the wheelchair’s front 
wheels

Pull out the slope and load the 
wheelchair into the vehicle with 
the electric winch

The ramp serves as the cargo 
area floor when it is stowed

Testing a concept seat that is 
soft to the touch yet sturdy 

Testing a concept seat

Available in a variety of colors

Seats for Manned Spacecraft

FLEST®: A New Material

Honda N-BOX with a Ramp

The Exer-Ride Seat

Working to help build a sustainable world

Safety

AttractivenessEnvironment

Beliefs
A company dedicated to 

realizing people’s potential
A company sincerely 

welcomed by all

Social contribution 
activities

Manufacturing 
process

Environmental 
conservation efforts

Safety

Attractiveness

Attractiveness
Environment
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Our 13th Medium-Term Management Plan, currently in prog-
ress, states that in order to continuously engage in business 
activities, it is important to be a company that is deeply root-
ed in the community, and it names “social contributions that 
are appreciated by local communities” as a priority measure. 
The TS TECH Group works to coexist with local communities 
through a variety of social contribution activities it conducts 
around the world, striving to improve its corporate value as a 
company whose presence is appreciated by stakeholders.

Senior Managing 
Director,
Americas Executive 
General Manager

Minoru Maeda

Managing Director, 
China Executive 
General Manager

Koichi Mase

We place a high priority on communication with local communities. In addition to the pursuit of profit, 

ESG-focused social contributions have recently become increasingly important to a company’s survival. 

However, in the Americas segment, social contribution has always been an activity that we think of more as 

a norm than an exception.

 Over the years, we have put our energies into efforts to contribute to and assist communities in the 

Americas beginning with America and Canada, two countries that are leaders in the area of volunteer activ-

ities. We also have many employees who are active in charities and community volunteer activities, so we 

as a company hope to receive a variety of ideas from our employees as we continue to provide support to 

conduct even more fruitful activities.

 The company also has much to contribute in terms of job creation. With the hope of cultivating the next 

generation of TS TECH employees, we aim to further enhance assistance to students by providing support 

to schools for educational materials and food, as well as by giving students the opportunity to acquire skills 

through participation in job training programs.

 The fact that our employees talk about sustainability on a regular basis speaks volumes about the atti-

tude toward social contribution at our offices in the Americas. Going forward, we will continue to use an 

employee-driven activity flow, wherein employees determine policy in the course of discussions with local 

communities and the company provides assistance when needed.

With the regional control company at the helm, we collaborate with the Head Office to actively promote so-
cial contribution activities as a company that society can continue to trust. As one of the embodiments of our 
beliefs to be a company dedicated to realizing people’s potential and a company sincerely welcomed by all, 
we conduct employee volunteer activities in a way that our employees are respectful of one another, assist 
one another, and take the initiative in social contributions. 
 In the China segment, we work with each of our locations to create social value through activities that 
are deeply rooted in local communities, ultimately aiming to contribute to an improved corporate value. We 
have also established areas of priority activity in line with social needs (community exchange, social welfare, 
disaster relief, volunteer work, and the environment) and are involved with a variety of related efforts. 
 Looking back at fiscal 2018, our activities not only contributed to the organization through their results 
but also facilitated considerable growth for individuals, and this made a positive impact on the organization 
as a whole. I believe our activities were good opportunities to reinforce a sense of trust in the company, en-
hance the level of teamwork between employees, and strengthen mutual bonds.
 In the future, we will further develop relations with communities and strengthen cooperation with each 
office. We will widen the scope of our efforts and evolve those efforts to undertake sustainable activities that are 
appreciated by people in the community. We will work to create corporate activities that lead to a large group of 
employees who derive joy from their involvement and go on to participate on their own in volunteer activities.

We interact with elderly residents in communities where 
there are TS TECH offices, and we provide economic assis-
tance to senior citizen homes. We also donate books and  
everyday goods to students from less fortunate households.
 A team of volunteers from GUANGZHOU TECH IN-
TERIOR TRIM MANUFACTURING CO., LTD. partnered 
with the government to visit and check in on elderly resi-
dents of the local community who have no relatives.

Our locations in the Americas regularly donate toys, school 

supplies, and other items to local children. TST NA TRIM, LLC. 

donates toys using money raised through its “Jeans Fund”  

in order to help children in less fortunate households in the 

community enjoy Christmas. This is a unique effort in which 

employees who donate two or more dollars to the fund are 

given special permission to wear jeans to work. In fiscal 2018, 

the Jeans Fund raised $1,000 (around ¥100,000).

Assistance for the elderly and less fortunate 
households

Material assistance to children

We work with local conservation organizations to protect 

ecosystems. Monarch butterflies pass through the U.S. 

state of Indiana, where TS TECH INDIANA, LLC is located, 

during their annual migration to South America. In order to 

protect the monarch butterfly, which has become an endan-

gered species, the company is working to build a habitat 

conducive to breeding butterflies on the premises of its 

manufacturing plant.

Ecosystem conservation activities

As part of our social contribution activities, each of our loca-

tions holds blood drives on a regular basis. This is a volunteer 

effort, but many employees participate each time. We donate 

the blood gathered from our blood drives to the Red Cross.

Blood drives

2017 marked the third year that TS TECH DO BRASIL LTDA. 

held traffic safety workshops for elementary school chil-

dren. For these workshops, employees visit schools and 

teach the importance of following traffic rules. The company 

donated R$150,000 (about ¥4.5 million) to the schools and 

also handed out traffic safety campaign goods.

Traffic safety workshop

We are also involved in ongoing environmental preserva-
tion activities. Through simple but effective activities such 
as picking up garbage on beaches and cleaning public 
roads near TS TECH offices, we are also trying to reduce 
environmental pollution in China, which has become a se-
rious social problem.
 At TS TECH (HONG KONG) CO., LTD., employees  
and their families regularly volunteer for beach cleanups. 
Since 2015, they have participated annually in the Interna-
tional Coastal Cleanup and have received certificates of 
recognition.

Cleaning up beaches and roads

Americas

China

Number of Social Contribution Activities in Fiscal 2018

Japan 
(Non-consoli-

dated)
9 locations

Americas
14 locations

China
7 locations

Asia and 
Europe

8 locations

Total
38 loca-

tions

Economic 
support  19  81  12  12  124

Social 
contribution 
activities

50 44 23 17 134

Total 69 125 35 29 258

Community Involvement and Community Development

We aim to improve corporate value through social contribution activities.

Working hand-in-hand with employees to create a diverse, sustainable society

Road cleanup near TS TECH offices

Beach cleanup
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2018 Sakura Festival: creating a bond between the company and commu-
nity through cherry trees

Striving to Be a Community-Based 
Corporation

Since 2016, KYUSYU T·S CO., LTD. has invited local residents to its 
Sakura Festival, a cherry blossom, or sakura, festival held when the 
cherry trees on the company premises are in full bloom.
 The company opened its grounds to the public on March 31 and 
April 1, 2018 for the festival, which included a prize drawing, food stalls, 
a flea market, and a Japanese drum performance. The trees on the 
grounds were also lit up at night. Since the first year of the event, stu-
dents from art clubs at three Kikuchi City high schools have illustrated 
panels for the festival with images of Kumamoto Castle, Kumamon (the 
prefectural mascot), and more.

KYUSYU T·S conducts a range of social contribution projects as a member of 
the local community. We strive to become a company appreciated by society 
not only through participation in local government events, but also by planning, 
proposing, and conducting activities on an ongoing basis. By doing so we aim 
to become a company sincerely welcomed by all, which is one of the TS TECH 
Group’s beliefs.
 We hope that through the Sakura Festival, the company, its employees, and 
the community will feel a sense of unity. Through this festival, local residents and 
employees, their families, and employees from different departments can com-
municate with each other. We can also learn how people in the community view 
the company, information which we normally do not hear directly, so we feel that 
this is a very meaningful event.
 Today, Kikuchi City in Kumamoto Prefecture is dealing with an aging popula-
tion and an increasing number of youth leaving the city. We want to work togeth-
er with the community to resolve these issues. We hope that creating jobs and 
holding events to revitalize the community will lead to the growth of not only the 
region but that of KYUSYU T·S and its employees as well.

Keeping in mind our goals to become a company sincerely welcomed by all and to conduct ESG-focused 

management, we aim to grow and invigorate each location in the Asia and Europe segment by promoting 

social contribution activities that are tailored to each area, taking into account factors such as country, race, 

and religion. Populations tend to increase annually in this segment, so we are presently working to support 

children, who will be responsible for the next generation. We believe that creating a future for children means 

creating a future for the countries in the Asia and Europe segment.

 Social contribution activities and manufacturing are similar in that they both require employees to actu-

ally look, touch, and feel. Contribution does not end with economic assistance or donations of supplies. 

When each and every employee actively interacts with people in the community, they come face-to-face 

with the issues and possibilities of that community, so it is our hope that this will lead to growth in the Asia 

and Europe segment as a whole. We will come together as one and keep working to promote even more 

fruitful activities to become a company sincerely welcomed by all stakeholders. We will also strive to con-

duct social contribution activities that do not revolve around the company, but rather local employees  

and communities.

KYUSYU T·S came to Kikuchi City in 1976, and 2018 marks its 42nd year of relations with the city. From 
hiring local employees to hosting festivals, a diverse local community has developed with KYUSYU 
T·S at its center.
 Kikuchi City is working to become “Japan’s No.1 Sakura City” and is planting cherry trees through-
out the city as part of the Kikuchi Sakura 1,000-Year Project, which entered its fifth year in 2018.
 The Sakura Festival, which features the cherry trees that KYUSYU T·S has planted since its estab-
lishment, is one of example of how KYUSYU T·S has identified and cooperated with our efforts, and for 
this we are truly grateful. By opening your grounds to local residents and providing hospitality through 
the Sakura Festival, I believe that you are helping forge a bond between the company and the commu-
nity. I also think that this bond will be beneficial should Kikuchi ever be faced with a crisis.

I thank KYUSYU T·S from the bottom of my heart for its significant contributions to Kikuchi City through  
employment and efforts to give back to the local community.
 Rural areas throughout Japan are experiencing a decline in population, and this is the case in Kikuchi as 
well. As a countermeasure for this, we are working to develop measures that enable local youth to find stable 
jobs in the area. KYUSYU T·S has been certified by Kumamoto Prefecture as a Bright Company*, so we have 
high expectations for employment, which is the backbone for these types of countermeasures.
 For people to settle in Kikuchi, it is important to create an environment where they can live safely and 
securely. I hope we can strengthen the bonds forged between the company and the community through the 
Sakura Festival and count on KYUSYU T·S in the areas of city disaster prevention, safety, and security as well.
*“Bright Company” is a term coined by Kumamoto Prefecture and refers to a company that is the opposite of a “black com-
pany” (a Japanese term for a company with poor and/or abusive working conditions). The period of certification is three years.

Cherry blossoms in full bloom again this year

Local high school students 
made panels for the festival

Employees from different 
departments worked together 
to prepare for the festival

A Japanese drum club from Kikuchi 
City gave a rousing performance

Asia and 
Europe

Community Involvement 
and 
Community Development

We actively provide educational assistance to children, who 

will be the leaders of the next generation. TS TECH SUN  

RAJASTHAN PRIVATE LIMITED conducted visits to local  

elementary schools and middle schools. The staff taught  

students about the company’s business and the importance 

of health and safety in an easy-to-understand way.

Special classes at elementary and middle schools

Employees not only work on the greening of plant grounds 

but also go to local schools and plant trees together with stu-

dents. PT. TS TECH INDONESIA’s ongoing forest preserva-

tion activities were recognized by the Japan International 

Cooperation Agency (JICA) in 2015, which sent the company 

a certificate of appreciation.

Tree planting

TS TECH Hungary Kft. invited 120 middle school students to 

visit its plant. After hearing an explanation about the company, 

the students went to the work floor with company employees 

and experienced the seat assembly process.

Plant tours

Each of our locations provides economic support to local 

communities and schools. TS TECH UK LTD provided AED 

devices to area schools, which will enable them to respond 

swiftly in emergency situations. The company also helps 

provide practice equipment for junior soccer teams and as-

sists organizations that help homeless people.

Economic support

Contributing to the growth of employees and communities by addressing social issues

Senior Managing 
Director,
Asia and Europe 
Executive General 
Manager

Hitoshi Yoshida

Manager, Administration 
Section, 
Human Resources and 
Administration Department
KYUSYU T·S CO., LTD.

Ayumu Shimomura

Mayor of Kikuchi City

Councilor, Enterprise Office,
Commerce and Tourism Section,
Accounting Department
Kikuchi City Hall

Minoru Egashira

Yuichiro Iwamoto
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Group has switched from Japanese 
accounting standards (Japanese GAAP) 
to International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) effective the end of  
the fiscal year ended March 2016. All 
financial information in the text is in 
accordance with IFRS, except where it 
is specified that information is based on 
Japanese GAAP.

Assets at the end of FY2018 stood at 
351,944 million yen, increasing 29,742 
million yen from the end of FY2017. This 
change is primarily the result of an 
increase in cash and cash equivalents 
stemming from the allocation of net 
income as well as an increase in trade 
and other receivables on higher order 
volume from major customers.

Total liabilities at the end of FY2018 
amounted to 92,019 million yen, up 807 
million yen from the end of FY2017. This 
is primarily due to an increase in other 
non-current liabilities resulting from tax 
revisions in the U.S., an increase in 
income tax receivables stemming from 
higher net income, and an increase in 
provisions related to a recall by a major 
customer. These factors offset a  
decrease in trade and other payables 
resulting from a decline in dividend 
payables.

Equity at the end of FY2018 totaled 
259,924 million yen, rising 28,935 million 
yen from the end of FY2017. This was 
mainly the result of an increase in 
retained earnings from the allocation of 
net income.

Cash and cash equivalents (hereinafter 
“cash”) at the end of FY2018 amounted 
to 118,758 million yen, up 22,749 million 
yen from the end of the previous fiscal 
year.

Cash flows from operating activities 
amounted to 48,406 million yen,  
showing a year-on-year increase of 
14,360 million yen. This is the result of a 
change in operating and other receivables 
from an increase of 12,510 million yen in 
the previous fiscal year to an increase of 
6,301 million yen in FY2018 as well as an 
increase in income before tax of 13,889 
million yen. These factors offset a 
change in operating and other debts 
from an increase of 4,962 million yen in 
the previous fiscal year to a decrease of 
1,903 million yen in FY2018.

Cash flows from investing activities 

came to 12,742 million yen, an increase 
of 332 million yen year-on-year. This 
primarily reflects a net change in both 
payments into and proceeds from the 
withdrawal of time deposits from an 
intake of 1,525 million yen to an outlay 
of 2,910 million yen in FY2018. This 
offset a decrease of 2,037 million yen in 
payments from the purchase of property, 
plant and equipment as well as a 
decrease of 920 million yen in payments 
from the purchase of intangible assets.

Cash flows from financial activities 
totaled 11,858 million yen, a decrease of 
2,355 million yen year-on-year. This 
reflects a decrease of 2,654 million yen 
in payments for the purchase of shares 
of consolidated affiliates from non- 
controlling interests, offsetting an 
increase of 638 million yen in dividend 
payments (including payments to 
non-controlling interests).

During the period under review, the 
global economy showed signs of 
improvement worldwide in the form of 
continued moderate economic recovery 
in developing countries and China, 
offsetting uncertainty stemming from 
policy trends around the world. Although 
demand for automobiles was down 
slightly year-on-year in America and 
Europe, it increased in Japan, China, and 
Asia. However, TS TECH’s production 
was up in all segments on increased 
order volume from the Group’s major 
customers, which was fueled by produc-
tion increases accompanying new model 
launches in each segment, and  
increased demand for SUVs in China.

Against this backdrop, in the first year 
of its 13th Medium-Term Management 
Plan, the Group pursued “sustainable 
business growth,” “diversity manage-
ment,” and “harmony with the social 
environment,” the three priority  
measures that support the plan’s  
management policy: the “creation of a 
foundation for ESG management.” We 
addressed “sustainable business 
growth” by working to strengthen our 
earnings structure and achieve sustain-
able growth through new product 
development, greater expansion of sales 
to beyond existing customers1, and an 
enhanced quality control system. In 
terms of “diversity management,” we 
are working to improve labor productivity 
by implementing work-style reforms at 
all companies that incorporate local 
characteristics and can be tailored to 

meet employees’ individual needs. With 
regard to “harmony with the social 
environment,” we participated in envi-
ronmental conservation activities and 
social contribution activities rooted in 
local communities. We also promoted 
measures to allow us to grow together 
with the surrounding social environment 
and fulfil our social responsibility 
through business operations by means 
such as reducing CO2 emissions through 
lighter products and more efficient 
production.

Revenue for the fiscal year under 
review amounted to 479,490 million yen 
on a consolidated basis, up 53,696 
million yen (12.6%) from the preceding 
fiscal year. This was due to an increase 
in order volume from major customers, 
an improved makeup of models, and the 
impact of exchange rates2 driven by the 
weaker yen. Looking at profits,  
operating income stood at 47,346 million 
yen, an increase of 12,788 million yen 
(37.0%) year-on-year. This reflected the 
impact of higher revenue, the elimina-
tion of temporary expenses related to 
new model launches in the Asia and 
Europe segment in the previous fiscal 
year, and the receipt of compensation 
accompanying the end of the Guang-
zhou plant relocation in China. Income 
attributable to owners of parent totaled 
30,115 million yen, an increase of 10,492 
million yen (53.5%) year-on-year.
1:  Sales beyond existing customers:  

Sales to manufacturers of entire cars other 
than major customers

2:  USD/JPY average exchange rate:  
FY2017: ¥108.4 FY2018: ¥110.8

The Group’s consolidated forecasts for 
FY2019 are as follows:
Revenue

After application of IFRS 15
420.0 billion yen
(Down 12.4% year-on-year)
FY2018 standards
479.6 billion yen
(0.0% year-on-year)

Operating income 
41.0 billion yen
(Down 13.4% year-on-year)

Income before income tax 
42.6 billion yen
(Down 14.3% year-on-year)

Net income 
32.4 billion yen
(Down 15.6% year-on-year)

Income attributable to owners of parent 
25.7 billion yen
(Down 14.7% year-on-year)

1. Analysis of Financial Condition

2. Analysis of Cash Flows

3. Analysis of Operating Performance
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(Unit: Million yen)

Note
FY2017

(As of March 31, 2017)
FY2018

(As of March 31, 2018)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 6 ¥ 96,008 ¥118,758

Trade and other receivables 7 68,024 74,294

Other financial assets 8 7,307 11,541

Inventories 9 29,059 25,175

Income taxes receivable 449 1,227

Other current assets 5,280 4,959

Total current assets ¥206,131 ¥235,957

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 10 76,576 73,532

Intangible assets 11 11,695 10,753

Investments accounted for using the equity method 28 1,028 1,463

Other financial assets 8 22,019 24,290

Net defined benefit assets 17 1,896 2,804

Deferred tax assets 15 1,906 2,367

Other non-current assets 948 775

Total non-current assets 116,070 115,986

TOTAL ASSETS ¥322,202 ¥351,944

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

(Unit: Million yen)

Note
FY2017

(As of March 31, 2017)
FY2018

(As of March 31, 2018)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 12 ¥ 69,476 ¥ 67,262

Current borrowings 13 973 1,059

Other financial liabilities 14 709 1,269

Income taxes payable 2,871 3,773

Provisions 16 3,940 4,641

Other current liabilities 2,173 2,720

Total current liabilities 80,143 80,727

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Non-current borrowings 13 315 424

Other financial liabilities 14 1,530 1,430

Net defined benefit liability 17 1,098 1,267

Provisions 16 101 99

Deferred tax liabilities 15 6,173 5,159

Other non-current liabilities 1,850 2,911

Total non-current liabilities 11,068 11,292

Total liabilities 91,212 92,019

EQUITY

Common stock 18 4,700 4,700

Capital surplus 18 5,257 5,171

Treasury stock 18 (4) (4)

Retained earnings 18 194,847 219,999

Other components of equity 18 7,617 5,723

Total equity attributable to owners of parent 212,417 235,589

Non-controlling interests 18,572 24,335

Total equity 230,989 259,924

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY ¥322,202 ¥351,944
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(Unit: Million yen)

Note
FY2017

(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)
FY2018

(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

Revenue 5 ¥425,794 ¥479,490

Cost of sales 19 (355,176) (399,329)

Gross profit 70,617 80,160

Selling, general and administrative expenses 19 (35,755) (37,418)

Other income 20 726 5,192

Other expenses 20 (1,032) (588)

Operating income 5 34,557 47,346

Finance income 22 1,699 2,161

Finance costs 22 (788) (214)

Share of profit of investments accounted for using  
 the equity method 28 324 388

Income before income tax 35,792 49,681

Income tax expense 15 (10,705) (11,288)

Net income 25,086 38,392

Income attributable to:

Owners of parent 19,622 30,115

Non-controlling interests 5,463 8,277

Net income ¥ 25,086 ¥ 38,392

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (Yen) 23 ¥ 288.58 ¥ 442.89

Diluted earnings per share (Yen) 23 — —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

(Unit: Million yen)

Note
FY2017

(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)
FY2018

(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

Net income ¥25,086 ¥38,392

Other comprehensive income

Components that will not be reclassified subsequently  
 to net profit or loss

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans 24 674 289

Total components that will not be reclassified  
 subsequently to net profit or loss 674 289

Components that may be reclassified subsequently  
 to net profit or loss

Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets 24 912 963

Differences on translation from foreign operations 24 (2,248) (2,616)

Share of other comprehensive income of associates  
 accounted for using the equity method 24 (86) 47

Total components that may be reclassified  
 subsequently to net profit or loss (1,422) (1,605)

Other comprehensive income, net of tax (747) (1,315)

Comprehensive income for the period 24,339 37,077

Comprehensive income for the period attributable to:

Owners of parent 19,676 28,222

Non-controlling interests 4,662 8,855

Comprehensive income for the period ¥24,339 ¥37,077

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statements of Profit or Loss and Comprehensive Income
Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Consolidated Statements of Profit or Loss and Comprehensive Income
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
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(Unit: Million yen)

Note
FY2017

(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)
FY2018

(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Income before income tax ¥ 35,792 ¥  49,681

Depreciation and amortization 10,602 11,568

Impairment loss 284 189

Loss (gain) on disposal of non-current assets 500 (206)

Finance costs (income) (1,890) (1,735)

Share of loss (profit) of investments accounted for using  
 the equity method (324) (388)

Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables (12,510) (6,301)

Decrease (increase) in leased receivables and leased  
 investment property 2,809 20

Decrease (increase) in inventories (1,491) 3,307

Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables 4,962 (1,903)

Increase (decrease) in net defined benefit asset and  
 net defined benefit liability (1,155) (688)

Increase (decrease) in provisions 3,904 912

Other (1,269) 3,168

Subtotal 40,213 57,625

Interest income received 1,060 1,024

Dividend income received 473 856

Interest expenses paid (146) (152)

Income taxes paid (7,555) (10,946)

Net cash provided by operating activities ¥ 34,045 ¥  48,406

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments into time deposits (3,336) (5,790)

Proceeds from withdrawal of time deposits 4,862 2,880

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (10,990) (8,952)

Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 301 406

Purchase of intangible assets (2,272) (1,351)

Purchase of equity instruments (57) (60)

Proceeds from sales of equity instruments 129 0

Payments of loans receivable (188) (188)

Collection of loans receivable 171 181

Other (1,028) 134

Net cash used in investing activities ¥(12,409) ¥(12,742)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended March 31, 2017 (April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)
(Unit: Million yen)

Equity attributable to owners of parent Total equity
attributable
to owners  
of parent

Non-
controlling
interests

Total
equityNote

Common
stock

Capital
surplus

Treasury
stock

Retained
earnings

Other
components  

of equity

BALANCE AT THE END OF
 THE PREVIOUS FISCAL YEAR ¥4,700 ¥4,949 ¥(4) ¥179,851 ¥7,563 ¥197,060 ¥22,031 ¥219,092

Comprehensive income

Net income 19,622 19,622 5,463 25,086

Other comprehensive income 18 53 53 (801) (747)

Total comprehensive income — — — 19,622 53 19,676 4,662 24,339

Transactions with owners, etc.

Dividends 25 (4,623) (4,623) (4,342) (8,966)

Acquisition of treasury stock (0) (0) (0)

Changes in ownership  
 interest in subsidiaries 307 307 (3,778) (3,470)

Others (3) (3) (1) (4)

Total transactions with  
 owners, etc. — 307 (0) (4,627) — (4,320) (8,122) (12,442)

BALANCE AT THE END OF  
 THE FISCAL YEAR ¥4,700 ¥5,257 ¥(4) ¥194,847 ¥7,617 ¥212,417 ¥18,572 ¥230,989

For the year ended March 31, 2018 (April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018)
(Unit: Million yen)

Equity attributable to owners of parent Total equity
attributable
to owners  
of parent

Non-
controlling
interests

Total
equityNote

Common
stock

Capital
surplus

Treasury
stock

Retained
earnings

Other
components  

of equity

BALANCE AT THE END OF 
 THE PREVIOUS FISCAL YEAR ¥4,700 ¥5,257 ¥(4) ¥194,847 ¥7,617 ¥212,417 ¥18,572 ¥230,989

Comprehensive income

Net income 30,115 30,115 8,277 38,392

Other comprehensive income 18 (1,893) (1,893) 577 (1,315)

Total comprehensive income — — — 30,115 (1,893) 28,222 8,855 37,077

Transactions with owners, etc.

Dividends 25 (4,963) (4,963) (2,362) (7,326)

Acquisition of treasury stock (0) (0) (0)

Changes in ownership  
 interest in subsidiaries (85) (85) (730) (815)

Others — — — —

Total transactions with  
 owners, etc. — (85) (0) (4,963) — (5,049) (3,092) (8,142)

BALANCE AT THE END OF 
 THE FISCAL YEAR ¥4,700 ¥5,171 ¥(4) ¥219,999 ¥5,723 ¥235,589 ¥24,335 ¥259,924

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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(Unit: Million yen)

Note
FY2017

(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)
FY2018

(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net increase (decrease) in short-term loans payable 26 ¥  (133) ¥    (99)

Proceeds from long-term loans payable 26 300 300

Repayments of long-term loans payable 26 (5) (5)

Repayments of finance lease obligations 26 (1,657) (1,351)

Purchase of treasury stock (0) (0)

Cash dividends paid 25 (4,623) (4,963)

Cash dividends paid to non-controlling interests (4,623) (4,921)

Acquisition of equity interest of subsidiary  
 from non-controlling interests (3,470) (815)

Net cash used in financing activities (14,214) (11,858)

EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH  
 AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,850) (1,055)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5,571 22,749

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 6 90,437 96,008

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD 6 ¥96,008 ¥118,758

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

1. REPORTING ENTITY
TS TECH Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “the Company”) is a company domiciled in Japan.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company at and for the year ended March 31, 2018 comprise the Compa-
ny, its subsidiaries (hereinafter “the Group”), and the Group’s interests in its affiliates.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(1) Compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
The Company meets the requirements of a “specified company applying designated international accounting standards” 
set out under Article 1-2 of the “Ordinance on Terminology, Forms and Preparation Methods of Consolidated Financial 
Statements.” Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements are prepared according to IFRS pursuant to the  
provisions of Article 93 of said Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on June 22, 2018.

(2) Basis for measurement
The consolidated financial statements, with the exception of the financial instruments, etc., measured at fair value 
stated in Note 3, “Important Accounting Policies,” have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

(3) Functional currency and presentation currency
The presentation currency used in the consolidated financial statements is Japanese yen, which is the Company’s  
functional currency. Any fractions below one (1) million yen are discarded.

(4) Important accounting judgments, estimates, and assumptions
In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, management exercised certain judgments, estimates, and 
assumptions in the process of applying the accounting policies and in determining the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income, and expenses. Actual results, as such, may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, and the impact of the review is 
recognized in the period in which the review was conducted and in future periods.

Among the items which were subject to estimates and judgments, the following are considered to have significant 
impact on the amounts of the consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year under review and the following fiscal 
years.
• Scope of consolidation: Note 3, “Important Accounting Policies (1) Basis of consolidation”
• Estimated useful lives of intangible assets: Note 3, “Important Accounting Policies (8) Intangible assets”
• Scope of contracts including leases: Note 3, “Important Accounting Policies (9) Leases”
• Impairment of non-financial assets:  Note 3, “Important Accounting Policies (10) Impairment of non-financial 

assets”
• Measurement of defined benefit obligations: Note 3, “Important Accounting Policies (12) Employee benefits”
• Recognition and measurement of provisions: Note 3, “Important Accounting Policies (13) Provisions”
• Revenue recognition: Note 3, “Important Accounting Policies (16) Revenues”
• Recoverability of deferred tax assets: Note 3, “Important Accounting Policies (18) Income taxes”

3. IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(1) Basis of consolidation
(i) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidat-
ed financial statements from the date that the Group gains control to the date that the Group loses control.

When the accounting policies applied by a subsidiary are different from those applied by the Group, the financial 
statements of said subsidiary are revised as necessary.

The balance of accounts receivable and payable and transactions within the Group and the unrealized gain and loss on 
transactions within the Group are deducted under the consolidated financial statements.

Any change in the Company’s interest in subsidiaries not involving the loss of control is processed as a capital  
transaction.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s ownership interest and non-controlling interests are adjusted according to the 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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changes in the ownership interest, and any difference between the adjustment to the non-controlling interests and the 
fair value of the consideration transferred or received is recognized directly in equity and allocated to owners of the parent.

(ii) Affiliates
Affiliates are entities over which the Group has significant influence but does not have control over the financial and 
operating policies of such entities, and they are accounted for using the equity method from the date that significant 
influence commences until the date the significant influence ceases.

Under the equity method, investments in affiliates are initially recorded at cost and subsequently increased (or de-
creased) to reflect the Group’s post-acquisition changes in ownership interest in the associate’s equity. In such cases, 
the amount of net profit or loss of the affiliate equivalent to the ownership interest of the Group is recognized in net 
profit or loss, while the amount of other comprehensive income of the associate equivalent to the ownership interest  
of the Group is recognized in other comprehensive income.

Profits from important internal transactions are eliminated proportionately to the ownership share in the affiliate.

(2) Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.

Consideration for the acquisition is measured as the total fair value of the assets transferred, liabilities assumed, and 
equity instruments issued by the Group.

Costs related to the acquisition are recognized in net profit or loss when incurred.
The identifiable assets and liabilities acquired from the merged company are measured at fair values unless stipulated 

otherwise by the IFRS.
Goodwill is recognized if the consideration for the acquisition exceeds the fair values of the identifiable assets and 

liabilities acquired from the merged company; it is recognized in net profit or loss if the consideration for the acquisition 
is less.

(3) Foreign currency translations
The financial statements of each Group company are prepared in the currency of the primary economic environment in 
which each Group company conducts business (hereinafter “functional currency”).

Additionally, the financial statements of foreign operations are translated into Japanese yen, the functional currency of 
the Company, when preparing consolidated financial statements.
(i) Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the functional currency using the spot 
exchange rate at the date of the transaction or an exchange rate that approximates the spot exchange rate at the date of 
the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the fiscal year are translated using the 
spot exchange rate at the end of the fiscal year. Exchange differences arising from translation or settlement of foreign 
currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities are recognized in net profit or loss.
(ii) Foreign operations
Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Japanese yen using the spot exchange rate at the end of 
the fiscal year, while income and expenses are translated into Japanese yen at the average exchange rates for the peri-
od, provided, however, that there have been no significant fluctuations in the exchange rates.

Exchange differences arising from translation of financial statements of foreign operations are recognized in other 
comprehensive income, and cumulative exchange differences are presented in other components of equity.

(4) Financial instruments
(i) Classification of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified into “financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through 
net profit or loss,” “held-to-maturity investments,” “loans and receivables,” “available-for-sale financial assets,” and “finan-
cial liabilities measured at amortized cost.” These classifications are determined at the time of initial recognition based on 
the nature and the holding purpose of the financial instrument.
(ii) Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the point at which the Group becomes a contractual party to the 
provision of the financial asset or financial liability and are measured at fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to 
the acquisition of a financial asset are added to the fair value of the financial asset, with the exception of transaction 

costs associated with financial assets at a fair value through net profit or loss.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of a financial liability are deducted from the fair value of the financial 

liability, with the exception of transaction costs associated with financial liabilities at a fair value through net profit or loss.
(iii) Financial assets and liabilities measured at a fair value through net profit or loss
Financial instruments held for trading such as derivative transactions, as well as those designated by the Group as mea-
sured at fair value through profit or loss at initial recognition, are classified as financial assets and financial liabilities at a 
fair value through net profit or loss.

Measurements after the initial recognition are made at fair value, and any changes in fair value are recognized in net 
profit or loss.
(iv) Held-to-maturity investments
Financial assets other than derivatives with a payment amount that is fixed or may be determined and a maturity date 
that is fixed, and for which the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, are classified as held-to- 
maturity investments.

Measurements after the initial recognition are made at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any 
impairment loss with interest income recognized in net profit or loss using the effective interest method.
(v) Loans and receivables
Financial assets other than derivatives with a payment amount that is fixed or may be determined that are not quoted in 
an active market are classified as loans and receivables.

Measurements after the initial recognition are made at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any 
impairment loss with interest income from the effective interest method recognized in net profit or loss.
(vi) Available-for-sale financial assets
Financial instruments designated by the Group as available-for-sale financial assets, and financial instruments not desig-
nated as financial assets measured at a fair value through net profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, or loans and 
receivables are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

Measurements after the initial recognition are made at fair value, and any changes in fair value are recognized in other 
comprehensive income.
(vii) Impairment of financial assets
If objective evidence of impairment of held-to-maturity investments and loans and receivables exists, the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s 
original effective interest rate, is recognized as impairment loss.

Impairment loss on held-to-maturity investments and loans and receivables is recognized as allowance for doubtful 
accounts. If, after the recognition of impairment loss, it is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance 
for doubtful accounts and the carrying amount is directly reduced.

If objective evidence of impairment of available-for-sale financial assets exists, the cumulative losses recognized in 
other comprehensive income are reclassified to net profit or loss.
(viii) Measurement of financial liabilities after initial recognition
Financial liabilities other than financial liabilities at fair value through net profit of loss are measured at amortized cost, 
with interest expenses according to the effective interest method recognized in net profit or loss.
(ix) Derecognition
The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when  
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when the Group’s obligations are discharged, canceled, or expire.
(x) Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability
Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as a net amount, 
if and only if the Group has a legal right to offset financial assets with financial liabilities and the Group intends either to 
settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(5) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits withdrawable as necessary, and short-term investments which 
are easily converted into cash, with original maturities of three months or less and minimal risk of changes in value.

(6) Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cost of inventories includes purchase costs, processing costs, and all other costs incurred in bringing inventory to its 
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existing location and condition.
Cost of inventories is calculated primarily using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of 

completion and selling expenses.

(7) Property, plant and equipment
The cost model has been applied, and all property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less any accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
 Cost includes costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets, the cost of restoring the site, and other costs.
 Depreciation of assets other than land and construction in progress is calculated using the straight-line method based 
on the estimated useful life of each asset. The estimated useful lives of major assets are as follows:
• Buildings and structures: 2 to 50 years
• Machinery, equipment and vehicles: 2 to 20 years
• Tools, furniture and fixtures: 2 to 20 years
 The estimated useful lives, residual values, and depreciation methods are reviewed each year and revised as necessary.

(8) Intangible assets
The cost model has been applied, and all intangible assets are measured at cost less any accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets comprise mainly development expenses, and expenses incurred in development activities are capi-
talized if and only if they meet all of the requirements listed below.
• It is technically feasible to complete their developments to use or sell them;
• The Group has the intent to complete their developments and to use or sell them;
• The Group is capable of using or selling them;
• It is highly probable that they will generate future economic benefits;
•  The Group has the adequate technical, financial, and other resources to complete their developments and to use or sell 

them; and
•  The Group is capable of reliably measuring the expenditures associated with the intangible assets during the develop-

ment process.
Capitalized development expenses are amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life (mainly 

five years) commencing from the time the product subject to development commences mass production.
The estimated useful lives and amortization methods are reviewed each year and revised as necessary.

(9) Leases
Lease transactions are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership to the lessee, while all other leases are classified as operating leases.

Whether a contract is a lease or whether a contract contains a lease is determined based on the substance of the 
contract. If the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets (the asset) and the 
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, such assets are considered to be under a lease.
(i) Lease as lessee
Lease assets and lease liabilities under finance leases are recognized at the lower of the fair value of the leased property 
and the present value of the minimum lease payments in the consolidated statement of financial position at the incep-
tion of the lease. Leased assets are amortized using the straight-line method in accordance with the accounting policies 
applied to the assets.
 Payments under operating leases are recognized in net profit or loss throughout the lease term.
(ii) Lease as lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position at the 
amount of net investment in the lease.

The difference between the amount of net investment in the lease and the cost of lease investment is recognized in 
net profit or loss at the inception of the lease.

(10) Impairment of non-financial assets
During each reporting period, the Group assesses each asset or cash-generating unit for any indications of impairment, 
and if any such indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

The recoverable amount is calculated at the higher of the fair value of the asset or cash-generating unit less costs to 
sell and the value in use.

Value in use is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows to the present value using the pre-tax dis-
count rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money.

If the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit, the difference be-
tween the carrying amount and the recoverable amount is recognized as impairment loss in net profit or loss.

In terms of impairment losses recognized in the past, assessment is conducted for any indications of the possibility  
of decrease in impairment, including cases in which the assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount have 
changed. If any such indication exits, the recoverable amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is estimated, and if the 
recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit, impairment loss is reversed up to 
the lower of the recoverable amount determined and the carrying amount net of depreciation that would have been 
determined if no impairment loss had been recognized in prior years.

(11) Non-current assets held for sale
Among assets or asset groups whose carrying amounts are expected to be recovered through a sale transaction rather 
than continuing use, assets for which sale within one year is highly probable, assets which are available for immediate 
sale in their present condition, and assets for which the Group’s management is committed to a plan to sell the assets 
are classified as non-current assets held for sale.

Non-current assets held for sale are not depreciated or amortized and are measured at the lower of the carrying 
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

(12) Employee benefits
(i) Post-employment benefits
The Group has adopted defined benefit plans and defined contribution plans.

Defined benefit plans are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position in the amount of defined 
benefit plan obligations, which has been calculated at the discounted present value of the amount of estimated future 
benefits earned by the employee as consideration for services rendered in the past and in the current period under each 
plan, less the fair value of the plan assets.

The present value of defined benefit plan obligations and related service costs is calculated using the projected unit 
credit method. The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields on high-quality corporate bonds with 
similar maturities to the obligations under the plans.

Increases/decreases through remeasurements of defined benefit plan obligations and plan assets are recognized in 
other comprehensive income.

Past service costs resulting from plan amendments or curtailment are recognized in net profit or loss at the earlier  
of the time of amendment or the time at which the related restructuring costs or severance benefits are recognized.

The obligation to make contributions under the defined contribution plans is recognized in net profit or loss in the 
period in which the employee renders the related service.
(ii) Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits including wages are recognized in net profit or loss in the period in which the employee 
renders the related service.

Bonus payments are recognized as liabilities if the Group has a legal or constructive obligation to pay and the obligation 
can be estimated reliably.

The cost of paid leave is recognized as a liability in the period in which the employee renders the service which will 
increase the employee’s entitlement to future paid leave.
(iii) Other long-term employee benefits
Other long-term employee benefits, including a long-service award system, are recognized as liabilities by estimating the 
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in consideration for services rendered in the current and prior 
periods and discounting that amount to the present value.

(13) Provisions
Provisions are recognized if a present legal or constructive obligation exists as a result of a past event that can be  
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estimated reliably and if it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation.
When the time value of money is material, a provision is measured at the present value to which estimated cash flows 

are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the obligation. Increases in the amount of 
provisions associated with the passage of time are recognized in net profit or loss.

(14) Government-imposed levies
Government-imposed levies are recognized as a liability in the estimated amount to be paid when an event obligating 
payment to the government has occurred.

(15) Equity
(i) Common shares
The amount of equity instruments issued by the Company is recognized in common stock and capital surplus, and direct 
issue costs (after consideration of tax effects) are deducted from capital surplus.
(ii) Treasury stock
When the Company acquires treasury stock, the consideration paid, including direct transaction costs (after consider-
ation of tax effects), is recognized as a deduction from equity. When the Company disposes of treasury stock, gains or 
losses on sales of treasury stock are recognized in capital surplus.

(16) Revenues
Revenues are measured at fair value of the consideration received for sale of goods, etc., less discounts, rebates, and 
taxes including consumption taxes.
(i) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all of the following conditions are met:
• Significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been transferred to the buyer;
•  Neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over 

the goods sold have been retained;
• The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group; and
• The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
(ii) Interest income
Interest income is recognized based on the effective interest method.
(iii) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment of the dividend is established.

(17) Government grants
Government grants are recognized at fair value when and only when there is reasonable assurance that the Group will 
comply with the conditions attached to the grant and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to revenues are recognized in net profit or loss over the period of the expenses, which the 
grant is intended to compensate, are recognized.

Government grants relating to assets are recognized as deferred revenue and reclassified to net profit or loss on a 
systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

(18) Income taxes
Income taxes comprise current taxes and deferred taxes, and they are recognized in net profit or loss, excluding items 
related to business combinations, items that are directly recognized in equity, and items recognized in other comprehen-
sive income.

Current taxes are calculated based on the estimated payment to or refunds from the tax authorities. Current tax 
liabilities are calculated based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of 
the fiscal year.

Deferred taxes are recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for 
accounting purposes and their tax bases at the end of the fiscal year, unused tax losses and unused tax credits (hereinaf-
ter “temporary differences, etc.”).

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences, while deferred tax assets are 
recognized for deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits only to the extent that it is 

probable that there will be taxable profits against which the temporary differences may be utilized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the 

temporary difference is reversed based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
by the end of the fiscal year.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

(19) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit or loss for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 
parent by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year adjusted for the weighted-average 
number of treasury shares purchased in the year.

4. NEW STANDARDS NOT YET ADOPTED BY THE GROUP
New or revised standards and interpretations that were issued by the date of approval of the consolidated financial 
statements but were not adopted by the Group are as follows. 

Standard Title

Date of mandatory adoption 
(Fiscal year of commence-  
ment thereafter)

Fiscal year of  
application  
by the Group Overview of new/revised standard

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments January 1, 2018 Fiscal year ending 
March 31, 2019

Revisions of the classification, measurement,  
and impairment of financial instruments; and 
hedge accounting

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers

January 1, 2018 Fiscal year ending 
March 31, 2019

Revision of accounting relating to the recogni-
tion of revenue

IFRS 16 Leases January 1, 2019 Fiscal year ending 
March 31, 2020

Revision of accounting relating to lease 
arrangements

The major change due to the application of IFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers,” is that a portion of 
amounts originally recorded as sales and costs will no longer be recognized as revenue. The major impact of the applica-
tion of this standard on the Group’s consolidated financial statements is estimated to be a decrease of ¥59,600 million in 
revenue and cost of sales, respectively, in the Consolidated Statement of Income for FY2019. Its impact on operating 
income is minimal. 

The Company estimates that the impact of the application of IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments,” on the Group’s consoli-
dated financial statements is minimal. 

The Company is currently assessing but cannot estimate at the present time the impact of IFRS 16, “Leases,” on the 
Group’s consolidated financial statements. 

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(1) Overview of reportable segments
The reportable segments are components of the Company for which separate financial information is available. These 
segments file monthly reports which the Board of Directors uses for deciding the allocation of management recourse 
and evaluating results.

Positioning Japan as its global base, the Company has a control and management system for the three operating 
regions of the Americas (the U.S., Canada, Mexico, and Brazil), China (China and Hong Kong), and Asia and Europe (Thai-
land, the Philippines, India, Indonesia, the U.K., and Hungary). The Company appoints an officer responsible for control and 
management in each region. Policies, plans, controls, and other matters concerning general operations are discussed at 
regional management meetings attended by directors and the like in these regions for executing business activities.

Accordingly, the Company positions Japan, the Americas, China, and Asia and Europe as its four reportable segments.
In the reportable segments of Japan, the Americas, and Asia and Europe, the Company manufactures and sells prod-

ucts that mainly consist of automobile seats, automobile interiors, motorcycle seats, and resin-based products for motor-
cycles. In the reportable segment of China, the Company engages primarily in the manufacture and sale of automobile 
seats and automobile interiors.

(2) Accounting method for revenue, profits or losses, assets, liabilities, and other items by reportable segment
Accounting methods for reportable business segments are the same as those presented in Note 3, “Important  
Accounting Policies.”
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The Company decides the price of transactions carried out among segments by considering market prices and gross 
costs, and through price negotiations.

Profits for reportable segments are operating income figures based on the consolidated statements of profit or loss 
and comprehensive income.

(3) Information on revenue, profits or losses, assets, liabilities and other items according to reportable segment
FY2017 (April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

(Unit: Million yen)

Reportable segments

Japan Americas China
Asia  

and Europe Total Adjustments Consolidated

Revenue

External revenue ¥66,430 ¥211,849 ¥88,350 ¥59,162 ¥425,794 ¥      — ¥425,794

Inter-segment revenue 25,399 1,158 6,639 662 33,860 (33,860) —

Total ¥91,830 ¥213,008 ¥94,990 ¥59,825 ¥459,654 ¥(33,860) ¥425,794

Segment profits ¥ 7,343 ¥ 12,365 ¥16,425 ¥ 3,313 ¥ 39,447 ¥ (4,890) ¥ 34,557

F inance income and  
finance costs — — — — — — 910

R eturn on investment using the 
equity method — — — — — — 324

Income before tax — — — — — — 35,792

Note:  Adjustments of -¥4,890 million for segment profits included an inter-segment elimination of ¥97 million and operating expenses 
of -¥4,987 million associated with the administration division of the headquarters of the parent, which could not be allocated.

Other important items

(Unit: Million yen)

Reportable segments

Japan Americas China
Asia  

and Europe Total Adjustments Consolidated

Depreciation and amortization ¥2,701 ¥4,385 ¥1,687 ¥1,900 ¥10,675 ¥(72) ¥10,602

Impairment loss — — 64 220 284 — 284

Capital expenditures 2,804 3,733 3,495 1,165 11,199 — 11,199

Note:  The adjustment for depreciation and amortization is an inter-segment elimination.

FY2018 (April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

(Unit: Million yen)

Reportable segments

Japan Americas China
Asia  

and Europe Total Adjustments Consolidated

Revenue

External revenue ¥68,050 ¥223,018 ¥113,954 ¥74,467 ¥479,490 ¥       — ¥479,490

Inter-segment revenue 25,502 1,849 7,312 1,573 36,237 (36,237) —

Total ¥93,552 ¥224,867 ¥121,266 ¥76,041 ¥515,727 ¥(36,237) ¥479,490

Segment profits ¥ 9,653 ¥ 10,189 ¥ 24,664 ¥ 8,083 ¥ 52,591 ¥ (5,245) ¥ 47,346

F inance income and  
finance costs — — — — — — 1,947

R eturn on investment using the 
equity method — — — — — — 388

Income before tax — — — — — — 49,681

Note:  Adjustments of -¥5,245 million for segment profits included an inter-segment elimination of -¥151 million and operating expenses 
of -¥5,093 million associated with the administration division of the headquarters of the parent, which could not be allocated.

Other important items

(Unit: Million yen)

Reportable segments

Japan Americas China
Asia  

and Europe Total Adjustments Consolidated

Depreciation and amortization ¥2,799 ¥5,008 ¥1,956 ¥1,854 ¥11,619 ¥(50) ¥11,568

Impairment loss — 3 176 9 189 — 189

Capital expenditures 3,515 2,671 1,322 1,131 8,640 — 8,640

Note:  The adjustment for depreciation and amortization is an inter-segment elimination.

(4) Information related to products and services
FY2017 (April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)
Segment information according to products and services is omitted as revenue from external customers in a single 
product/service category accounts for the majority of revenue in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

FY2018 (April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)
Segment information according to products and services is omitted as revenue from external customers in a single 
product/service category accounts for the majority of revenue in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(5) Information according to region
(i) Revenue

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

Japan ¥ 63,813 ¥ 67,238

U.S. 150,879 161,531

Canada 51,890 51,723

China 88,800 114,473

Other 70,410 84,522

Total ¥425,794 ¥479,490

Note: Revenue is based on customers’ locations and is categorized into countries and regions.

(ii)  Non-current assets (excluding financial instruments, deferred tax assets, net defined benefit asset, and rights arising from insur-
ance contracts)

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Japan ¥30,463 ¥30,814

U.S. 20,334 16,819

China 13,184 12,919

Other 24,288 23,732

Total ¥88,271 ¥84,285

(6) Information according to major customers

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

Honda Motor Co., Ltd. Group ¥385,753 ¥439,417

Note: Revenue is recorded for the Japan, Americas, China, and Asia and Europe segments.
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9. INVENTORIES
The breakdown of inventories is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Merchandise and finished goods ¥ 2,161 ¥ 2,381

Work in progress 2,526 2,605

Raw materials and supplies 24,371 20,188

Total ¥29,059 ¥25,175

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(1) Schedule of property, plant and equipment
The following are the changes in the cost, accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, and carrying amounts of 
property, plant and equipment.

Cost

(Unit: Million yen)

Buildings  
and structures

Machinery, 
equipment  

and vehicles

Tools,  
furniture  

and fixtures Land
Construction  
in progress Total

Balance as of April 1, 2016 ¥55,372 ¥65,694 ¥31,093 ¥10,823 ¥10,086 ¥173,070

Acquisition cost 583 1,228 568 — 8,381 10,762

Sales or disposal (1,070) (3,961) (1,431) (0) (0) (6,464)

Reclassification to other account 5,916 5,366 1,824 93 (13,623) (422)

Effects of foreign currency translation 111 (833) (289) (14) (732) (1,759)

Other — — 77 1 — 78

Balance as of March 31, 2017 ¥60,913 ¥67,493 ¥31,842 ¥10,903 ¥ 4,111 ¥175,265

Acquisition cost 492 1,426 466 — 6,101 8,488

Sales or disposal (155) (3,801) (987) — (86) (5,031)

Reclassification to other account 345 3,740 1,627 79 (6,447) (654)

Effects of foreign currency translation (897) (1,265) (409) (66) (63) (2,701)

Other — — — — — —

Balance as of March 31, 2018 ¥60,699 ¥67,593 ¥32,539 ¥10,917 ¥ 3,615 ¥175,364

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The breakdown of cash and cash equivalents is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Cash and cash equivalents ¥96,008 ¥118,758

Note:  The balance of “Cash and cash equivalents” in the consolidated statement of financial position and the balance of “Cash and 
cash equivalents” in the consolidated statement of cash flows coincide.

7. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
The breakdown of trade and other receivables is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Notes and accounts receivable – trade ¥63,335 ¥68,994

Others 4,699 5,302

Allowance for doubtful accounts (10) (2)

Total ¥68,024 ¥74,294

Note: Financial assets among “Trade and other receivables” are classified as financial assets measured at amortized cost.

8. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Deposits with maturities of three months or more ¥ 4,839 ¥ 7,365

Short-term loans receivable 3 2

Long-term loans receivable 520 517

Lease receivables 4,376 7,047

Equity instruments 14,579 16,016

Derivative financial assets 6 67

Others 5,004 4,820

Allowance for doubtful accounts (3) (5)

Total ¥29,327 ¥35,832

Current assets ¥ 7,307 ¥11,541

Non-current assets 22,019 24,290

Total ¥29,327 ¥35,832

Notes: 1.  Deposits with maturities of three months or more, short-term loans receivable, long-term loans receivable, and lease receiv-
ables are classified as financial assets measured at amortized cost.

 2. Equity instruments are classified as financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
 3. Derivative financial assets are classified as financial assets measured at fair value through net profit or loss.

72 TS TECH Report 2018 TS TECH Report 2018 73



11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(1) Schedule of intangible assets
The following are changes in the cost, accumulated amortization and impairment loss, and carrying amounts of intangi-
ble assets.

Cost

(Unit: Million yen)

Software
Development 

expenses Other Total

Balance as of April 1, 2016 ¥4,652 ¥11,592 ¥2,150 ¥18,396

Acquisition cost 218 — 272 491

Increase due to internal development — 1,786 — 1,786

Disposal (32) (376) (0) (409)

Effects of foreign currency translation (25) (2) (110) (138)

Other 162 — (266) (103)

Balance as of March 31, 2017 ¥4,975 ¥13,000 ¥2,046 ¥20,022

Acquisition cost 190 — 68 259

Increase due to internal development — 1,092 — 1,092

Disposal (30) (347) (0) (377)

Effects of foreign currency translation 25 (79) 23 (30)

Other 239 (0) (133) 106

Balance as of March 31, 2018 ¥5,400 ¥13,665 ¥2,005 ¥21,072

Accumulated amortization and impairment loss

(Unit: Million yen)

Software
Development 

expenses Other Total

Balance as of April 1, 2016 ¥3,791 ¥2,871 ¥264 ¥ 6,928

Amortization 384 1,565 42 1,992

Disposal (31) (376) (0) (408)

Effects of foreign currency translation (23) 1 (12) (34)

Other (157) — 6 (151)

Balance as of March 31, 2017 ¥3,962 ¥4,063 ¥300 ¥ 8,327

Amortization 415 1,892 39 2,347

Impairment loss — — 6 6

Disposal (28) (347) (0) (375)

Effects of foreign currency translation 18 (14) (5) (1)

Other (0) — 15 14

Balance as of March 31, 2018 ¥4,367 ¥5,594 ¥356 ¥10,319

Note:  Amortization of intangible assets is included in “Cost of sales” and “Selling, general and administrative expenses” in the  
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Carrying amounts

(Unit: Million yen)

Software
Development 

expenses Other Total

Balance as of April 1, 2016 ¥  860 ¥8,721 ¥1,885 ¥11,467

Balance as of March 31, 2017 1,012 8,937 1,745 11,695

Balance as of March 31, 2018 1,032 8,071 1,648 10,753

Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss

(Unit: Million yen)

Buildings  
and structures

Machinery, 
equipment  

and vehicles

Tools,  
furniture  

and fixtures Land
Construction  
in progress Total

Balance as of April 1, 2016 ¥22,735 ¥48,207 ¥25,788 ¥— ¥— ¥ 96,732

Depreciation 2,270 4,170 2,102 — — 8,543

Impairment loss 212 30 14 — — 257

Sales or disposal (877) (3,642) (1,332) — — (5,852)

Reclassification to other account 3 (104) 144 — — 43

Effects of foreign currency translation (81) (749) (210) — — (1,041)

Other — (0) 5 — — 5

Balance as of March 31, 2017 ¥24,264 ¥47,912 ¥26,512 ¥— ¥— ¥ 98,688

Depreciation 2,438 4,560 2,227 — — 9,227

Impairment loss — 70 26 — 86 183

Sales or disposal (135) (3,432) (945) — (86) (4,599)

Reclassification to other account 95 (81) (33) — — (19)

Effects of foreign currency translation (328) (959) (366) — — (1,654)

Other (0) (0) 7 — — 7

Balance as of March 31, 2018 ¥26,334 ¥48,069 ¥27,428 ¥— ¥— ¥101,832

Note:  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is included in “Cost of sales” and “Selling, general and administrative expenses” 
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Carrying amounts

(Unit: Million yen)

Buildings  
and structures

Machinery, 
equipment  

and vehicles

Tools,  
furniture  

and fixtures Land
Construction  
in progress Total

Balance as of April 1, 2016 ¥32,636 ¥17,486 ¥5,304 ¥10,823 ¥10,086 ¥76,338

Balance as of March 31, 2017 36,649 19,580 5,330 10,903 4,111 76,576

Balance as of March 31, 2018 34,364 19,524 5,110 10,917 3,615 73,532

(2) Leased assets
The carrying amounts of leased assets included in property, plant and equipment are as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

Buildings  
and structures

Machinery, 
equipment  

and vehicles

Tools,  
furniture  

and fixtures Total

Balance as of April 1, 2016 ¥1,053 ¥58 ¥214 ¥1,326

Balance as of March 31, 2017 869 31 195 1,097

Balance as of March 31, 2018 709 27 152 890
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(2) Development expenses
The breakdown of development expenses is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

R&D expenditures incurred during the period ¥12,382 ¥11,986

Reclassification to capitalized development expenses (1,786) (1,092)

Amortization of capitalized development expenses 1,565 1,892

Total ¥12,162 ¥12,786

12. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
The breakdown of trade and other payables is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Notes and accounts payable – trade ¥48,165 ¥51,687

Other 21,310 15,575

Total ¥69,476 ¥67,262

Note: Financial liabilities related to “Trade and other payables” are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortized cost.

13. BORROWINGS
The breakdown of borrowings is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Average
interest rates

Current borrowings ¥  967 ¥  868 0.48%

Non-current borrowings scheduled for  
 payment within one year 5 191 0.57%

Non-current borrowings 315 424 0.58%

Total ¥1,288 ¥1,483 —

Current liabilities ¥  973 ¥1,059

Non-current liabilities 315 424

Total ¥1,288 ¥1,483

Notes: 1.  Borrowings are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortized cost.
 2.  “Average interest rates” of borrowings indicate the weighted-average interest rate on the balance of borrowings at the end  

of FY2018.
 3.  Repayments of non-current borrowings at the end of FY2018 are due from 2019 to 2022.

14. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The breakdown of other financial liabilities is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Lease obligations ¥2,217 ¥2,695

Derivative financial liabilities 22 3

Total ¥2,239 ¥2,699

Current liabilities ¥  709 ¥1,269

Non-current liabilities 1,530 1,430

Total ¥2,239 ¥2,699

Notes: 1. Lease obligations are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortized cost.
 2. Derivative financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities measured at a fair value through net profit or loss.

15. INCOME TAXES
(1) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
The breakdown of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows.

For the year ended March 31, 2017 (April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)

(Unit: Million yen)

Balance at  
the beginning of  
the fiscal year

Recognized  
through net  
profit or loss

Recognized  
through other 

comprehensive 
income

Balance at  
the end of  

the fiscal year

Deferred tax assets

Inventories ¥ 1,723 ¥  (96) ¥  — ¥ 1,627

Property, plant and equipment 626 130 — 757

Intangible assets 861 (704) — 156

Investments in equity instruments 1 — (1) —

Accrued expenses and provisions 1,447 1,259 — 2,707

Net defined benefit liability 180 46 (6) 220

Unused tax losses 5 (5) — —

Other 726 135 — 862

Total deferred tax assets ¥ 5,573 ¥  766 ¥  (8) ¥ 6,331

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment ¥ 1,125 ¥ (126) ¥  — ¥   999

Intangible assets 2,689 (801) — 1,887

Investments in equity instruments 3,292 — 383 3,675

Net defined benefit asset 175 103 282 560

Undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries 655 238 — 894

Other 585 1,994 — 2,580

Total deferred tax liabilities 8,523 1,409 665 10,598

Net deferred tax liabilities ¥(2,949) ¥ (643) ¥(673) ¥(4,266)

Note:  The difference between the total amount recognized through net profit or loss and total deferred tax expenses is due to  
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.
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For the year ended March 31, 2018 (April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018)

(Unit: Million yen)

Balance at  
the beginning of  
the fiscal year

Recognized  
through net  
profit or loss

Recognized  
through other 

comprehensive 
income

Balance at  
the end of  

the fiscal year

Deferred tax assets

Inventories ¥  1,627 ¥  144 ¥   — ¥   1,771

Property, plant and equipment 757 (31) — 725

Intangible assets 156 13 — 170

Investments in equity instruments — — — —

Accrued expenses and provisions 2,707 (509) — 2,198

Net defined benefit liability 220 55 (35) 240

Unused tax losses — 728 — 728

Other 862 (153) — 708

Total deferred tax assets ¥  6,331 ¥  248 ¥ (35) ¥   6,544

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment ¥   999 ¥   (119) ¥   — ¥   879

Intangible assets 1,887 (240) — 1,647

Investments in equity instruments 3,675 — 410 4,086

Net defined benefit asset 560 122 146 830

Undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries 894 (42) — 851

Other 2,580 (1,538) — 1,041

Total deferred tax liabilities 10,598 (1,818) 557 9,336

Net deferred tax liabilities ¥(4,266) ¥2,067 ¥(592) ¥(2,791)

Note:  The difference between the total amount recognized through net profit or loss and total deferred tax expenses is due to  
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Deferred tax assets ¥ 1,906 ¥  2,367

Deferred tax liabilities 6,173 5,159

Net deferred tax liabilities ¥(4,266) ¥(2,791)

Deductible temporary differences for which deferred tax assets have not been recognized are as follows. Amounts are 
presented on a taxable amount basis.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Deductible temporary differences ¥456 ¥513

The breakdown by expiration date of unused tax losses and tax credits for which deferred tax assets have not been 
recognized is as follows. Amounts are presented on a taxable amount basis.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Within 1 year ¥   26 ¥ 41

Between 1 and 2 years 423 —

Between 2 and 3 years 807 158

Between 3 and 4 years 158 —

Between 4 and 5 years 30 —

More than 5 years 55 74

Total ¥1,502 ¥274

Taxable temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have not been 
recognized are as follows.

Deferred tax liabilities were not recognized as the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences could be con-
trolled by the Group and it was probable that the temporary differences would not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Amounts are presented on an income basis.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Taxable temporary differences ¥105,133 ¥114,507

(2) Income tax expenses
The breakdown of income tax expenses is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Current tax expense

Taxable amount for the fiscal year ¥10,151 ¥13,271

Adjustment for prior years (25) 11

Total current tax expense ¥10,126 ¥13,282

Deferred tax expense

Accrual and reversal of temporary differences ¥  (439) ¥  (1,420)

Changes in tax rates — 598

Changes in unrecognized temporary differences, etc. 1,018 (1,171)

Total deferred tax expense ¥   579 ¥  (1,993)

Total income tax expense ¥10,705 ¥11,288
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Reconciliation of the effective statutory tax rates with the average actual tax rates in the consolidated statement of 
profit or loss is as follows.

(Unit: %)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

Effective statutory tax rate 30.1% 30.1%

Differences with tax rates applied to foreign subsidiaries (4.3) (7.1)

Undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries 0.7 (0.1)

Permanent differences including dividend income (6.2) (4.1)

D ifferences due to factors including elimination of intra-group  
transactions 8.7 5.9

Tax credits (1.2) (0.7)

Changes in unrecognized deferred taxes 2.8 (2.4)

Impact of changes in the U.S. tax system — 1.6

Other (0.7) (0.5)

Average actual tax rate 29.9% 22.7%

16. PROVISIONS
Changes in the amounts of provisions are as follows.

For the year ended March 31, 2017 (April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)

(Unit: Million yen)

Provision for  
product  

warranties (Note)
Asset retirement 

obligations Other Total

Balance at the beginning of the fiscal year ¥   — ¥160 ¥ 24 ¥  185

Increase during the period 3,803 36 — 3,839

Decrease during the period (provision used) — (106) (13) (119)

Decrease during the period (reversal) — — — —

Effects of foreign currency translation 134 — 1 136

Balance at the end of the fiscal year ¥3,937 ¥ 91 ¥ 13 ¥4,042

Current liabilities ¥3,937 ¥  3 ¥— ¥3,940

Non-current liabilities — 87 13 101

Total ¥3,937 ¥ 91 ¥ 13 ¥4,042

For the year ended March 31, 2018 (April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018)

(Unit: Million yen)

Provision for  
product  

warranties (Note)
Asset retirement 

obligations Other Total

Balance at the beginning of the fiscal year ¥3,937 ¥91 ¥   13 ¥4,042

Increase during the period 1,224 0 21 1,247

Decrease during the period (provision used) (8) — (18) (26)

Decrease during the period (reversal) (272) — — (272)

Effects of foreign currency translation (247) — (1) (249)

Balance at the end of the fiscal year ¥4,633 ¥91 ¥   15 ¥4,740

Current liabilities ¥4,633 ¥ 7 ¥— ¥4,641

Non-current liabilities — 84 15 99

Total ¥4,633 ¥91 ¥   15 ¥4,740

Note:  In conjunction with a recall by a major customer, a provision for product warranties has been recorded in the amount which the 
Group is expected to bear with respect to said customer. The amount which the Group is expected to bear has been estimated 
based on the latest repair information. The timing of the payment will depend on factors including when the payment invoice is 
received from the major customer. A portion of the amount of the provision for product warranties is expected to be compensat-
ed pursuant to an agreement with business partners. The amount to be compensated is estimated to be ¥3,544 million in the 
year ended March 31, 2017 and ¥3,938 million in the year ended March 31, 2018, which have been included in “Trade and other 
receivables.”

17. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
(1) Overview of the post-employment benefit plan adopted by the Group
To prepare for the payment of retirement benefits to its employees, the Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries 
have adopted funded and unfunded defined benefit plans and defined contribution plans.

The defined benefit plans consist mainly of a contract-type, corporate pension plan which pays out lump-sum pay-
ments and annuities based on a points system.

The contract-type, corporate pension plan is managed, pursuant to a defined benefit corporate pension contract en-
tered into by both labor and management, through the entrustment of the management and administration of plan 
assets to an investment institution.

In addition, the contract sets forth mandatory recalculation of premiums every five years, pursuant to the Defined 
Benefit Corporate Pension Act, in order to maintain balanced finances into the future.

(2) Defined benefit plan
(i)  Reconciliation of defined benefit obligations (assets) with the net defined benefit liability (asset) recorded in the consolidated 

statement of financial position

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Ending balance of defined benefit obligations ¥15,851 ¥16,373

Ending balance of plan assets (16,649) (17,911)

Net amount of defined benefit obligations and assets (798) (1,537)

Net defined benefit liability 1,098 1,267

Net defined benefit asset (1,896) (2,804)

N et amount of liabilities and assets recorded in the consolidated  
statement of financial position ¥  (798) ¥(1,537)
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(ii) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligations

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

Beginning balance of defined benefit obligations ¥15,982 ¥15,851

Service cost 1,127 1,075

Interest cost 89 149

Past service cost 37 —

Actuarial differences (due to changes in demographic assumptions) (2) 10

Actuarial differences (due to changes in financial assumptions) (619) 191

Actuarial differences (due to adjustments) 60 11

Benefits paid (822) (860)

Effects of foreign currency translation (0) (55)

Ending balance of defined benefit obligations ¥15,851 ¥16,373

Notes: 1.  Service cost, interest cost, and past service cost are included in “Cost of sales” and “Selling, general and administrative 
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

 2.  Actuarial differences are included in remeasurements of net defined benefit plans in the consolidated statement of  
comprehensive income.

(iii) Reconciliation of the fair values of plan assets

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

Beginning balance of plan assets ¥15,634 ¥16,649

Interest income 81 157

Return on plan assets other than interest 421 638

Contributions from the employer 1,314 1,315

Benefits paid (798) (839)

Effects of foreign currency translation (4) (10)

Ending balance of plan assets ¥16,649 ¥17,911

Notes: 1.  Interest income is included in “Cost of sales” and “Selling, general and administrative expenses” in the consolidated  
statement of profit or loss.

 2.  Return on plan assets other than interest is included in remeasurements of net defined benefit plans in the consolidated  
statement of comprehensive income.

(iv) Major breakdown of fair values of plan assets

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Assets with quoted  
market prices  

in active markets

Assets without quoted 
market prices  

in active markets

Assets with quoted  
market prices  

in active markets

Assets without quoted 
market prices  

in active markets

Equity instruments ¥ 8,024 ¥   — ¥ 8,380 ¥     —

Debt instruments 6,578 — 7,254 —

General accounts — 1,379 — 1,442

Other 81 586 88 745

Total ¥14,683 ¥1,965 ¥15,723 ¥2,187

(v) Investment policy of plan assets
With respect to its plan assets, the Group upholds the investment policy of maintaining a well-balanced, diversified 
portfolio comprised mainly of conventional assets within the acceptable boundaries of risk and of aiming for long-term, 
stable revenue levels that will ensure the performance of its payment obligations.

The Group reviews its investment policy as necessary depending on the financial conditions and the investment 
environment of the defined benefit plans.

(vi) Significant actuarial assumptions and analysis of sensitivity thereto
Significant actuarial assumptions are as follows.

(Unit: %)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Discount rate 0.7% 0.6%

The estimated effects of changes in actuarial assumptions on defined benefit obligations are as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

Effects on defined benefit obligations

Changes in assumptions
FY2017

(As of March 31, 2017)
FY2018

(As of March 31, 2018)

Discount rate  Rise by 0.5% ¥(847) ¥(851)

 Fall by 0.5% 930 940

Note:  This analysis assumes that all variables other than the discount rate remain fixed.

(vii) Contribution to plan assets in the following fiscal year
The Company plans to contribute ¥666 million to the plan assets in the year ending March 31, 2019 (April 1, 2018–March 
31, 2019).

(viii) Maturity analysis of defined benefit plans
Maturity analysis of defined benefit plans is as follows.

(Unit: Years)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Weighted-average duration 11.6 11.4

(3) Defined contribution plans
Amounts recognized as expenses of the defined contribution plans are as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

Amounts recorded as expenses ¥542 ¥778
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(5) Changes in other components of equity
Changes in other components of equity are as follows.

For the year ended March 31, 2017 (April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)

(Unit: Million yen)

Change in 
fair value of 

available-for-sale 
financial assets

Remeasurements  
of net defined  
benefit plans

Differences  
on translation  
from foreign 
operations Total

Beginning balance ¥7,678 ¥(792) ¥   677 ¥7,563

Other comprehensive income 926 676 (1,549) 53

Ending balance ¥8,604 ¥(115) ¥  (871) ¥7,617

For the year ended March 31, 2018 (April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018)

(Unit: Million yen)

Change in 
fair value of 

available-for-sale 
financial assets

Remeasurements  
of net defined  
benefit plans

Differences  
on translation  
from foreign 
operations Total

Beginning balance ¥8,604 ¥(115) ¥  (871) ¥7,617

Other comprehensive income 963 294 (3,151) (1,893)

Ending balance ¥9,567 ¥179 ¥(4,023) ¥5,723

(6) Total number of shares authorized to be issued and total number of shares issued
The total numbers of shares authorized to be issued and shares issued were as follows.

(Unit: Number of shares)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Total number of shares authorized to be issued 272,000,000 272,000,000

Number of shares issued 68,000,000 68,000,000

Note: All shares issued by the Company are common stock with no par value and no restrictions on the shareholders’ rights.

(7) Treasury stock
The amount of treasury stock is as follows.

(Unit: Number of shares)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Amount of treasury stock 2,050 2,100

Note:  The amount of treasury stock increased by 76 shares in FY2017 and by 50 shares in FY2018 due to the purchase of shares  
constituting less than one unit.

19. COST OF SALES AND SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Major expense items included in the breakdown of cost of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses  
according to the nature of the cost are as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

Depreciation and amortization ¥10,602 ¥11,568

Employee benefit expenses 69,027 74,116

18. NET ASSETS AND OTHER COMPONENTS OF EQUITY
(1) Management of shareholders’ equity
The Group manages its shareholders’ equity in order to ensure the stable, continuous payout of dividends while at the 
same time utilizing it in investments for the development of new technology and the expansion of its business.

The Group uses the equity ratio as the primary indicator in the management of shareholders’ equity, which is calculat-
ed by dividing “Total equity attributable to owners of parent” by “Total liabilities and equity.”

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Shareholders’ equity

Total equity attributable to owners of parent ¥212,417 ¥235,589

Total liabilities and equity 322,202 351,944

Equity ratio (%) 65.9% 66.9%

Note:  The Group is not subject to any material restrictions from third parties regarding its shareholders’ equity.

(2) Details of capital surplus
Details of capital surplus are as follows.
(i) Legal capital surplus
The Companies Act of Japan (hereinafter “the Companies Act”) requires that in the issue of shares, 50% or more of the 
amount of payment for shares and assets delivered be incorporated into common stock and the remaining amount be 
incorporated into legal capital surplus. The Companies Act also provides that legal capital surplus may be incorporated 
into common stock by resolution of a shareholders’ meeting.

(ii) Other capital surplus
Changes in ownership interest in subsidiaries that do not involve loss of control are accounted for as capital transactions 
and amounts equivalent to goodwill and negative goodwill arising from such transactions are recorded in other capital 
surplus.

(3) Details of retained earnings
(i) Legal retained earnings
The Companies Act requires that an amount equivalent to 10% of dividends from retained earnings to be paid be appro-
priated and set aside as legal capital surplus and legal retained earnings until the total of legal capital surplus and legal 
retained earnings amounts to 25% of common stock. Such legal retained earnings may be used to compensate for 
capital deficits. Legal retained earnings may also be reversed by resolution of a shareholders’ meeting.

(ii) Other retained earnings
Other retained earnings represent the cumulative amount of profits earned by the Group.

(4) Details of other components of equity
Details of other components of equity are as follows.
(i) Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
Valuation difference between the cost and fair value of equity instruments designated as available-for-sale financial 
assets

(ii) Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans
Returns on plan assets other than actuarial differences and interest

(iii) Differences on translation from foreign operations
Translation differences arising from the translation of financial statements of subsidiaries prepared in functional curren-
cies other than Japanese yen into Japanese yen
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20. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER EXPENSES
The breakdown of other income is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

Land and building rent received ¥156 ¥  212

Gain on disposal of non-current assets 156 406

Gain on government grants 30 3,987

Other 383 587

Total ¥726 ¥5,192

Note: Details of income from government grants are stated in Note 21, “Government Grants.”

The breakdown of other expenses is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

Loss on disposal of non-current assets ¥  656 ¥199

Impairment loss 284 189

Other 91 199

Total ¥1,032 ¥588

21. GOVERNMENT GRANTS
Major details of government grants are as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

Deferred income from government grants ¥161 ¥  170

Income from government grants 30 3,987

Notes: 1.  Deferred income from government grants is recognized under “Other current liabilities” or “Other non-current liabilities” in 
the consolidated statement of financial condition.

 2. Income from government grants is recognized under “Other income” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
 3.  Income from government grants in FY2018 comprised mainly government grants arising from the relocation of the Guangzhou 

plant, and there are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attached to the government assistance.

22. FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS
The breakdown of finance income is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

Interest income ¥1,067 ¥1,080

Dividends income 552 819

Foreign exchange gains — 261

Other 78 0

Total ¥1,699 ¥2,161

Notes: 1. Interest income is interest income associated with financial assets measured at amortized cost.
 2. Dividends income is dividend income associated with financial assets measured through other comprehensive income.

The breakdown of finance costs is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

Interest expense ¥158 ¥152

Foreign exchange losses 630 —

Other 0 62

Total ¥788 ¥214

Note: Interest expense is interest expense associated with financial liabilities measured at amortized cost.

23. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share and the basis for estimation are outlined below.

Latent common stock that has a dilution effect is not included.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

Income attributable to owners of parent ¥19,622 ¥30,115

Average number of common shares for the period (1,000 shares) 67,997 67,997

Basic earnings per share (Yen) ¥288.58 ¥442.89
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(2) Dividends whose record date is in the current fiscal year but whose effective date is in the following fiscal year

Resolution
Class of  
shares

Source of 
dividends

Total amount  
of dividends 
(Million yen)

Dividend  
per share  

(Yen) Record date Effective date

A nnual General Meeting  
of Shareholders held  
on June 23, 2017

Common 
shares

Retained 
earnings

¥2,379 ¥35.00 March 31, 2017 June 26, 2017

For the year ended March 31, 2018 (April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018)
(1) Dividends paid

Resolution
Class of  
shares

Total amount  
of dividends 
(Million yen)

Dividend  
per share  

(Yen) Record date Effective date

A nnual General Meeting  
of Shareholders held  
on June 23, 2017

Common 
shares

¥2,379 ¥35.00 March 31, 2017 June 26, 2017

B oard of Directors’ meeting  
held on November 1, 2017

Common 
shares ¥2,583 ¥38.00 September 30, 2017 November 27, 2017

(2) Dividends whose record date is in the current fiscal year but whose effective date is in the following fiscal year

Resolution
Class of  
shares

Source of 
dividends

Total amount  
of dividends 
(Million yen)

Dividend  
per share  

(Yen) Record date Effective date

A nnual General Meeting  
of Shareholders held  
on June 22, 2018

Common 
shares

Retained 
earnings

¥2,855 ¥42.00 March 31, 2018 June 25, 2018

26. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as follows.

For the year ended March 31, 2018 (April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018)

(Unit: Million yen)

Beginning  
balance

Cash  
flows

Non-cash transactions

Ending  
balanceIncrease

Foreign  
currency  

translation

Current borrowings ¥  967 ¥   (99) ¥   — ¥  0 ¥  868

Non-current borrowings 321 294 — — 615

Finance lease liabilities 2,217 (1,351) 1,883 (53) 2,695

Total ¥3,506 ¥(1,157) ¥1,883 ¥(52) ¥4,179

Note: Non-current borrowings include the non-current borrowings scheduled for payment within one year.

27. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
Details of significant non-cash transactions are as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

Acquisition of assets through a finance lease arrangement ¥654 ¥1,883

24. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The breakdown of each component of other comprehensive income is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

C omponents that will not be reclassified subsequently to net profit  
or loss

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans

Gains (losses) during the year ¥    972 ¥    422

Income tax benefit (expense) (297) (132)

Subtotal 674 289

C omponents that may be reclassified subsequently to net profit  
or loss

Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

Gains (losses) during the year 1,373 1,374

Reclassification adjustments (76) —

Before tax 1,296 1,374

Income tax benefit (expense) (384) (410)

Subtotal 912 963

Differences on translation from foreign operations

Gains (losses) during the year (2,248) (2,616)

S hare of other comprehensive income of associates accounted  
for using the equity method

Gains (losses) during the year (86) 47

Total other comprehensive income, net of tax ¥   (747) ¥(1,315)

25. DIVIDENDS
For the year ended March 31, 2017 (April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)
(1) Dividends paid

Resolution
Class of  
shares

Total amount  
of dividends 
(Million yen)

Dividend 
 per share  

(Yen) Record date Effective date

A nnual General Meeting  
of Shareholders held  
on June 24, 2016

Common 
shares

¥2,243 ¥33.00 March 31, 2016 June 27, 2016

B oard of Directors’ meeting  
held on October 28, 2016

Common 
shares ¥2,379 ¥35.00 September 30, 2016 November 28, 2016
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(3) Matters concerning affiliates
The Group does not have individually significant affiliates. Matters concerning affiliates which are not individually  
significant are as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31,2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31,2018)

Carrying amount of equity interest ¥1,028 ¥1,463

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

The Group’s equity interest in

Net income ¥324 ¥388

Other comprehensive income (86) 47

Comprehensive income 237 435

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(1) Details and the extent of risks arising from financial instruments
(i) Policies on the management of financial instruments and risk management
The Group is exposed to various risks arising from financial instruments including credit risk, market risk, and liquidity 
risk. To manage the exposures to these risks, the Group conducts risk management according to a certain set of policies.

In terms of investments, the Group primarily uses principal-guaranteed time deposits and similar financial instruments, 
while in terms of the procurement of funds the Group procures its necessary funds through bank loans and similar 
financial instruments.

The Group enters into derivative transactions to minimize the risk of future fluctuations in exchange rates but strictly 
adheres to the policy of avoiding such transactions for speculative purposes.

(ii) Credit risk (Risk of a business partner defaulting on its contractual obligations)
Trade and other receivables are exposed to the credit risk of customers.

The Group manages these risks in accordance with its credit management regulations by periodically monitoring 
whether any customer has gone over its credit limit, which is set for each customer, while also making efforts to identify 
at an early stage concerns for collection due to deterioration of the customer’s financial position and mitigate said risks.

The majority of the Group’s trade and other receivables are due from Honda Motor Co., Ltd. and its group companies, 
whose creditworthiness is high and poses minimal credit risk.

When engaging in derivative transactions, the Group deals exclusively with financial institutions with high credit ratings 
in order to mitigate credit risk.

The carrying amounts of financial assets after impairment losses presented in the consolidated statement of financial 
position represent the maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk.

(iii) Market risk (Foreign currency risk)
As the Group conducts its business globally, it engages in foreign currency-denominated transactions and accordingly its 
profits and cash flows are exposed to the risk of fluctuating exchange rates.

The Group engages in derivative transactions, namely forward exchange contracts, to mitigate such risks in terms of 
its foreign currency-denominated trade receivables and payables.

In the execution and administration of derivative transactions, the funding division obtains the approval of the person 
with the decision-making authority in accordance with the internal rules which set forth transaction authority and other 
matters.

28. SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES, ETC.
(1) Composition of the corporate group
The composition of the Group is as stated in “1. Corporate Summary (4) State of Subsidiaries and Affiliates” in the 
Company’s annual securities report (In Japanese only).

(2) Matters concerning subsidiaries
Matters concerning significant subsidiaries in which the Group has non-controlling interests are as follows.

GUANGZHOU TS AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR SYSTEMS CO., LTD.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31,2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31,2018)

Current assets ¥22,388 ¥30,869

Non-current assets 10,158 9,377

Current liabilities 16,963 14,596

Non-current liabilities 70 76

Equity 15,513 25,573

Cumulative amount of non-controlling interests 6,912 12,031

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

Revenue ¥41,593 ¥56,123

Net income 4,422 9,263

Other comprehensive income (994) 797

Comprehensive income for the period 3,428 10,060

Comprehensive income for the period attributable to non-controlling interests 2,104 4,751

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

Cash flows from operating activities ¥ 2,111 ¥11,918

Cash flows from investing activities (2,341) (420)

Cash flows from financing activities (4,793) (4,208)

Effect of exchange rate change on cash and cash equivalents (927) 452

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (5,951) 7,741

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (2,300) (2,020)
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(2) Fair value measurement
Fair values are classified into the following three levels according to the extent to which the input information used in the 
measurement is observable and the materiality of said input.
Level 1: Quoted prices of similar assets and liabilities in active markets
Level 2: Input other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that is observable either directly or indirectly 
Level 3: Input including that not based on observable market data

No transfers occurred between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during FY2018.

(i) Method of measuring fair value 
(Equity instruments)
Equity instruments are mainly stocks of publicly traded companies and are measured based on the prices quoted by the 
stock exchanges.
(Derivative financial assets and derivative financial liabilities)
The fair values of the forward exchange contracts are measured based on the prices quoted by the financial institutions.
(Long-term loans receivable)
Long-term loans receivable are measured at the present value of future cash flows discounted by an interest rate that 
reflects an appropriate indicator such as the yield on Japanese government bonds to which a credit spread has been 
added.
(Long-term loans payable)
Long-term loans payable are measured at the present value of the total of principal and interest discounted by an inter-
est rate that would be used for a similar loan.
(Financial instruments other than those above)
Financial instruments other than those above are measured at amortized cost but statement thereof has been omitted 
as their measured carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

(ii) Carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments  
(Financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis)
FY2017 (As of March 31, 2017)

(Unit: Million yen)

Carrying  
amount

Fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Available-for-sale financial assets

Equity instruments ¥14,579 ¥14,492 ¥— ¥86 ¥14,579

F inancial assets measured at a fair value  
through net profit/loss

Derivative financial assets 6 — 6 — 6

F inancial liabilities measured at a fair value  
through net profit/loss

Derivative financial liabilities 22 — 22 — 22

FY2018 (As of March 31, 2018)

(Unit: Million yen)

Carrying  
amount

Fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Available-for-sale financial assets

Equity instruments ¥16,016 ¥15,927 ¥— ¥88 ¥16,016

F inancial assets measured at a fair value  
through net profit/loss

Derivative financial assets 67 — 67 — 67

F inancial liabilities measured at a fair value  
through net profit/loss

Derivative financial liabilities 3 — 3 — 3

In terms of the financial instruments held by the Group at the end of FY2017 and FY2018, the impact of a 1% apprecia-
tion of the Japanese yen against the U.S. dollar and Chinese yuan on the income before tax is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

Impact on income before tax

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

1% appreciation of Japanese yen against the U.S. dollar ¥(25) ¥(20)

1% appreciation of Japanese yen against the Chinese yuan (47) (21)

Note:  This analysis assumes that all variables other than the Japanese yen–U.S. dollar/Chinese yuan exchange rates remain fixed.

(Price fluctuation risks of equity instruments)
The Group holds equity instruments that include the stocks of publicly traded companies with which it maintains busi-
ness relationships and is thus exposed to the risk of fluctuating market prices of these instruments.

The Group manages such risks by periodically monitoring the fair value of said instruments and the financial condition 
of its investment targets as well as conducting ongoing reviews of its status of holdings.

In terms of the equity instruments held by the Group at the end of FY2017 and FY2018, the impact of a 1% decline in 
market prices on other comprehensive income is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

Impact on other comprehensive income

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

1% decline in market prices ¥(144) ¥(159)

Note:  This analysis assumes that all variables other than the market prices remain fixed.

(iv) Liquidity risk (Risk of not being able to execute payment on the payment date)
While the Group procures necessary funds from bank loans and other means, it is exposed to the risk of not being able 
to execute payment on the payment date due to deterioration of the fund-raising environment and other factors.

The Group manages said risk by having the Company’s accounting division prepare and update fund management 
plans based on the reports of each division in order to mitigate liquidity risk.

The outstanding balance of financial liabilities by contractual maturity is as follows.
Trade and other payables, short-term loans payable, and derivative financial liabilities have been omitted as their  

contractual maturities are all less than one year.
Lease obligations are stated Note 30, “Leases.”

Long-term loans payable (including those scheduled for payment within one year)

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Within 1 year ¥  5 ¥191

Between 1 and 5 years 315 424

More than 5 years — —

Total ¥321 ¥615
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30. LEASES
(1) Lease as lessee
(i) Minimum total lease payments
The breakdown of the minimum total lease payments (present value) under finance leases is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Within 1 year ¥  687 ¥1,265

Between 1 and 5 years 1,227 1,268

More than 5 years 302 162

Total ¥2,217 ¥2,695

Notes: 1.   The outstanding balance of minimum total lease payments is included in “Other financial liabilities” in the consolidated  
statement of financial position.

 2.  Certain major lease contracts have renewal and purchase options. However, there are no lease contracts with contingent rent, 
escalation clauses (a provision to increase lease obligations), or specific contractual restrictions (such as restrictions on divi-
dends, additional borrowing, or additional lease contracts).

(ii) Non-cancelable operating leases
The breakdown of the minimum total lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Within 1 year ¥296 ¥  320

Between 1 and 5 years 475 612

More than 5 years — 432

Total ¥772 ¥1,365

(iii) Operating lease payments recognized as expenses during the fiscal year
Operating lease payments recognized as expenses during the fiscal year are as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

Operating lease payments ¥569 ¥502

(2) Lease as lessor
Minimum total lease payments to be received
The breakdown of the minimum total lease payments to be received under finance leases is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Within 1 year ¥2,326 ¥3,970

Between 1 and 5 years 2,050 3,076

More than 5 years — —

Total ¥4,376 ¥7,047

Notes: 1.  The outstanding balance of minimum total lease payments to be received is included in “Other financial assets” in the consol-
idated statement of financial position.

 2.  There are no lease contracts with renewal and purchase options, contingent rent, or escalation clauses (a provision to increase 
lease receivables).

(Financial instruments measured at amortized cost)
FY2017 (As of March 31, 2017)

(Unit: Million yen)

Carrying  
amount

Fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Loans and receivables

L ong-term loans receivable (including those  
scheduled for payment within one year) ¥520 ¥— ¥526 ¥— ¥526

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

L ong-term loans payable (including those  
scheduled for payment within one year) 321 — 320 — 320

FY2018 (As of March 31, 2018)

(Unit: Million yen)

Carrying  
amount

Fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Loans and receivables

L ong-term loans receivable (including those  
scheduled for payment within one year) ¥517 ¥— ¥522 ¥— ¥522

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

L ong-term loans payable (including those  
scheduled for payment within one year) 615 — 613 — 613

(3) Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Information on the offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized for a single counterparty is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Gross amount of financial assets recognized ¥203,010 ¥236,998

Offset amount 9,650 8,113

A mount of financial assets presented in  
consolidated statement of financial position ¥193,360 ¥228,885

Gross amount of financial liabilities recognized ¥ 82,654 ¥ 79,559

Offset amount 9,650 8,113

A mount of financial liabilities presented in  
consolidated statement of financial position ¥ 73,004 ¥ 71,446
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(ii) TS TECH ALABAMA, LLC.
For the year ended March 31, 2017 (April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)

(Unit: Million yen)

Type of related party Name
Nature of related- 
party transaction

Transaction  
amount Account

Outstanding  
balance

S ubsidiaries of  
other affiliates

Honda  
Manufacturing  

of Alabama, LLC.

Sale of  
the Company’s 

products

¥38,870 Accounts  
receivable – trade

¥2,916

Note: Business terms and conditions, and policy for the determination of business terms and conditions
  Business terms and conditions for the sale of products are determined upon the submission of individual quotes and price  

negotiations.

For the year ended March 31, 2018 (April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018)

(Unit: Million yen)

Type of related party Name
Nature of related- 
party transaction

Transaction  
amount Account

Outstanding  
balance

S ubsidiaries of  
other affiliates

Honda  
Manufacturing  

of Alabama, LLC.

Sale of  
the Company’s 

products

¥48,400 Accounts  
receivable – trade

¥4,109

Note: Business terms and conditions, and policy for the determination of business terms and conditions
  Business terms and conditions for the sale of products are determined upon the submission of individual quotes and price  

negotiations.

(iii) TS TECH CANADA INC.
For the year ended March 31, 2017 (April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)

(Unit: Million yen)

Type of related party Name
Nature of related- 
party transaction

Transaction  
amount Account

Outstanding  
balance

S ubsidiaries of  
other affiliates

Honda Canada,  
Inc.

Sale of  
the Company’s 

products

¥50,206 Accounts  
receivable – trade

¥5,780

Note: Business terms and conditions, and policy for the determination of business terms and conditions
  Business terms and conditions for the sale of products are determined upon the submission of individual quotes and price  

negotiations.

For the year ended March 31, 2018 (April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018)

(Unit: Million yen)

Type of related party Name
Nature of related- 
party transaction

Transaction  
amount Account

Outstanding  
balance

S ubsidiaries of  
other affiliates

Honda Canada,  
Inc.

Sale of  
the Company’s 

products

¥49,802 Accounts  
receivable – trade

¥4,527

Note: Business terms and conditions, and policy for the determination of business terms and conditions
  Business terms and conditions for the sale of products are determined upon the submission of individual quotes and price  

negotiations.

(iv) TS TECH (THAILAND) CO., LTD.
For the year ended March 31, 2017 (April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)

(Unit: Million yen)

Type of related party Name
Nature of related- 
party transaction

Transaction  
amount Account

Outstanding  
balance

S ubsidiaries of  
other affiliates

Honda  
Automobile  

(Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Sale of  
the Company’s 

products

¥16,911 Accounts  
receivable – trade

¥3,407

Note: Business terms and conditions, and policy for the determination of business terms and conditions
  Business terms and conditions for the sale of products are determined upon the submission of individual quotes and price  

negotiations.

31. RELATED-PARTY DISCLOSURES
(1) Transactions between the submitting company and related parties
The balances of transactions and receivables/payables between the submitting company and related parties are as 
follows.

For the year ended March 31, 2017 (April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)

(Unit: Million yen)

Type of related party Name
Nature of related-party 

transaction
Transaction  

amount Account
Outstanding  

balance

Other affiliates Honda Motor  
Co., Ltd.

Sale of  
the Company’s 

products

¥45,958 Accounts  
receivable – trade

¥5,760

Note: Business terms and conditions, and policy for the determination of business terms and conditions
  Business terms and conditions for the sale of products are determined upon the submission of individual quotes and price  

negotiations.

For the year ended March 31, 2018 (April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018)

(Unit: Million yen)

Type of related party Name
Nature of related-party 

transaction
Transaction  

amount Account
Outstanding  

balance

Other affiliates Honda Motor  
Co., Ltd.

Sale of  
the Company’s 

products

¥50,930 Accounts  
receivable – trade

¥8,522

Note: Business terms and conditions, and policy for the determination of business terms and conditions
  Business terms and conditions for the sale of products are determined upon the submission of individual quotes and price  

negotiations.

(2) Transactions between the consolidated subsidiaries of the submitting company and related parties
The balances of transactions and receivables/payables between the consolidated subsidiaries of the submitting company 
and related parties are as follows.

(i) TS TECH USA CORPORATION
For the year ended March 31, 2017 (April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)

(Unit: Million yen)

Type of related party Name
Nature of related-party 

transaction
Transaction  

amount Account
Outstanding  

balance

S ubsidiaries of  
other affiliates

Honda of America 
Mfg., Inc.

Sale of  
the Company’s 

products

¥55,243 Accounts  
receivable – trade

¥4,328

Note: Business terms and conditions, and policy for the determination of business terms and conditions
  Business terms and conditions for the sale of products are determined upon the submission of individual quotes and price  

negotiations.

For the year ended March 31, 2018 (April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018)

(Unit: Million yen)

Type of related party Name
Nature of related-party 

transaction
Transaction  

amount Account
Outstanding  

balance

S ubsidiaries of  
other affiliates

Honda of America 
Mfg., Inc.

Sale of  
the Company’s 

products

¥51,476 Accounts  
receivable – trade

¥4,650

Note: Business terms and conditions, and policy for the determination of business terms and conditions
  Business terms and conditions for the sale of products are determined upon the submission of individual quotes and price  

negotiations.
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For the year ended March 31, 2018 (April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018)

(Unit: Million yen)

Type of related party Name
Nature of related-party 

transaction
Transaction  

amount Account
Outstanding  

balance

S ubsidiaries of  
other affiliates

Honda  
Automobile  

(Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Sale of  
the Company’s 

products

¥24,209 Accounts  
receivable – trade

¥3,553

Note: Business terms and conditions, and policy for the determination of business terms and conditions
  Business terms and conditions for the sale of products are determined upon the submission of individual quotes and price  

negotiations.

(3) Remuneration of key management personnel
Remuneration to the directors and auditors of the Company is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(April 1, 2017–March 31, 2018)

Basic remuneration and bonuses ¥505 ¥551

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Company provides guarantees to financial institutions on the borrowings by employees. The guarantee amounts are 
as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

FY2017
(As of March 31, 2017)

FY2018
(As of March 31, 2018)

Employees (Company housing and mortgage loans) ¥59 ¥52

33. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Not applicable

OTHER
Quarterly information for the fiscal year under review is as follows.

(Unit: Million yen)

Cumulative period 1st quarter 2nd quarter 3rd quarter 4th quarter

Revenue ¥108,182 ¥223,693 ¥351,460 ¥479,490

Income before income tax 13,689 24,457 35,650 49,681

Income attributable to owners of parent 7,066 13,046 20,233 30,115

Earnings per share (Yen) ¥ 103.93 ¥ 191.86 ¥ 297.57 ¥ 442.89

Accounting period 1st quarter 2nd quarter 3rd quarter 4th quarter

Earnings per share (Yen) ¥103.93 ¥87.94 ¥105.70 ¥145.32

(TRANSLATION)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
June 22, 2018

To the Board of Directors of TS TECH Co., Ltd.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLC

Designated Unlimited Liability Partner, 
Engagement Partner,
Certified Public Accountant: Hirohisa Kato

Designated Unlimited Liability Partner, 
Engagement Partner,
Certified Public Accountant: Kenji Morita

Designated Unlimited Liability Partner, 
Engagement Partner,
Certified Public Accountant: Kazuyoshi Kuramoto

Pursuant to the first paragraph of Article 193-2 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, we have audited the 
consolidated financial statements included in the Financial Section, namely, the consolidated statement of financial 
position as of March 31, 2018 of TS TECH Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries, and the consolidated state-
ments of profit or loss, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the fiscal year from April 1, 2017 to 
March 31, 2018, and notes to consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accor-
dance with International Financial Reporting Standards pursuant to the provisions of Article 93 of the Ordinance on 
Terminology, Forms and Preparation Methods of Consolidated Financial Statements, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Third-Party Opinion

Response to the Third-Party Opinion

New Head Office A socially responsible cafe that 
supports employment of persons with 
disabilities (located within the cafeteria)

The inner structure of select seats 
is on display at Za Museum.

Audit Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of TS TECH Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries as of March 31, 2018, and the results of their operations and their cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

The above represents a translation, for convenience only, of the original report issued in the Japanese language.
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Managing Director,
So-Tech Consulting Inc.

Mizue Unno

Senior Managing Director, 
Corporate Administration 
Division Executive General 
Manager

Yoshitaka 
Nakajima

Ms. Unno was previously in charge of market-
ing strategy and environmental business de-
velopment support at an economic consulting 
company.
 In 1996, she went independent and 
founded So-Tech Consulting Inc. The compa-
ny works in the environmental and sustainabil-
ity sectors and is building a network of profes-
sionals around the world. With a focus on the 
global strategies of Japanese companies, So-
Tech Consulting uses its unique eye for analy-
sis to carry out ambitious recommendations 
regarding management in the areas of ESG 
and sustainability.

Interest in the concept of ESG has been 
growing for the past several years, espe-
cially among investors. While there is no  
single evaluation method for ESG, there is 
an agreed-upon definition for the term. The 
TS TECH Group quickly adopted this per-
spective and positioned ESG management 
as the pillar of its Medium-Term Manage-
ment Plan. Moreover, the inclusion of ESG 
initiatives in its integrated reports should  
be commended.
 There are many aspects of the three 
areas of ESG that cannot be quantitatively 
expressed, but, more importantly, environ-
mental (E), social (S), and governance (G) 
issues are not matters that should be dis-
cussed alongside one another in the first 
place. The way in which relevant information 
is disclosed is crucial. For instance, conven-
tional responses that merely satisfy all eval-
uation criteria in the Corporate Governance 
Code and indexes are not the true essence 
of governance; rather, transparency in the 
truest sense is heightened by specifying the 
ideas of each company.
 Moreover, it is important to place 
business matters at the heart of reports 

Since 2016, our company has exchanged 
views with Ms. Unno regarding efforts 
for continuous corporate growth and has  
received advice from a sustained perspec-
tive. Our ESG initiatives, which Ms. Unno 
commended, are extensions of existing  
activities and previously undertaken  

The Importance of Balancing 
Business and ESG

and provide explanations that focus on 
ESG-related factors strongly related to  
TS TECH’s business. These types of reports 
do not get caught up in the integrated report 
framework, and they can provide under-
standing of both corporate value and social 
value by comparing financial/non-financial 
indicators with value creation to produce 
content from which the future prospects  
of business can be inferred. 
 Since the emphasis at TS TECH is on 
the creation of products that take into ac-
count “safety,” “attractiveness,” and “the 
environment,” explaining these factors is 
the core of value creation. Why not elabo-
rate on the outcomes of endeavors related 
to each factor in integrated reports? Also, 
reports on the progress of endeavors such 
as initiatives tailored toward a society with 
automated vehicles, which has recently 
been garnering interest, or the expansion 
of sales beyond existing customers, which 
was named an important measure in the 
Medium-Term Management Plan, are like-
ly more attractive to stakeholders and could 
lead to continuous growth. I anticipate that 
systematic organization of and reports on 
business and ESG-related content will lead 
to ESG-focused management that is unique 
to TS TECH.

measures that have been reformulated 
from an ESG standpoint and positioned as 
cornerstones of the Medium-Term Man-
agement Plan.
 Working toward ESG-focused man-
agement not only helps the TS TECH 
Group contribute to a sustainable soci-
ety but also leads to greater growth in key 
business through the fulfillment of obliga-
tions demanded by society of a corporate 
group with global business operations.
 Ms. Unno recommended that we en-
hance disclosure of the outcomes of our 
endeavors, and we will actively introduce 
some of our advanced technologies for 

Ms. Unno visited the new Head Office to learn 
more about our eco-friendly office and our 
company’s products.

the future, including ever-evolving tech-
nologies related to “safety,” “attractive-
ness,” and “the environment,” as well as 
our efforts for new value creation. We will 
disclose as much information as possible 
related to the expansion of sales beyond 
existing customers, but matters such as 
client confidentiality prevent certain infor-
mation from being shared immediately.
 Having received these opinions, go-
ing forward we will make greater efforts 
to organize the outcomes of our endeav-
ors for ESG-focused management and key 
business so that we can systematically  
report them.
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Corporate Data and Stock Information

Ownership and
distribution of

shares (%)

Individuals and
others

8.1%

Financial
institutions

36.6%

Securities
companies

0.8%

Other corporations 
and others

29.3%

Foreign corporations 
and others

25.2%

(As of June 22, 2018)Corporate Data

Company Name  TS TECH Co., Ltd.

Establishment  December 5, 1960

Head Office  3-7-27 Sakae-cho, Asaka-shi, Saitama 351-0012, Japan

Common Stock  ¥4,700,000,000

Corporate Representative  President, Masanari Yasuda

Lines of Business  Manufacture and sale of seats for automobiles; interior trim and interior components for 
automobiles; motorcycle seats; and motorcycle resin-based parts

Number of Employees  17,014 (Consolidated), 1,723 (Non-consolidated)

Closing of Accounts  March 31

Securities Traded  Tokyo Stock Exchange (First Section)

Main Banks  MUFG Bank, Ltd. / Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation / Saitama Resona Bank, Limited  

Main Customers  Honda Motor Co., Ltd. / Honda R&D Co., Ltd. / Honda Trading Corporation / Honda Access 
Corp. / Suzuki Motor Corporation / Yamaha Motor Co., Ltd. / Kawasaki Heavy Industries, 
Ltd. / PARAMOUNT BED CO., LTD.  

Member Organization Japan Auto Parts Industries Association

*  Treasury stock is included in “Individuals and others”.

(As of March 31, 2018)Stock Information

Equity participation

Major Shareholders (As of March 31, 2018)
Number of shares 
held (Thousands)

Voting stake (%)

Honda Motor Co., Ltd. 15,360 22.6

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust account) 3,218 4.7

Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company, Limited 2,451 3.6

SMBC Trust Bank Ltd.(Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 
Corporation Pension Trust Account) 2,199 3.2

Sumitomo Life Insurance Company  
(Standing proxy: Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd.) 1,940 2.9

Saitama Resona Bank, Limited 1,720 2.5

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust account) 1,697 2.5

Bridgestone Corporation 1,536 2.3

Taiyo Life Insurance Company 1,400 2.1

Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation  
(Standing proxy: The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd.) 1,360 2.0

Total Number of Shares Authorized to Be Issued 272,000,000 

Total Number of Shares Outstanding 68,000,000 

Number of Shareholders 9,364
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